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CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

All statements contained in this Annual Report @ 10-K for China Premium Lifestyle Enterprisec¢.lnother than
statements of historical facts, that address fulgivities, events or developments are forwardilog statements, including, but not
limited to, statements containing the words or pbasa‘would be, “"will allow,” “intends to,” “will Ikely result,” “are expected to,”
“will continue,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” “prject,” “believe,” “plan,” “intend,” “estimate” andvords of similar import. These
statements are based on certain assumptions alydesenade by us in light of our experience andassessment of historical trends,
current conditions and expected future developmastsvell as other factors we believe are apprapnigider the circumstances.
However, whether actual results will conform to theectations and predictions of management isestibp a number of risks and
uncertainties that may cause actual results terdiffaterially. These risks and uncertainties inelu(h) general economic conditions
in Hong Kong, Macau and China; (b) regulatory fast;n Hong Kong, Macau and China that may lead dditeonal costs or
otherwise negatively affect our business; (c) whetlie are able to manage our planned growth effiigieincluding whether our
management will be able to: (i) identify, hire,itraretain, motivate and manage required persoonél) successfully manage and
exploit existing and potential market opportunitiéd) whether we are able to generate sufficiememeies or obtain financing to
sustain and grow our operations; (e) whether weahbte to successfully fulfill our primary cash ré@gments which are explained
below under “Liquidity and Capital Resources”; dfjdvhether worldwide economic conditions will néigaly affect the automobile
retail industry in Hong Kong, Macau and China. t&t@ents made herein are as of the date of the fiinthis Form 10-K with the
Securities and Exchange Commission and should aotebed upon as of any subsequent date. Unlessrwaite required by
applicable law, we do not undertake, and we sprdifi disclaim any obligation, to update any forddmoking statements to reflect
occurrences, developments, unanticipated evertisoumstances after the date of such statement.

You should carefully review the risk factors delBed in this report and other documents we will filem time to time
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, irinlyidur Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q to be fibgydus in our 2009 fiscal year,
which runs from January 1, 2009 to December 319200

As used in this Form 10-K, unless the context neggudtherwise, “we”, or “us” or “OTCBB: CPLY” or ¢h“Company”
means China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. imdubsidiaries, taken together as a whole.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.]
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PART |
ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
COMPANY OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. is in thgsiness of the importation, distribution and sa&premium brand
luxury products in the Hong Kong Special Adminiitra Region, (“Hong Kong”), the Macau Special Adisimative Region,
(“Macau”), and in the People’s Republic of Chinahich for the purposes of this report excludes H&logg, Macau and Taiwan,
and hereinafter “China”). Currently, the Compangigin business is its ownership interest in TectembrLimited, a Hong Kong
corporation. The business of the subsidiaries @hmerient Limited consists mainly of the importatjalistribution, and after-sales
service of Italian “Ferrari” and “Maserati” brandedrs and spare parts in Hong Kong, Macau and CBinang 2008, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, CPMM (Asia) Limited (“CPMMsia”), the Company implemented its plan to impdistribute and sell
premium brand apparel in Hong Kong, Macau, Chirch Eaiwan.

The Company was originally formed in the State ef/&da on April 19, 2004 under its predecessor nx@aet, Aid, Inc.
On April 30, 2004, the Company issued 1,000 shafesur common stock (representing all of its issaed outstanding shares) to
Addison-Davis Diagnostics, Inc. (f/k/a QT5, Incg),Delaware corporation ("Addison-Davis"), in corsition of Addison-Davis
advancing start-up and operating capital.

On November 15, 2004, the Company acquired the Xadtline of first aid products for minor injurieffom
Addison-Davis in accordance with an Agreement ofeSand Transfer of Assets entered into between Gbenpany and
Addison-Davis. The assets acquired were, includithgoodwill appurtenant thereto, (a) inventory) ¢fonfidential and proprietary
information relating to the Xact Aid products; @gller's domain names including source codes, naere and passwords; (d) all
designs and copyrights in connection with the Tnaald; and (e) all records and materials relatinguppliers and customer list. In
full consideration for all the acquired assets, @mnpany agreed to (i) repay funds advanced by seddDavis for the Company’s
operating expenses from inception to Septembef304, which were repaid in November 2004 and Deezrdb04; (ii) assume a
promissory note issued to Xact Aid Investments @idssue to Addison-Davis 2,000,000 shares @& @ompany’s common stock.

From the Company’s inception to May 9, 2005, théedthat the Company was spun-off from Addison-Davis
Addison-Davis was the Company’s sole stockholder amsuch the Company was a wholly-owned subsidiaAddison-Davis and
it was included in the consolidated financial staats filed by Addison-Davis with the Securitiesdd&xchange Commission (the
“SEC").




On December 22, 2005 the Company entered intonaacgion divesting itself of certain assets forakhihe Company,
in management’s opinion, could not attract capaauccessfully exploit, in return for the assumptof certain liabilities, a guarantee
to pay another significant liability, and all ofetltommon stock of a development stage companyCbingpany acquired one hundred
percent (100%) of the issued and outstanding sledrBsooke Carlyle Life Sciences, Inc., a Nevadgoooation ("Brooke Carlyle), a
development stage company with a business plaeveldp an online Internet portal containing infotima on sexually transmitted
diseases, generating revenue from advertising fsbarmaceutical companies. In accordance with thmagtef the acquisition, the
Company agreed to: (i) sell, assign and transfértamke Carlyle any and all of its rights title amderests in connection with the
License Agreement and the Patent Assignment; i) assign and transfer the Xact Aid line of fiestl products for minor injuries,
including all its related rights, titles and invent; (iii) transfer a rental security deposit re@dile in the amount of $225; and (iv)
transfer certain notes receivable to Brooke Cailylthe aggregate amount of $20,000. In considaraBrooke Carlyle: (i) assumed
various liabilities payable by the Company in tlygr@gate amount of $102,488; (ii) guaranteed paymithe Company’'s $950,000
promissory note payable in connection with the RaBending Assignment; and (iii) issued to the CanypOne Million (1,000,000)
shares of Brooke Carlyle common stock.

The Company’s management team then determinedtthgts no longer in the best interests of the Camgpand its
stockholder to continue pursuing sales and margedfforts for the wound-specific first aid kit lire# products. In an effort to bring
revenues and profitable operations to the Comparanagement sought to effect a transaction thatdvatitact a viable business
operation and liquidate its liabilities. As a résafl such decisions, on March 3, 2006, the Comparigred into a non-binding letter of
intent ("Letter of Intent") with Technorient Limide a Hong Kong corporation ("Technorient”) for aposed acquisition of an
interest in Technorient via a share exchange byaamoing the Company and Technorient and Technosishéireholders. On May 4,
2006, in order to satisfy certain provisions in 8teare Exchange Agreement described below withAa@nt, the Company entered
into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the "Agreemenith) Wexgen Biogroup, Inc. ("Nexgen"), for the safethe 1,000,000 shares (the
"Shares") of the common stock of Brooke Carlyledngy the Company, which at that time representedradubstantially all of the
assets of the Company, for $1,000 cash, repregeataonsideration of $.001 per share of Brookey@arBrooke Carlyle's par value
per Share (the "Sale"). In accordance with the sesfrthe Agreement, the Company agreed to: (i) asflign and transfer to Nexgen
any and all of its rights, title and interests iro8ke Carlyle; and (ii) transfer to Nexgen 1,000,8Dares of Brooke Carlyle common
stock. Further, on April 7, 2006, in order to sigtisertain provisions of the Share Exchange Agregnuescribed below, the
Company amended its Articles of Incorporation toviste for the authorization of 100,000,000 shafgzreferred stock.

On June 9, 2006, the Company entered into a shkxateege agreement (the "Exchange Agreement") wéthiorient,
Fred De Luca, our director of the Company, CorictieEprises Inc., a British Virgin Islands corpooati("Corich"), and Herbert
Adamczyk (collectively the “parties”). Subsequentin July 15, 2006, the parties entered into anmaleg share exchange agreement,
which agreement replaced in its entirety and s@uokd the Exchange Agreement. We refer to this skvarkange agreement, as
amended and restated, as the Amended Exchange mgmeePursuant to the terms of the Amended Excha@wggeement, the
Company agreed to acquire from Corich and Mr. Adarkdthe "Sellers") 49% of the outstanding, fulljutied capital stock of
Technorient in exchange for the Company issuintpéoSellers and Orient Financial Services Ltd. (OF72,728 shares of Series
A Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series A PreférShares") (this share exchange transactionriinadter referred to as the
"Exchange"). The 972,728 Series A Preferred Shasge at that time convertible into approximately6®®,881 shares of common
stock, which on an as-converted basis represer@gdbof the outstanding common stock of the Compamy fully diluted basis,
taking into account the Exchange.




As of August 31, 2006, the Company had 21,629,389tanding shares of common stock. The Company&lés of
Incorporation provided for authorized capital obttwundred million shares (200,000,000) of which baedred million (100,000,000)
were $0.001 par value common stock and one hunahiéidn (100,000,000) are $0.001 par value preférstock. Prior to the
Exchange, Federico G. Cabo, our director, owned®B0®O0 shares of common stock, and Mr. De Lucagetay and director, owned
6,000,000 shares of common stock. Pursuant to xobahge, the Company cancelled the 9,000,000 sbai@smmon stock owned
by Messrs. De Luca and Cabo (the "Share Canceikiio

On September 5, 2006, pursuant to the Amended BgehAgreement and after all of the conditions pdeoéto closing
were satisfied, Corich and Mr. Adamczyk, as shdddre of Technorient, transferred 49% of the outditag capital stock of
Technorient on a fully diluted basis to the Compangxchange for the 972,728 Series A Preferredesh&ursuant to the terms of
the Amended Exchange Agreement, there were appateiyn 167,644,553 shares of common stock issuedoatstanding after
giving effect to (a) the Exchange, (b) the shamce#ations, debt conversions and the issuanchetonsulting shares pursuant to
the Amended Exchange Agreement, and (c) assuminfyiihconversion of the Series A Preferred Sha#ssa result of the Exchange,
the Company became a 49% shareholder of Technariest fully-diluted basis. Additionally, as a camol to the Exchange, the
Company completed the sale of all the capital stfdRrooke Carlyle, which prior to the Exchange sititted all of the Company’s
assets, for $1,000 cash to Nexgen.

In connection with the Exchange, the Company isgi)ed Corich and Mr. Adamczyk an aggregate of 928 shares of
the Series A Preferred Shares in exchange for 4%edssued and outstanding shares of Techno(i@b61,245 shares of Series A
Preferred Shares to Happy Emerald Limited, a Britf&rgin Islands company, for consulting servicesde provided to Technorient
after the Exchange, and (iii) an aggregate of 2,27 shares of common stock in connection witkagerconversions of outstanding
debt. As a result, after giving effect to the Exulpe, the debt conversions, the issuance of shardsppy Emerald, the issued and
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stockfolly diluted, as converted basis was 167,643 Stares.

The Company is currently engaged in litigation regeg the Series A Preferred Shares purportedlyedso Happy
Emerald Limited. The Company believes that theeSeh Preferred Shares that were purportedly issoéthppy Emerald Limited,
and all shares of common stock converted thereframa,subject to cancellation. A more detailed dpson of the Company’s

claims with respect to the shares purportedly iddaeHappy Emerald Limited is set forth in Partém 3 (Legal Proceedings) of this
Report on Form 10-K (“Report”).

After the closing of the Exchange, the Company&mbusiness became its 49% ownership intereseamiorient.




On December 27, 2006, the Company effected anasere the number of the Company’s authorized shafreapital
stock from 200,000,000 to 500,000,000 total autteatishares of capital stock, and a corporate ndaege through the filing of a
Certificate of Amendment to the Company’s Artictdsincorporation with the Secretary of State of 8tate of Nevada. As of such
date the Company’s authorized capital stock coedisef 400,000,000 authorized shares of common s§#:R01 par value per share,
and 100,000,000 authorized shares of preferredk,stith a par value $0.001 per share. The Compésty @oncurrently effected a
change of the Company’s corporate name to “ChiramRmn Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc.” The Company naaange and its new
trading symbol (OTCBB: CPMM) became effective oa @TC Bulletin Board on December 28, 2006.

In March 2007, the Company entered into an agreemith Falber Confezioni, S.r.l. to become the sohporter and
distributor of John Richmond, Richmond X and Ricmai®enim clothing for men and women in Hong Kon@gddu, Taiwan and in
China commencing in the Spring/Summer season o8 20d ending in the Fall/Winter season of 2012.

On April 3, 2007, the Company established a whollsned subsidiary named CPMM (Asia) Limited (f/k/aader Mount
Limited), a Hong Kong corporation (“CPMM Asia”). @M Asia is principally engaged in the distributiohluxury brand apparel.

On July 10, 2007, the Company entered into a Nodibg Letter of Intent with Keyforce (BVI) Limite¢tKeyforce (BVI)")
(the “Letter of Intent”), a subsidiary of Wo Kee ip (Holdings) Limited of Hong Kong, to begin negutitbns to acquire from
Keyforce (BVI) its luxury yacht distribution busis® Keyforce (BVI) is the sole shareholder of Kegéo Holdings Limited
(“Keyforce Holdings”) and Noble Brand Investmentsnited (“Noble Brand”). Keyforce Holdings is engagim the distribution of
luxurious ltalian “Ferretti” motor yachts in Chinghile Noble Brand distributes Taiwanese producearitbn” motor yachts in
China, Hong Kong and Macau. The Letter of Interied on January 9, 2008. As of March 30, 2009bimaling agreements had
been entered into, but discussions remain ongoing.

On December 7, 2007, the Company fde@ertificate of Change Pursuant to Nevada Revi&etutes §78.209 with the
Nevada Secretary of State to effect a one-to-fxerse stock split pursuant to which each fivetantting shares of common stock,
par value $0.001, were automatically converted ane share of common stock, par value $0.005, ladatal number of shares of
our common stock outstanding was reduced from 22284 shares to 24,534,491 shares. No change a@es im the number of the
Company’s authorized shares. No scrip or fractiatere certificates were issued in connection withstock split. Stockholders
received a number of shares of new common stockdexli up to the nearest whole number in lieu oftifivael interests resulting
from the stock split. Following the stock spliteti@ompany’s common shares began trading under aioker symbol (OTCBB:
CPLY).

The conversion price of the Series A Preferred &haras adjusted up by the one-to-five ratio fron94838 to $0.2169
per share, and the conversion ratio of shares ofnoan stock issued upon conversion of the Seriesr&feRed Shares was
proportionately decreased from 92.2045 shares mfwan stock per one share of Series A PreferredeShar18.4409 shares of new
common stock per one share of Series A PreferradeSh




Each stockholder’s percentage ownership intereshéncompany and proportional voting power remainadhanged
after the stock split except for minor changes aaijdstments resulting from rounding of fractiomakrests. The rights and privileges
of the holders of common stock were substantiallgffected by the stock split.

On April 24, 2008, the Company adopted a Code dfifBass Conduct and Ethics applicable to its emgleyefficers and
directors.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On January 18, 2008, CPMM Asia, a wholly-owned gliesy of the Company, entered into a License angp8/
Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Akkurate Ltd. (“Alirate”) and Falber Confezioni S.R.L. (“Falber”y fa term of 10 seasons
through approximately January 31, 2013. The Agrednggants CPMM Asia the exclusive right to sell nseand women’s
Ready-to-Wear John Richmond, Richmond X, and Rialdrdenim (“Products”) and to open points of sakniified by the signs of
Products identified by the “John Richmond,” “Richmag’ “Richmond X,” and “Richmond Denim” marks (cetltively, the “Signs”)
in China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan (the “Exolitgi Area”), which Products will be supplied by Bat. In addition, CPMM
Asia has the right to use the Signs, and to opdmzamage in the Exclusivity Area, mono-brand shidpatified by the Signs for the
sale of the Products and other articles identifigdhe Signs. CPMM Asia also has the right to signise these rights to third parties.
The first mono brand shop of “Richmond X" was opgime Hong Kong at the end of 2007. In early May 0CPMM Asia opened
the second mono brand shop in Hong Kong.

TECHNORIENT OVERVIEW

The Company’s main business remains its 49% owipeisterest in Technorient. Technorient is a cogtion formed in
Hong Kong on March 8, 1983. Technorient is the pacempany of Auto Italia Limited (“Auto Italia”GGerman Motors Limited
(“German Motors”), Italian Motors (Sales & Servigéltalian Motors”), Italian Motors (Sales & Senéy Limited (“IML”) and King
Express Group Limited (“King Express”). CollectiyelAuto Italia, Italian Motors, IML, German Motorand King Express are
hereafter referred to as the “Technorient Groupigi@ally founded in 1974 by Mr. Adamczyk as Gernidotors, Technorient was
formed as the holding company for Auto ltalia, IMhd German Motors in 1985. IML was appointed ae &a@rrari importer and
distributor for Hong Kong and Macau in 1992 (anctlegive importer for China between 1994 and 20@#)Y Auto Italia was
appointed as importer and distributor for Masarafi996, having been a dealer for the brand si®€& 1in 2003, IML transferred its
entire car trading business to Auto Italia, whietiurn set up a new subdivision, Italian Motors¢omtinue the business. On April 24,
2008, Auto Italia formed a wholly-owned subsidiargmed Success Master Holdings Limited, in Hong KoRgs new entity
currently does not have any operations. On Augu2098, IML formed a wholly owned subsidiary namsahnjing Auto Italia Car
Trading Co., Ltd. in China to engage in the disttilon of Ferrari and Maserati cars in Nanjing.




IML is a 1% equity holder in Ferrari Maserati Cansernational Trading (Shanghai) Co. Ltd., an egigiint venture
company created with Ferrari S.p.A. and the Beifiaged Poly Investment Group in 2004 to handlessatarketing and distribution
of Maserati and Ferrari in China. We refer to Ferkéaserati Cars International Trading (Shanghai) @d. as the Shanghai JV. The
Shanghai JV is currently building a network of @eslhips for Ferrari and Maserati in China.

Auto Italia and Italian Motors operate from eigbtétions in Hong Kong and China, incorporating safpare parts,
service and body and paint shop facilities for &&rand Maserati. Management believes that thepgtmas a well-established
customer base comprised of high net worth indiviglia Hong Kong and China and enjoys through ites@erformance and
reputation for first class facilities and custorservice, and excellent relationship with senior aggment of both Ferrari S.p.A. and
Maserati S.p.A.

Management of Technorient views the rapid developinoé the consumer market in China, particularlg tharket for
luxury products, as an opportunity to leverage @menpany’s existing high net worth customer base r@pditation to develop a
platform for distribution of a wide range of luxuitgms, including additional high end (performanaajos, luxury yachts and other
premium lifestyle items.

In October 2007, King Express was appointed by faestland as its exclusive distributor for the ptate fleet of
AgustaWestland commercial helicopters in Hong Kang Macau. It also has the right to sell to thghlyi strategic Pearl River
Delta region of Southern China on a non-exclusiagi$ Currently the AgustaWestland helicoptersrmss is in its preparatory stage
with the likely arrival of the first helicopter aaipated at the beginning of 2010.

Technorient History and Background

German Motors was originally established in 1974Myy Adamczyk as a service center for high perfanogasports cars,
including Ferrari. After some years of developmantj largely as a result of its record in high dualervice and support for the auto
racing industry in both Hong Kong and Macau, in 388 company was awarded the exclusive dealefshiperrari in Hong Kong
and Macau. IML was formed subsequently to contiieebusiness.

Technorient was established in Hong Kong on March93. Technorient became the holding companywif, IAuto
Italia and German Motors. IML was appointed solganter and distributor of Ferrari cars in Hong Koaigd Macau in 1992,
Between 1994 and 2004, IML was also the exclusiveoirter of Ferrari cars in China. Auto Italia hazkh a dealer of Maserati cars
since 1994 and was appointed importer and distiitfor Maserati cars in 1996.




In 1993, Corich acquired 37.7% of the then issuedes capital of Technorient. Mr. Adamczyk held apgmately 28.2%
of the then issued and outstanding capital shaf€bechnorient. In 1995, Corich increased its irser@ Technorient to 73.6%
through subscription of new shares and acquisitioshares from certain minority shareholders offifeeient. In 2001 and 2002, a
minority shareholder of Technorient sold its eniimerest of approximately 0.019% of the then isiscapital shares of Technorient to
Corich and Mr. Adamczyk in proportion to their thiaterest in Technorient. On April 15, 2004 and iRg8B, 2004, Corich increased
its interest in Technorient to 89.92%. On May 300&, Corich acquired 0.08% of the issued capitatesh of Technorient from the
minority shareholder of Technorient. Upon completaf the acquisition, Corich and Mr. Adamczyk edwehd approximately 90%
and 10% of Technorient, respectively. Upon comeptetdof the Exchange on September 5, 2006, CorichthedCompany held
approximately 51% and 49% of Technorient, respebtiv

Ferrari/Maserati China

The Technorient Group sold the first Ferrari in i@hiin 1993. By 2005, over 100 units were sold,extfhg the
emergence of China as one of Ferrari’'s key growginkets, alongside Latin America and Russia. In atzace with its worldwide
policy of owning the primary importer in a majorpext market, Ferrari S.p.A. approached Technorireahagement in 2002 to
request guidance on how to best establish its ovgoriting operations in China. Technorient introduEerrari S.p.A. to Poly Group,
a powerful industrial entity, after having estabéd that a joint venture with a well-connected Idmsiness entity would be the most
appropriate structure.

As a result, on August 27, 2004, the Shanghai #Vequity Sino-foreign joint venture in China witlerFari S.p.A. and
Poly Technologies, Inc., was formed to engage @ithport, distribution and sale, through a locawwek of car dealers, of Ferrari
and Maserati cars, spare parts and ancillary ptsd@wnership of the Shanghai JV at inception wersdfi S.p.A. 40%, Technorient
Group (through IML) 30% and Poly Group 30%, wittcRard Lee, Chairman of Technorient, appointed asir@an and authorized
representative of the Shanghai JV.

Upon formation, the Shanghai JV acquired from IMLdd the dealer network and importer operationslgéshed by
IML, including residual cars allocated for Chinacast.

Because the structure of the Shanghai JV preclitsiehareholders from direct ownership of licendedlers in China
and in view of Technorient’s strategy to develoguaury brand platform amongst its high net worthewts, Technorient’s
management subsequently approached Ferrari S.p.Aispose of IML'’s interest in the Shanghai JV kattTechnorient could
acquire an independent dealer network in China anmthng other things, maintain its direct custoneéationships. As part of this
arrangement, Technorient would apply for and rexeigaler licenses in key markets in China sucha®mand Nanjing (already
awarded) and would, in conjunction with Ferrarintoue to build its dealer network to capitalize i client base in China and
pursue its luxury brand platform.

Pursuant to the above, IML entered into an agreémih the Shanghai JV parties to dispose of 29Uitgdnterest in
the Shanghai JV in July 2006. The disposal was tetegh in December 2007 and after the disposal, Bdhtinues to hold a 1%
equity interest in the Shanghai JV. Beginning i®&0the Technorient Group was able to act as amodmed dealer of Ferrari and
Maserati cars in certain cities in China that waltecated in accordance with the Shanghai JV. tudey 2006, IML formed Dalian
Auto ltalia in China to engage in the distributiohFerrari and Maserati cars in Dalian, China avtl bwned 95% equity interest in
Dalian Auto Italia. On August 3, 2007, IML enteriedio an agreement to acquire the remaining 5% aftgdnterest in Dalian Auto
Italia. IML currently owns 100% equity interestalian Auto Italia.




On August 7, 2008, IML formed a wholly owned sulesig named Nanjing Auto Italia Car Trading Co., libdChina to
engage in the distribution of Ferrari and Masesats in Nanjing.

Auto ltalia was established in Hong Kong on Septenb, 1984 to trade cars and related accessaorepravide car
repair services. It was the exclusive importer distkibutor for Lancia and subsequently Fiat autbites in Hong Kong and Macau
until the early 1990s when Lancia discontinuedight hand drive model range. Auto Italia withdréam its Fiat distributorship at
the same time due to the unsuitability of the viglsidor the Hong Kong market. Subsequent to theateEm of its Lancia and Fiat
distributorships, Auto Italia was awarded exclusiealership rights for Maserati automobiles in H&mgng and in Macau.

Auto ltalia and Italian Motors operate from eightétions in Hong Kong, Macau and China, incorpotagales, spare
parts, service and body and paint shop facilitied-errari and Maserati.

AgustaWestland helicopters

In October 2007, King Express was appointed by faestland as its exclusive distributor for the ptate fleet of
AgustaWestland commercial helicopters in Hong Kang Macau. It also has the right to sell to thghlyi strategic Pearl River
Delta region of Southern China on a non-exclusags

Currently the AgustaWestland helicopters businseda its preparatory stage with likely arrival detfirst helicopter
anticipated at the beginning of 2010.

Operations

As the primary importer and distributor for Ferfistaserati brands for Hong Kong, Macau and Chinail(@©04),
Technorient was responsible for introducing andettgying a viable market for high performance luxumptor cars in those
territories. After formation of the Shanghai JV 2004, Technorient still retains its role as exalasimporter and dealer for both
Ferrari and Maserati brands in Hong Kong and Mabath significant markets in their own right, whdeveloping an independent
dealership network in China in close cooperatiotihhwhe Shanghai JV.

A key aspect of any Ferrari importer worldwide lie tstrength of the relationship with Ferrari S.pmanagement in
Maranello, Italy. With its internationally recogeid logo and current worldwide production of onlg@) units, the Ferrari brand
connotes an image of performance and exclusivitguenin the auto world. Management of Ferrari S.uAderstands the importance
of importer performance in maintaining this imagel accordingly requires the highest level of commaitt from their importers.




Importership agreements are renewed annually anidleeallocations are made largely through negotiednd are based
on past sales levels. Allocations largely determimdting lists for certain models, which in devedopmarkets such as the United
States and Europe, can stretch out to 3 years.yAd&asuccess as a Ferrari importer is the abibtyntrease allocations regularly.
Technorient's management has historically enjoyeatigue ability to achieve this, through the stitbnof their 20-year relationship
with Ferrari and proven success in building impatrt@arkets for Ferrari and Maserati in Hong Kongd &ina. As a result, waiting
lists for new cars in China are relatively shontjmportant advantage in newly developing markdigsne patience levels amongst the
newly wealthy for their high end purchases aretiraty low.

Market Analysis
Hong Kong and Macau

After several years of steady growth, the markeltlomg Kong and Macau for super luxury performanebisdles was
severely impacted by the SARS crisis and the rieguéconomic downturn in 2003 which, together vitie imposition of a poorly
conceived luxury tax (now reduced and restructuredliced Ferrari sales to a fraction of the preniqul. Between 2004 and the first
half of 2008, Hong Kong and Macau experienced am@nic boom, built largely on the robust performanéthe Chinese economy,
particularly on the consumption side. However, dgrihe last half of 2008, Hong Kong and Macau begafeel the effects of the
worldwide economic slowdown.

Sales for Ferrari and Maserati stabilized at aroid@ units in 2005 with annual growth in the regai30% reaching
close to 270 units in 2008. Given the relativetyall but extremely wealthy customer base for theupis products in Hong Kong
and Macau, management believes that sales williresteady, despite the currently experienced slawavhile the proportion of
sales in China is expected to continue to increglbejt at a somewhat slower rate.

China

The consumer market in China has emerged as amesfieconomic growth during the past years. 1852@China
overtook Japan as the second largest car markbeiworld after the United States, with 5.9 millionits sold in 2005. China has
continued to achieve record sales during the ruteug008 (2006: 7.2 million, 2007: 8.9 million, 2000.4 million), but a slowdown
in sales became evident during the second hald@8 2vhich management believes is likely to contimu2009.

Business Strategy

Technorient’s main strategy of building a luxunaibd platform in China will be centered around con¢d development
of the independent dealer network for the key bsasfd-errari and Maserati. This network, like tlealérships in Dalian and Nanjing,
will be developed, in cooperation with Ferrari 8.pand Maserati S.p.A., both through new operatiand acquisitions of existing
dealerships in key industrial regions with a higineentration of wealthy individuals who form an ion@nt part of Technorient’s
customer base.

As the business of Technorient develops, it isitibention that additional key brands, consisterthwie platform and
character of the business, will be acquired fromhherient’s parent company Wo Kee Hong (Holdings)ited or from third parties.
An example is the acquisition of the AgustaWestlaalicopter’s distributorship in Hong Kong and Maca




PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS OR SERVICES AND THEIR MARKETS

Currently, Technorient imports, distributes, andvides after-sale service for Italian “Ferrari” atidaserati” branded
cars and spare parts in Hong Kong, Macau and pa@sina.

The following table reflects our percentage of toé@enues of Technorient by business segmentsufolast three fiscal

years:
Percentage of Total Revenues of Technorient as of
December December December
Business Segment 31, 2008 31, 2007 31, 2006
New and used vehicles 94% 94% 92%
Parts and services 6% €% 8%

OUR AUTOMOBILE DEALERSHIPS
I mportership/Dealership Agreements

Each of our importers operates under separate ragregs with the manufacturers of each brand of Vwehithese
agreements contain provisions and standards gowemimost every aspect of the business, includiwgeoship, management,
personnel, training, maintenance of minimum workiagital and in some cases net worth, maintenahogrdmum lines of credit,
advertising and marketing, facilities, signs, praduand services, acquisitions of other dealersfipduding restrictions on how
many dealerships can be acquired or operated irgiaey market), maintenance of minimum amountsetirance, achievement of
minimum customer service standards and monthlynfirz reporting. Typically, the importer’'s principand/or the owner of the
dealership may not be changed without the manuftsuconsent.

In exchange for complying with these provisions atehdards, we are currently granted the exclusghe to sell the

Ferrari and Maserati brand of vehicles and relgi@ds and services in Hong Kong and Macau, and ave klso been granted the
exclusive right to sell the Ferrari and Maseratirtat of vehicles and related parts and servicesuatdealership in China. The
agreements also typically grant the exclusive Beeto use each manufacturer’s trademarks, senacksnand designs in connection
with our sales and service of its brands in ouigiheged territories at our dealership. Some offoamchise agreements are renewed
annually. The agreements also permit the manufactor terminate or not renew the agreement forreetyaof causes, including
failure to adequately operate the dealership, Wesay or bankruptcy, impairment of the dealer’sutegion or financial standing,
changes in the dealership’s management, ownerxatidn without consent, failure to maintain adegueorking capital, changes in
the dealership’s financial or other condition, dad to submit required information to the manufestwon a timely basis, failure to
have any permit or license necessary to operatédakership, and material breaches of other prmvssof the agreement.
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Store Operations

With the appointment of the Nanjing dealershipha Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone in 2008, Tect@mt now has
eight authorized showrooms and after-sales padsarvice facilities throughout Hong Kong, Macand £hina.

Year

Opened/

Location Store Franchises Acquired
Hong Kong Tokwawan Ferrari & Maserati 1975
Hong Kong Causeway Bay Ferrari 1998
Hong Kong Tai Kok Tsui Ferrari & Maserati 1990
Hong Kong Ap Lei Chau Ferrari & Maserati 2005
Hong Kong Wanchai Maserati 2005
China Dalian Ferrari & Maserati 2006
China Dalian Ferrari & Maserati 2008
China Nanjing Ferrari & Maserati 2008

After-sale Service and Parts

Technorient’'s automotive service and parts opeanatére an integral part of establishing customgaltg and contribute
significantly to our overall revenue and profitechnorient’s service philosophy has always beeedasound a racing team type
support structure, with 24 hour service, sparespantd consultation. This approach, developed fioenaiuto racing background of
Technorient’s key principals, has proven to be rycessful in building long-term relationshipshwitealthy clients.

We provide parts and service primarily for the weéhibrands sold by our stores, but we also semiher vehicles. In
2008, our service, body and parts operations gtateepproximately $7.3 million in revenues, or 6tatal revenues of Technorient.
We set prices to reflect the varying difficulty thfe types of repair and the cost and availabilftparts. Revenues from the service
and parts departments are particularly importamingueconomic downturns as owners tend to repair texisting used vehicles
rather than buy new vehicles during such periodss Timits the effects of a drop in new vehicleesathat may occur in a slow
economic environment.  Technorient’s focus oniseradvisor training, as well as a number of pgcamd cost saving initiatives
across the entire service and parts business liaes, led to improvements in same-store servicepand sales in 2008 compared to
2007, as well as improvements in gross profit nrergichieved. Further, our focus on satisfying dlient in both the sales and
after-sales areas has led to consistently highdesferecommendation and endorsement, and additenma repeat business, all of
which has benefited Technorient for over thirtyrgea
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SUPPLIERS

Our major suppliers are as follows:

ITEM SOURCE AND LOCATION
Ferrari automobiles and automobile parts FeBariA., Maranello, Italy
Maserati automobiles and automobile parts Maserati S.p.A., Modena, Italy
AgustaWestland helicopters (1) Agusta S.p.A., Italy
Men’s and women’s Ready-to-Wear John Richmond, Rafd X Falber Confezioni S.r.l., Italy.

and Richmond Denim apparel

(1) We anticipate that delivery of AgustaWestland togters will begin in early 2010.

SEASONAL VARIATIONS

Our business is modestly seasonal overall. Ouratipess generally experience higher volumes of Jetsales in the
fourth fiscal quarter of each year due in part snofacturers’ production and delivery patterns.

ADVERTISING

Technorient’s commitment to maintaining the higHesels of service facilities and after sales sas supplemented by
an active promotional program complemented by medéemnts and classic/performance car rallies. Tedmiois also supporting the
development of a “Worldwide Super Car Club” bastthe international track facilities in Zhuhai, &ed in southern China. This
Club is being developed to service the “recreationaing” requirements of the Group’s ultra hight meorth clients and will
showcase its key brands and luxury lifestyle coht@mpemerging Chinese patrons.

We also conduct extensive product promotional adbieg in several venues:

« Local television exposure;
« City promotional materials;
o Local print media; and

« On-site point-of-purchase.

We also maintain a web site (www.chinapremiumlifistom) that generates leads and provides infoomdbr our
customers. We use the Internet site as a markatwigo familiarize customers with us, our storesl ahe products we sell, rather
than to complete purchases. Although many customsesthe Internet to research information about neWicles, nearly all
ultimately visit a store to complete the sale aldtdelivery of the vehicle.
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BACKLOG ORDERS

The limited supply of cars by Ferrari and Masefatitories is a worldwide phenomenon due to thetdichiproduction
capacity. We have many customers who have paidi¢pesit and prepared to wait for years for new.cassa result, the backlog
orders arise. Our backlog as of December 31, 2088 approximately $241.8 million compared to apprmtely $178.9 million at
December 31, 2007.

MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS

We consolidate financial, accounting and othervaahé data received from our operations in Hong Kdvigcau and
China through a private communication system.

COMPETITION

A major weakness in the automotive sector in Cligna lack of customer service skills, with mostldes content to
simply sell cars, with limited, if any, after salesrvice and support. One of Technorient’s majmnsiths is its ability to focus on
customer service, capitalizing on more than 30 yedrexperience in Hong Kong and Macau, which mesiit with a distinct
advantage in China.

In new and used vehicle sales, our operations ctamgrémarily with other franchised dealerships wfury vehicles in
their regions. We rely on advertising and merchsindi sales expertise, service reputation, streaagdnames and location of our
operations to sell new vehicles. SeRisk Factors — OTHER BUSINESS OPERATING RISKS -- S$ibstantial competition in
automobile sales may adversely affect our profitabty due to our need to lower prices to sustain sak and profitability .”

We compete with other automobile dealers and friaechand independent service centers for non-wigrrapair and
routine maintenance business. We believe that tfiecipal competitive factors in parts and servicgles are the use of
factory-approved replacement parts, price, the lfarty with a manufacturer’'s brands and modelsd &me quality of customer
service.

We compete with other business entities for deliprsghts in different areas of China. Some of oampetitors may
have greater financial resources and competitionimaease the cost of acquiring such dealersigiftsi

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Technorient is subject to environmental laws amil&ions in Hong Kong, Macau and China, includingse governing
discharges into the air and water, the operati@hramoval of aboveground and underground storagestdhe use, handling, storage
and disposal of hazardous substances and otheriaimtnd the investigation and remediation of aanihation. As with automotive
dealerships generally, and service, parts and Bbdp operations in particular, this business ineslthe generation, use, handling
and contracting for recycling or disposal of hapagl or toxic substances or wastes, including enwientally sensitive materials
such as motor oil, waste motor oil and filtersnsaission fluid, antifreeze, refrigerant, wastenpand lacquer thinner, batteries,
solvents, lubricants, degreasing agents, gasohdedé&sel fuels. Similar to many of our competifdfechnorient has incurred and
will continue to incur, capital and operating exgitares and other costs in complying with such lawd regulations. Various health
and safety standards also apply to our operations.
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We believe that Technorient does not have any mah&mvironmental liabilities and that compliancghnenvironmental
laws and regulations will not, individually or ihe aggregate, have a material adverse effect omesuits of operations, financial
condition or cash flows. However, environmentaldaand regulations are complex and subject to chdngaddition, in connection
with the opening of any new dealerships, it is fmdeshat we will assume or become subject to newrdoreseen environmental
costs or liabilities, some of which may be mater@mpliance with current, amended, new or mor@gtnt laws or regulations,
stricter interpretations of existing laws or théufe discovery of environmental conditions coulduiee additional expenditures, and
such expenditures could be material.

REGULATION

Our automobile business is subject to regulatiapesvision and licensing under Hong Kong, Macawl @hinese laws,
ordinances and regulations. A number of regulatmffesct our business of marketing, selling, andiiserg automobiles. Under the
laws of the jurisdictions in which we currently ogie or into which we may expand, we typically molstain a license in order to
establish, operate or relocate a dealership orabpem automotive repair service, including dealaltes and/or automotive repair
business licenses issued by relevant authoritiessd laws also regulate our conduct of busineskidimg our advertising, operating,
employment and sales practices. Other laws andatégs include franchise laws and regulations sland regulations applicable to
motor vehicle dealers, as well as wage-hour, dstiriinination and other employment practices lawe actively make efforts to
assure compliance with these regulations.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2008, we employed approxima2ely persons. We believe we have good relationshiths our
employees. We are not party or subject to any ciblle bargaining agreements.

REPORTS TO SECURITY HOLDERS

We are subject to the informational requirementSedétion 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act @&41%Accordingly,
we file annual, quarterly and other reports andnmiation with the Securities and Exchange Commissit@u may read and copy
these reports and other information we file at 8ezurities and Exchange Commission’s public ref@emom in Washington,
D.C. Our filings are also available to the pulflam commercial document retrieval services andlttiernet worldwide website
maintained by the Securities and Exchange Comnmmissiovww.sec.gov. You may also request copies ofonual reports on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current répan Form 8-K and amendments to those reportd fitefurnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) freelzfrge as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such matewith, or furnish it to, the SEC by requestingpies of such reports in writing.
Such written requests shall be made to our corpaetretary and sent to our executive officesaattdress set forth on the cover
page of this Form 10-K.
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Our principle executive office is located at 1¥#p Kee Hong Building 585-609 Castle Peak Road, K@hiing, N.T.
Hong Kong. Our website is http://www.chinapremiifestyle.com , our phone number is (852) 2954-2468 our email address is
jasona@chinapremiumlifestyle.com .

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following information describes certain sigodit risks and uncertainties inherent in our bissin&ome of these
risks are described below and in the documentsrocated by reference in this prospectus, and ymuld take these risks into
account in evaluating us or any investment decisigolving us. This section does not describeisks applicable to us, our industry
or our business, and it is intended only as a summfcertain material factors.You should carefully consider such risks and
uncertainties, together with the other informaticontained herein and in the documents incorpordtecktin by reference. If any of
the following risks and uncertainties, or if anyhet disclosed risks and uncertainties, actually ws¢ our business, financial
condition or operating results could be harmed sabgally.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
Deteriorating global economic conditions may affecbur financial results, harming our business.

As our business has expanded, we have become simggBasubject to the risks arising from adversarges in domestic and
global economic and political conditions. Globabeomic conditions have deteriorated over the pagerml quarters, particularly
during our most recent fiscal quarter that ende®eocember 31, 2008. This has led to our custonmefiexihg, reducing or cancelling
purchases in response to tighter credit and negdinancial news. These factors have negativelyaictgd our business and our
financial results.

If global economic conditions continue to deteriereor our customers continue to perceive uncestamglobal economic
conditions, many of our customers may further detagluce or cancel purchases of luxury items. Taisld result in further
reductions in sales of our products, longer sajekes, slower adoption of new models and produetsiacreased price competition.

These actions have and may continue to negatingbact our business, financial results and finaregaldition.
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The actions that we are taking in response to thdapal economic slowdown and our related businessostdown may be costly
and may not be as effective as anticipated.

We are taking actions to reduce our cost strudimm@ore closely align our costs with our revenuele. In taking these
actions, we are attempting to balance the cosuodh $nitiatives against the longer term benefitsath initiatives. This will incur
additional costs in the short term that may haeeetfect of reducing our operating margins. If veenibt achieve the proper balance
of these cost reduction initiatives, we may elindneritical elements of our operations, the loss/bich could negatively impact our
ability to benefit from an economic recovery. Wamat assure that our cost cutting efforts will @slei appropriate levels of expenses
and we may take additional actions in the future.

In addition, we are taking actions to stimulate dach through a number of marketing initiatives. Alilgh we are
attempting to balance the cost of these prograragsigthe longer term benefits, it is possible thatwill make such investments
without a corresponding increase in demand forppaducts. This would reduce our operating margimstzave a negative impact on
our financial results.

The recent global credit and banking crisis may futher negatively affect our business, results of opa&tions, and financial
condition.

The recent global financial crisis affecting thenkiag system and financial markets and the goingcem threats to
investment banks and other financial institutioaséhresulted in a tightening in the credit markatiw level of liquidity in many
financial markets, and extreme volatility in mamyahcial instrument markets. Our business has bepacted by these events and
may be further impacted by: the insolvency of kéwarmel partners impairing our distribution channelsunterparty failures
negatively impacting our treasury functions, ingéhgdtimely access to our cash reserves; and inede@spense or inability to obtain
short-term financing if banks providing our line@gdit are unable to lend us money when it is adédr our operations.

Our business and the automotive retail industry ingeneral are susceptible to adverse economic conaditis, including changes
in consumer confidence and changes in fuel pricesa credit availability, which could have a materialadverse effect on our
business, revenues and profitability.

We believe the automotive retail industry is infiged by general economic conditions and particulbyl consumer
confidence, the level of personal discretionarynsiigy, interest rates, fuel prices, unemploymen¢sraand credit availability.
Historically, unit sales of motor vehicles, partanly new and used vehicles, have been cyclicattfiating with general economic
cycles. During economic downturns, retail new vishgales typically experience periods of declinarabterized by oversupply and
weak demand. Although incentive programs initialyd manufacturers may abate these historical tretids,automotive retail
industry may experience sustained periods of dedfinvehicle sales in the future. Any decline oarde of this type could have a
material adverse effect on our business, reverass, flows and profitability.

Fuel prices may affect consumer preferences in ection with the purchase of our vehicles. Consumeay be less
likely to purchase more expensive vehicles, suclhpagy automobiles and more likely to purchase lfgndess expensive vehicles.
Further increases in fuel prices could have a rnaiadverse effect on our business, revenues,ftask and profitability.

In addition, local economic, competitive and otleenditions affect the performance of our operatiddsr revenues,
cash flows and profitability depend substantialty general economic conditions and spending habitdang Kong, Macau and in
those regions of China where Technorient maintisnsperations.
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RISKS RELATED TO AUTOMOTIVE MANUFACTURERS
If we fail to obtain a desirable mix of popular newvehicles from manufacturers our profitability will be negatively affected.

We depend on the manufacturers to provide us witbserable mix of new vehicles. The most populdricles usually
produce the highest profit margins and are fredyedifficult to obtain from the manufacturers. Ife€hnorient cannot obtain
sufficient quantities of the most popular modelsr profitability may be adversely affected. Salédess desirable models may
reduce our profit margins. Some principals gengralllocate their vehicles amongst their importastfibutors based on their sales
history. If our operations experience prolongeésalumps, our allocation of popular vehicles maydduced and new vehicle sales
and profits may decline. Similarly, the deliverywahicles, particularly newer, more popular vehicigom manufacturers at a time
later than scheduled could lead to reduced salésglthose periods.

Adverse conditions affecting one or more automotivenanufacturers may negatively impact our revenuesral profitability.

Our success depends on the overall success ah#heflvehicles that each of our operations s@ksa result, our success
depends to a great extent on the automotive matuuéas’ financial condition, marketing, vehicle @ps production and distribution
capabilities, reputation, management and labotiogis. In 2008, sales of new Ferrari and Maseratbanted for 52% and 29%,
respectively, of Technorient’s total revenues. gndficant decline in the sale of new vehicles praetliby these manufacturers, or the
loss or deterioration of our relationships with aremore of these manufacturers, could have a mbtmverse affect on our results
of operations, financial condition or cash flowsieBts such as labor strikes that may adverselyctatiemanufacturer may also
materially adversely affect us. In particular, lalstrikes at a manufacturer or supplier that car@ifor a substantial period of time
could have a material adverse affect on our busin8snilarly, the delivery of vehicles from manufarers at a time later than
scheduled, which may occur particularly during pesi of new product introductions, has led, anda@ukhe future lead, to reduced
sales during those periods. In addition, any etleat causes adverse publicity involving one or meutomotive manufacturers or
their vehicles may have a material adverse affeaw results of operations, financial conditiorcash flows.

If we fail to obtain renewals of one or more of ourfranchise agreements on favorable terms or substéial franchises are
terminated, our operations may be significantly im@ired.

Each of our businesses operates under a franchiseraent with one of our manufacturers (or autledridistributor).

Without a franchise agreement, we cannot obtain vedvicles from a manufacturer. As a result, wesggaificantly dependent on our
relationships with these manufacturers, which eéger@ great degree of influence over our operatibmesugh the franchise
agreements. Each of our franchise agreements magribenated or not renewed by the manufactureraforariety of reasons,
including any unapproved changes of ownership aragament and other material breaches of the fraaddreements. We cannot
guarantee all of our franchise agreements willdrewed or that the terms of the renewals will béassrable to us as our current
agreements. In addition, actions taken by manufaciuto exploit their bargaining position in negtitig the terms of renewals of
franchise agreements or otherwise could also hawatarial adverse effect on our revenues and piufity.
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Our results of operations may be materially and adgrsely affected to the extent that Technorient’s finchise rights become
compromised or our operations restricted due to theerms of our franchise agreements or if we lose bstantial franchises.

Technorient’s franchise agreements with Ferrari Maderati do not give us the exclusive right td getir products
within China. As a result, the Shanghai JV may ampadditional dealers in neighboring cities thatynindirectly compete against us.
The appointment of new dealerships near our egistiealership could materially adversely affect operations and reduce the
profitability of our existing dealership.

Our success depends upon the continued viability droverall success of a limited number of manufactars.

The following table sets forth the percentage of mew vehicle retail unit sales attributable to thanufacturers we
represented during 2008 that accounted for 100&uohew vehicle retail unit sales:

Percentage of New Vehicle Retalil
Units Sold during the Twelve Months Ended

Manufacturer December 31, 2008
Ferrari 4€%
Maserati 54%

Ferrari and Maserati vehicles represented 100% of ar total new vehicle retail units sold in 2008. Weare subject to a
concentration of risk in the event of financial disress, including potential bankruptcy, of these veltle manufacturers.

In the event of a bankruptcy by a vehicle manufeetuamong other things: (1) the manufacturer catteémpt to
terminate all or certain of our franchises, andmagy not receive adequate compensation for thenwé2nay not be able to collect
some or all of our significant receivables that dwe from such manufacturer and we may be sulgjegptdference claims relating to
payments made by such manufacturer prior to bam&yu3) such manufacturer may be unable to mainéai adequate, or any,
supply of vehicles, and (4) consumer demand foh snanufacturer’s products could be materially asebraffected.

Vehicle manufacturers may be adversely impacteddmypomic downturns or recessions, significant desliin the sales
of their new vehicles, increases in interest ratesglines in their credit ratings, labor strikessonilar disruptions (including within
their major suppliers), supply shortages or rigisly material costs, rising employee benefit castiserse publicity that may reduce
consumer demand for their products (including dubankruptcy), product defects, vehicle recall caigips, litigation, poor product
mix or unappealing vehicle design, or other advessnts. These and other risks could materiallyeesbly affect any manufacturer
and impact its ability to profitably design, marketoduce or distribute new vehicles, which in toould materially adversely affect
our business, results of operations, financial d¢@rd stockholders’ equity, cash flows and progpec
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Automotive manufacturers exercise significant contol over our operations and we depend on them in oat to operate our
business.

Manufacturers exercise a great degree of contret our operations. For example, manufacturers equire us to meet
specified standards of appearance, require us & specified financial criteria such as maintenasfcainimum net working capital
and, in some cases, minimum net worth, impose miningustomer service and satisfaction standardsstaetlards regarding the
maintenance of inventories of vehicles and partsgovern the extent to which our businesses cdimeuthe manufacturers’ names
and trademarks. In many cases the manufacturergoosent to the replacement of the principal.

If manufacturers discontinue sales incentives, waanties and other promotional programs, our resultsof operations may be
materially adversely affected.

We depend on our manufacturers for sales incentmesranties and other programs that are intendegromote
dealership sales or support dealership profitgbiManufacturers historically have made many chartgetheir incentive programs
during each year. Some of the key incentive prograntiude:

« incentives on new vehicles; and

- warranties on new and used vehicles.
A discontinuation or change in our manufacturansentive programs could adversely affect our bissine

Our manufacturers generally require that our premises meet defined image and facility standards and mgadirect us to
implement costly capital improvements as a conditio for renewing certain franchise agreements. All othese requirements
could impose significant capital expenditures on us the future.

Pursuant to our franchise agreements, our opesa@oa required to maintain a certain minimum wagkaapital, as
determined by the manufacturers. This requirementidcforce us to utilize available capital to maint manufacturer-required
working capital levels thereby limiting our abilitg apply profits generated from one subsidiaryuse in other subsidiaries or, in
some cases, at the parent company. These facittwes; @lone or in combination, could cause us tediour financial resources to
capital projects from uses that management belimagsbe of higher long-term value to us.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR ACQUISITION STRATEGY

Growth in our revenues and earnings will be impactd by our ability to acquire and successfully integate and operate more
dealerships in China.

Growth in our revenues and earnings depends sutadhaion our ability to acquire and successfultyegrate and operate
more dealerships in China. We cannot guaranteest@atill be able to identify and acquire or estsbldealerships in the future. In
addition, we cannot guarantee that any acquisitigiisbe successful or on terms and conditions txteat with past acquisitions.
Restrictions by our manufacturers, as well as camtncontained in our debt instruments, may diyemtlindirectly limit our ability
to acquire additional dealerships. In addition,réased competition for acquisitions may developictvlcould result in fewer
acquisition opportunities available to us and/oghleir acquisition prices. Some of our competitorsy rhave greater financial
resources than us.

We will continue to need capital in order to acquie or open additional dealerships. In the past, wedve financed these
acquisitions with a combination of cash flow from perations and proceeds from borrowings under our cedit facilities.

We currently intend to finance future acquisitiomrsopen new dealerships by using cash and issuiages of our
common stock as partial consideration for acquitedlerships. The use of common stock as considarétir acquisitions will
depend on three factors: (1) the market value ofommmon stock at the time of the acquisition, tf@) willingness of potential
acquisition candidates to accept common stock dsopdhe consideration for the sale of their besses, and (3) our determination
of what is in our best interests. If potential asgion candidates are unwilling to accept our camnnstock, we will rely solely on
available cash or proceeds from debt or equityniiinggs, which could adversely affect our acquisitmrogram. Accordingly, our
ability to make acquisitions could be adverselgeiféd if the price of our common stock is depressed

In addition, managing and integrating additional dealerships into our existing mix of dealerships mayesult in substantial
costs, diversion of our management’s attention, days, or other operational or financial problems.

Acquisitions involve a number of special risks,litting:

« incurring significantly higher capital expenditur@sd operating expenses;

« failing to integrate the operations and personhéh® new or acquired dealerships;
« entering new markets with which we are not familiar

« incurring undiscovered liabilities at new or acedidealerships;

« disrupting our ongoing business;
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« failing to obtain or retain key personnel at nevaoquired dealerships;
« impairing relationships with employees, manufaatisnd customers; and
« incorrectly valuing acquired entities,

some or all of which could have a material advexfect on our business, financial condition, cietvs and results of operations.
Although we conduct what we believe to be a prudewel of investigation regarding the operating dition of the businesses we
purchase in light of the circumstances of eachstation, an unavoidable level of risk remains réigay the actual operating
condition of these businesses.

Acquiring legal entities, as opposed to only desdlgr assets, may subject us to unforeseen ligsilthat we are unable to
detect prior to completing the acquisition or llalds that turn out to be greater than those we évgpected. These liabilities may
include liabilities of the prior owner or operatibrat arise from environmental laws for which we,aasuccessor owner, will be
responsible. Until we actually assume operatingrobof such business assets, we may not be alaledertain the actual value of the
acquired entity.

If we lose key personnel or are unable to attract @ditional qualified personnel, our business could & adversely affected
because we rely on the industry knowledge and relianships of our key personnel.

We believe our success depends to a significamnéxtpon the efforts and abilities of our executdfficers, senior
management and key employees. Additionally, ouinass is dependent upon our ability to continuatteact and retain qualified
personnel, including the management of acquiretedsaps. The market for qualified employees inititustry and in the regions in
which we operate, particularly for general managerd sales and service personnel, is highly comyeet@nd may subject us to
increased labor costs during periods of low unegmpknt.

The unexpected or unanticipated loss of the sesvaf®ne or more members of our senior managereani tould have
a material adverse effect on us and materially imtbee efficiency and productivity of our operatioriWe do not have key man
insurance for any of our executive officers or keysonnel. In addition, the loss of any of our keyployees or the failure to attract
gualified managers could have a material advergetebn our business and may materially impactatbidity of our dealerships to
conduct their operations.

OTHER BUSINESS OPERATING RISKS
Changes in interest rates could adversely impact oyrofitability.

Some of our borrowings under various credit faeilitbear variable interest rates. Therefore, derést expense will rise
with increases in interest rates. Rising interatts may also have the effect of depressing deinaheé interest rate sensitive aspects
of our business, particularly new and used velsgeles, because some of our customers financeutigicle purchases. As a result,
rising interest rates may have the effect of siemdbusly increasing our costs and reducing ountes
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Our insurance does not fully cover all of our opertional risks, and changes in the cost of insurancer the availability of
insurance could materially increase our insuranceasts or result in a decrease in our insurance covage.

The operation of automobile dealerships is sulifecbmpliance with a wide range of laws and regoitet and is subject
to a broad variety of risks. While we have someiiasce coverage including material property dansagepublic liability insurance,
we are self-insured for a portion of our potentiabilities. In certain instances, our insuranceymat fully cover an insured loss
depending on the magnitude and nature of the cladditionally, changes in the cost of insuranceha availability of insurance in
the future could substantially increase our castmaintain our current level of coverage or couddse us to reduce our insurance
coverage and increase the portion of our riskswleeself-insure.

We are subject to a number of risks associated wittmporting vehicles.

Our business involves the sale of new and usedcleshivehicle parts or vehicles composed of paret @re
manufactured outside China, Hong Kong and MacauaAsgsult, our operations are subject to customials associated with
imported merchandise, including fluctuations in tredue of currencies, import duties, exchange absitdiffering tax structures,
trade restrictions, transportation costs, work gages and general political and economic conditiorigreign countries.

The countries from which our products are imporeay, from time to time, impose new quotas, dutiasffs or other
restrictions, or adjust presently prevailing quotigies or tariffs on imported merchandise. Anythafse impositions or adjustments
could affect our operations and our ability to pase imported vehicles and parts at reasonablespnichich could have an adverse
effect on our business.

The seasonality of the automobile retail businessagnifies the importance of our fourth quarter resuts.

The automobile industry experiences seasonal i@mgin revenues. In Hong Kong, a higher amountedficle sales
generally occurs in the fourth fiscal quarter otlegear due in part to manufacturers’ productiod derlivery patterns, and the
introduction of new vehicle models. Therefore,ahditions surface in the fourth quarter that dep@saffect automotive sales, such
as major geopolitical events, high fuel costs, deped economic conditions or similar adverse cimmdit our revenues for the year
may be disproportionately adversely affected.

Substantial competition in automotive sales and seices may adversely affect our profitability due toour need to lower prices
to sustain sales and profitability.

The automotive retail industry is highly competti\Depending on the geographic market, we compigie w
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« franchised automotive dealerships in our marketsgbll similar makes of new and used vehicleswleabffer,
occasionally at lower prices than we do;

« other national or regional affiliated groups ofrfchised dealerships;
« private market buyers and sellers of used vehicled;

« independent service and repair shops.

As we seek to acquire or establish dealershipginmarkets, we may face significant competitionvasstrive to gain
market share. Some of our competitors may havdegréaancial, marketing and personnel resourcesl@amer overhead and sales
costs than we have. We typically rely on advergismerchandising, sales expertise, service reputatid dealership location in
order to sell new vehicles. Although our franchageeements with Ferrari and Maserati grant ugxctisive right to sell their
products within certain geographic areas, our regerand profitability may be materially and advirséfected if competing
dealerships expand their market share or are adadiditional franchises by manufacturers that suppt dealerships.

In addition to competition for vehicle sales, owatkrships compete with independent garages fomweoranty repair
and routine maintenance business. Our dealersbippate with other automotive dealers, service starel auto parts retailers in
their parts operations. We believe that the priglcgmmpetitive factors in service and parts satestlae quality of customer service,
the use of factory-approved replacement parts,li@nity with a manufacturer's brands and models)vanience, the competence of
technicians, location, and price.

We are currently involved in legal proceedings andhe outcome is uncertain.

As discussed in greater detail in Part |, Item 8g&l Proceedings) of this Report, we are currentiglved in a lawsuit in the United

States District Court, Central District of Califeanin which we have asserted claims for Securkiesid, Breach of Contract, Fraud,
Conversion, Unjust Enrichment, Constructive Trigteach of Fiduciary Duty and Declaratory Relief iagh certain defendants,

including certain current and former officers anectors of the Company. The Company expectsdlaéins for estoppels, slander
of title, conversion and constructive trust will beserted against the Company in this litigatidrhile we deny any such alleged
wrongdoing and will vigorously defend these claiifhey are asserted in the lawsuit, we are unabkevaluate the likelihood of an

outcome, favorable or unfavorable, to the Compariiia time or to estimate the amount or range pdssible loss.

Due to the nature of the automotive retailing busiess, we may be involved in legal proceedings or fiflosses that could have
a material adverse effect on our business.

We will continue to be involved in legal proceedirig the ordinary course of business. A signifigadgment against us,
the loss of a significant license or permit, or itmposition of a significant fine could have a mi@kadverse effect on our business,
financial condition and future prospects. In aduiifiit is possible that we could suffer lossesdhiidual dealerships due to fraud or
theft.
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We are subject to substantial regulation which maydversely affect our profitability and significantly increase our costs in the
future.

A number of laws and regulations affect our busin®ge are also subject to laws and regulationgimgldo business
corporations generally. Any failure to comply witiese laws and regulations may result in the assagsof administrative, civil, or
criminal penalties, the imposition of remedial ghlions or the issuance of injunctions limitingpsohibiting our operations. We
must obtain various licenses in order to operateboginesses, including dealer, sales, financeirsutance-related licenses issued
by authorities. These laws also regulate our canalulbusiness, including our advertising, operatfiftancing, employment and sales
practices.

We are subject to a wide range of environmentasland regulations, including those governing disgésinto the air
and water, the operation and removal of undergraamdl aboveground storage tanks, the use, handliingage and disposal of
hazardous substances and other materials, andhbstigation and remediation of contamination. Athvautomotive dealerships
generally, and service, parts and body shop opesin particular, our business involves the us®age, handling and contracting
for recycling or disposal of hazardous materialsmastes and other environmentally sensitive mdserfaperations involving the
management of hazardous and non-hazardous matngassibject to Chinese, Hong Kong and Macau emviemtal regulations and
statutes. Similar to many of our competitors, weehimcurred and will continue to incur, capital asgerating expenditures and other
costs in complying with such environmental laws eggllations.

Further, environmental laws and regulations are ptermand subject to change. In addition, in coripectvith any
acquisitions or openings of new dealerships, jfdassible that we will assume or become subjecet® or unforeseen environmental
costs or liabilities, some of which may be materialconnection with our dispositions, or priortsitions made by companies we
acquire, we may retain exposure for environmergatcand liabilities, some of which may be matekiéé may be required to make
material additional expenditures to comply withstixig or future laws or regulations, or as a restilthe future discovery of
environmental conditions.

Our indebtedness and lease obligations could matetly adversely affect our financial health, limit aur ability to finance future
acquisitions and capital expenditures, and prevenis from fulfilling our financial obligations.

Our indebtedness and lease obligations could mapertant consequences to you, including the folhauwi

« our ability to obtain additional financing for adsjtions, capital expenditures, working capitalgeneral corpora
purposes may be impaired in the future;

« aportion of our current cash flow from operatiomsst be dedicated to the paymenpdhcipal on our indebtedne
thereby reducing the funds available to us foraperations and other purposes;

« some of our borrowings are and will continue todbevariable rates of interest, which exposes uthéorisk o
increasing interest rates; and
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« we may be substantially more leveraged than sonoeio€ompetitors, which may place us at a relatimepetitive
disadvantage and make us more vulnerable to chaumgamket conditions and regulations.

Adverse conditions affecting the manufacturers mayegatively impact our profitability.

The success of each of our businesses dependgéatextent on vehicle manufacturers’
- financial condition;

« marketing efforts;

- vehicle design;

« production capabilities;

« reputation;

« management; and

- labor relations.

Adverse conditions affecting these and other ingrdraspects of manufacturers’ operations and publations may
adversely affect our ability to market their autdmhes to the public and, as a result, significardiyd adversely affect our
profitability.

Fluctuation in the value of Renminbi, the Macau Paica and Hong Kong Dollar relative to other currencés may have a
material adverse effect on our business and/or anvestment in our shares.

The value of RMB, Hong Kong Dollar and the MacautaRa against the U.S. dollar and other currenciag fhuctuate
and is affected by, among other things, changepolitical and economic conditions. Since 1994, doaversion of Renminbi
(“RMB”) into foreign currencies, including Hong Kgrand U.S. dollars, has been based on rates sbeteople’s Bank of China,
or PBOC, which are set daily based on the previtayés Chinese interbank foreign exchange marketaatl current exchange rates
on the world financial markets. Since 1994, théc@ff exchange rate for the conversion of RMB t&Udollars has generally been
stable. On July 21, 2005, however, PBOC announaefioam of its exchange rate system. Under thermef&enminbi is no longer
effectively linked to US dollars but instead isoaled to trade in a tight 0.3% band against a baskfetreign currencies. If the RMB
were to increase in value against the U.S. doftar,example, mainland Chinese consumers would éxpes a reduction in the
relative prices of goods and services, which magdiate into a positive increase in sales. On therdand, a decrease in the value
of the RMB against the dollar would have the opeosiffect and may adversely affect our results pérations. Any significant
revaluation of RMB may materially and adverselyeaffour cash flows, revenues, earnings and finaposition, and the value of,
and any dividends payments. For example, an amii@ciof RMB against the U.S. dollar or Hong Kongllars would make any
new RMB denominated investments or expendituresensostly to us, to the extent that we need to carveS. dollars or Hong
Kong dollars into RMB for such purposes. In addifia strengthening of the U.S. dollar against tbeddKong Dollar or the Macau
Pataca, if it occurred, would adversely affectihkrie of your investment.
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Our Business is Primarily Reliant on the Businessfarechnorient.

Our primary business is our 49% ownership intemestechnorient. As a result, our financial reswlte substantially
dependent on the operational and financial resoftsTechnorient. In the event that sales trends @ynemic conditions for
Technorient decline, our financial results may teerially adversely affected.

RISKS RELATED TO DOING BUSINESS IN CHINA

Although only a small proportion of our businessusrently conducted in China, it is our intenttonexpand our
business portfolio in China in the future, in whitdse, the following risk factors should be addrdss

Adverse changes in economic and political policied Chinese government could have a material adversdfect on the overall
economic growth of China, which could adversely affct our business.

A portion of our business operations are curreatigducted in China. Accordingly, our results of igiens, financial
condition and prospects are subject to a signifid@gree to economic, political and legal developimén China. China’s economy
differs from the economies of most developed coestin many respects, including the amount of govent involvement, level of
development, growth rate, control of foreign examrand allocation of resources. While the Chinexenemy has experienced
significant growth in the past 20 years, growth basn uneven across different regions and amorngugeconomic sectors of China.
The Chinese government has implemented various uresmgo encourage economic development and guigealibcation of
resources. Some of these measures benefit thegeh&menomy, but may also have a negative effeasoRor example, our financial
condition and results of operations may be adveraffected by government control over capital inments or changes in tax
regulations that are applicable to us. Since €034, the Chinese government has implemented cartaasures to control the pace
of economic growth. Such measures may cause aatecie the level of economic activity in China, @hin turn could adversely
affect our results of operations and financial dthod.
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Our operations in China are subject to restrictionson paying dividends and making other payments tosu

Regulations in China currently permit payment afiditnds only out of accumulated profits, as detaediin accordance
with Chinese accounting standards and regulatideshnorient is also required to set aside a portibtheir after-tax profits
according to Chinese accounting standards and atigo$ to fund certain reserve funds. The Chineaseegiment also imposes
controls on the conversion of Renminbi into foreigurrencies and the remittance of currencies ouCliha. Technorient may
experience difficulties in completing the admirégive procedures necessary to obtain and remiigio@rrency. Furthermore, if our
operations in China incur debt on their own infilneire, the instruments governing the debt mayrictgheir ability to pay dividends
or make other payments. If we are unable to receaileof the revenues from our operations throughtextual or dividend
arrangements, we may be unable to pay dividendsrtgtockholders.

Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our albity to receive and use our revenues effectively.

Because some of our revenues are in the form ofiRdm, any future restrictions on currency exchangey limit our
ability to use revenue generated in Renminbi tadfamy future business activities outside Chinacomiake dividend or other
payments in U.S. dollars. Although the Chinese gawent introduced regulations in 1996 to allow tgeaonvertibility of the
Renminbi for current account transactions, sigaificrestrictions still remain, including primartlye restriction that foreign-invested
enterprises may only buy, sell or remit foreignreacies, after providing valid commercial documeatsthose banks authorized to
conduct foreign exchange business. In additionyersion of Renminbi for capital account items, intthg direct investment and
loans, is subject to government approval in Charal companies are required to open and maintaiaratepforeign exchange
accounts for capital account items. We cannot btaicethat the Chinese regulatory authorities witit impose more stringent
restrictions on the convertibility of the Renminegpecially with respect to foreign exchange tretisas.

We face risks related to health epidemics and otheyutbreaks.

Our business could be adversely affected by theceffof avian influenza, SARS or another epidemiowbreak. In
2005 and 2006, there have been reports on the recoss of avian influenza in various parts of Chinaluding a few confirmed
human cases. Any prolonged recurrence of avianenfta, SARS or other adverse public health devetogsrin China may have a
material adverse effect on our business operatieos.instance, health or other government reguiatiadopted in response to an
epidemic or outbreak may require temporary closdireur offices and dealerships. Such closures weelgtrely disrupt our business
operations and adversely affect our results of atpmrs. We have not adopted any written preventieasures or contingency plans
to combat any future outbreak of avian influenzaRS or any other epidemic.

We may be unable to enforce our rights due to polies regarding the regulation of foreign investmenté China.

China’s legal system is a civil law system basedwoitten statutes in which decided legal cases Hitle value as
precedents, unlike the common law system prevabehie United States. China does not have a weltld@ed, consolidated body of
laws governing foreign investment enterprises. Assallt, the administration of laws and regulatibgggovernment agencies may be
subject to considerable discretion and variation may be subject to influence by external forcelated to the legal merits of a
particular matter. China’s regulations and policiéth respect to foreign investments are evolviDgfinitive regulations and policies
with respect to such matters as the permissibleepgaige of foreign investment and permissible rate=quity returns have not yet
been published. Statements regarding these evopdligies have been conflicting and any such pedicas administered, are likely
to be subject to broad interpretation and discneéind to be modified, perhaps on a case-by-cade. Gd® uncertainties regarding
such regulations and policies present risks that affect our ability to achieve our business ohjed. If we are unable to enforce
any legal rights we may have under our contractstioerwise, our ability to compete with other comipa in our industry could be
materially and negatively affected.
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It may be difficult for stockholders to enforce anyjudgment obtained in the United States against usyhich may limit the
remedies otherwise available to our stockholders.

Our assets are located outside the United Stateslanf Technorient’s current operations are caned in Hong Kong,
Macau and in China. Moreover, four of our directarsl all of our officers are nationals or resideostsHong Kong. All or a
substantial portion of the assets of these persmasiocated outside the United States. As a redufhay be difficult for our
stockholders to effect service of process withim thnited States upon these persons. In additiene tils uncertainty as to whether the
courts of China would recognize or enforce judgrearftU.S. courts obtained against us or such affiemd/or directors predicated
upon the civil liability provisions of the secudt law of the United States or any state thereoheocompetent to hear original
actions brought in China against us or such perpoedicated upon the securities laws of the Un8edes or any state thereof.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR STOCK
There is a limited trading market for our shares. You may not be able to sell your shares if you needoney.

Our common stock is traded on the Over-The-CouBtéletin Board, an inter-dealer automated quotasgstem for
equity securities. During the 30 trading days enlfdch 25, 2009, the average daily trading volurh@w common stock was
approximately 503 shares. As of March 23, 2009,had approximately 53 stockholders of record, agrdghed by our transfer
agent’s records, not including banks, brokers beotominees holding shares through the Depositargt Company or its nominee,
Cede & Co., Inc. There has been limited tradintvag in our stock, and when it has traded, thiegtas fluctuated widely. We
consider our common stock to be “thinly traded” @my last reported sale prices may not be a truietrdased valuation of the
common stock. Stockholders may experience diffjcattlling their shares if they choose to do so bseaf the illiquid market and
limited public float for our common stock.

We have no immediate plans to pay dividends.
We have not paid any cash dividends on our comnimck g0 date and do not expect to pay such divideiod the

foreseeable future. We intend to retain earnirfgmy, as necessary to finance the operation apdrskon of our business.
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We have the ability to issue additional shares ofus common stock and shares of preferred stock withat asking for
stockholder approval, which could cause your investent to be diluted.

Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the Bbaf Directors to issue up to 400,000,000 shafemmmon stock and
up to 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Theepof the Board of Directors to issue shares ofirmon stock, preferred stock or
warrants or options to purchase shares of commock sbr preferred stock is generally not subjectstockholder approval.
Accordingly, any additional issuance of our comnstock, or preferred stock that may be convertibte common stock, may have
the effect of diluting your investment.

By issuing preferred stock, we may be able to delagefer or prevent a change of control.

Our Board of Directors can determine the rightgfgnences, privileges and restrictions granteaditdmposed upon, the
shares of preferred stock and to fix the numbeshafres constituting any series and the designafisnch series. It is possible that
our Board of Directors, in determining the rightseferences and privileges to be granted when téfeped stock is issued, may
include provisions that have the effect of delayidgferring or preventing a change in control, diseging bids for our common
stock at a premium over the market price, or taeesely affect the market price of and the votand other rights of the holders of
our common stock.

Our stock price is volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has beencamtinues to be subject to fluctuations. The symite may fluctuate
in response to a number of events and factors, asicjuarterly variations in operating results,dperating and stock performance of
other companies that investors may deem as compaaat news reports relating to trends in the ntptee, among other factors.
Significant volatility in the market price of ouommon stock may arise due to factors such as:

« our developing business;
« acontinued negative cash flow;
« relatively low price per share;
« relatively low public float;
« variations in quarterly operating results;
« general trends in the industries in which we ddress;
« the number of holders of our common stock; and
« the interest of securities dealers in maintairdingarket for our common stock.
As long as there is only a limited public market dbur common stock, the sale of a significant nemdf shares of our common

stock at any particular time could be difficultachieve at the market prices prevailing immediabefore such shares are offered,
and could cause a severe decline in the price of@mmon stock.
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Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
Item 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at 186 Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak RoaglakChung, N.T.
Hong Kong. These executive offices are shared WithKee Hong (Holdings) Limited, an indirect stoclder of our Company at no
cost to the Company. We do not own these facildied we do not have a lease agreement for thefukese facilities. Technorient’s
facilities consist primarily of automobile showrospdisplay lots, service facilities, automobileratge lots, and offices, and the
locations are described in Item 1 above. Technbleases all of its facilities, providing flexiki to relocate if necessary. However,
some of these leases give us the option to renewrfe or more lease extension periods. We belibae dll of our facilities are
sufficient for our Company’s needs and are in geghir.

tem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On December 19, 2008, the Company filed an actitybed China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. v. Haipyierald
Limited, et al., in the United States District Court, Central tBiit of California, Case No. SACV08-1439 (the “leedl Court
Action”), asserting claims for Securities Fraude®ch of Contract, Fraud, Conversion, Unjust Enriehin Constructive Trust,
Breach of Fiduciary Duty and Declaratory ReliehheTCompany has named Happy Emerald Ltd., a pup@titish Virgin Islands
corporate entity (“HEL"), Global Premium Brands Cimc., a defunct California Corporation (“CaliféanGlobal”), Global Premium
Brands Co., Inc., a Nevada corporation (“Nevadab@ily), Fred De Luca, Charles Miseroy, Delia RoddguRobert G. Pautsch,
Richard Cabo and Federico Cabo as defendants¢tiedlly, the “Defendants”).

The Company asserts in the Federal Court ActionttteeDefendants have acted in concert to fraudylettain shares
of the Company’s Series A Convertible Preferrectcistohe “Preferred Shares”) and, in some instantt@ge breached their fiduciary
duties to the Company relating to their conductliving the Preferred Shares. The Company autledrithe issuance of the
Preferred Shares as consideration for certain dugarvices to be performed by HEL under a July2l®6 Consulting Services
Agreement. HEL, however, as alleged in the Fedeaairt Action, has not performed the required smviand the Preferred Shares
have accordingly never been paid for. The Comgzeiieves the Preferred Shares are subject to datioel In the Federal Court
Action, the Company alleges that the Defendant lemproperly obtained certificates for the Prefdr8hares, attempted to transfer
the Preferred Shares between themselves, and stmighdve the restrictive legend removed from aiporf the Preferred
Shares. The Company is seeking a declarationeopéities’ respective rights regarding the PrefeBbares as well as injunctive
relief and damages against the Defendants.
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In a related matter, the Company was named asemdifit in a state court action, styleederico G. Cabo, et al. v.
China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc., et al., California Superior Court, Ventura County, Caseo.N
56-2008-00333382-CU-BC-VTA (the “State Court ActipnThe plaintiffs in the State Court Action (defiants in the Federal Court
Action) Federico Cabo, Fred De Luca, and Nevadab&)Joasserted various claims against multiple d#dats relating to the
Preferred Shares issued to HEL in which these fiffsirtlaim an interest. The plaintiffs assertdairms for estoppels, slander of title,
conversion and constructive trust against the Comfrathe State Court Action. By agreement with fghaintiffs in the State Court
Action, the State Court Action was dismissed, withprejudice, and it is anticipated that the samsimilar claims will be asserted
in the Federal Court Action. The Company denigssarch alleged wrongdoing and will vigorously defehese claims if they are
asserted in the Federal Court Action. The Compéiyyever, is unable to evaluate the likelihood ofautcome, favorable or
unfavorable, to the Company at this time or toneate the amount or range of a possible loss.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDER S

None.
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PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STO CKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

Our common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Coufi@rC") Bulletin Board under the symbol (OTCBB: C®L. The
following table contains market information periamto the range of the high and low bid informatiaf our common stock for each
quarter for the last two fiscal years as quotedlenOTC Bulletin Board. The quotations reflect imdealer prices, without retail
mark-up, mark-down or commission, and may not egmeactual transactions.

LOW HIGH
2008
Fourth Quarter 0.1¢ 0.6(
Third Quarter 0.1f 0.6¢
Second Quarter 0.4: 0.8t
First Quarter 0.3t 1.0(
2007
Fourth Quarter (1) 0.2t 1.0]
Fourth Quarter (2) 0.1 0.2:
Third Quarter 0.1(¢ 0.2¢
Second Quarter 0.1C 0.3¢
First Quarter 0.1¢ 0.5¢
(1) Reflects common share prices forggod December 8, 2007 to December 31, 2007.
(2) On December 7, 2007, the Companyctdtka one for five reverse stock split pursuantiich each five (5)

outstanding shares of common stock, par value $0W8re automatically converted into one (1) steireommon stock,
par value $0.005. Common share prices in this sd¢haéflect pre-reverse stock-split for the periagsto and including
December 7, 2007.

A limited trading market exists for our common #t@nd there is no assurance that a more significading market will
develop, or if developed will be sustained.

STOCKHOLDERS
As of March 23, 2009, we had 29,104,110 shares ahinson stock outstanding. As of March 23, 2009, we

had approximately 53 stockholders of record, agrdehed by our transfer agent’s records, not iridgicbanks, brokers or other
nominees holding shares through the DepositorytTCosipany or its nominee, Cede & Co., Inc.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Since our inception, we have not declared or paiddividends on our common stock, nor do we haweiatentions of
declaring such a dividend in the foreseeable futlihe payment of dividends, if any, is within thisadetion of the Board and will
depend upon our earnings, our capital requiremamdisfinancial condition, and other relevant fact@sr Board of Directors does
not intend to declare any dividends in the foreBkefuture, but instead intends to retain all ezgsj if any, for use in our operations.

SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY CGNENSATION PLANS

Information regarding securities authorized fou@sce under equity compensation plans is includétitém 11 — Equity
Compensation.”

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES; USE OF REREDS FROM REGISTERED SECURITIES

None.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED RRCHASERS

None.

Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable.

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION

This section contains forward-looking statemerithese forward-looking statements are subject toowar factors, risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual resultsfferdnaterially from those reflected in these forddooking statements. Further, as a
result of these factors, risks and uncertainties, forward-looking events may not occur. Relevaetors, risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those discussetitem 1. Description of Business," "ltem 1A. RiBlctors" and elsewhere in this
Report. Readers are cautioned not to place unelience on forward-looking statements, which rdfleanagement's beliefs and
opinions as of the date of this Report. We areabtigated to publicly update or revise any forwbrdking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or othessvi See "Forward-Looking Statements."
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GENERAL

China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. is in thesiness of importation, distribution and salepr@mium brand luxury
products in Hong Kong, Macau and China. Curreritlg, Company’s main business is its ownership istareTechnorient, a Hong
Kong corporation. Through its subsidiaries, Teclendis business consists mainly of the importatidistribution, and after-sales
service of Italian “Ferrari” and “Maserati” brandedrs and spare parts in Hong Kong, Macau and igtebaition of “Ferrari” and
“Maserati” branded cars and spare parts in Chimadahuary 2008, the Company entered into an agrdaemith Falber Confezioni,
S.r.l. to become the sole importer and distribatfotJohn Richmond”, “Richmond X" and “Richmond Demil clothing for men and
women in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and in China camaoing in the Spring/Summer season of 2008 anchgndithe Fall/Winter
season of 2012. In October 2007, King Express Groungted, a wholly owned subsidiary of Technoriemtas appointed by
AgustaWestland as its exclusive distributor for tmmplete fleet of AgustaWestland commercial hgfecs in Hong Kong and
Macau. Currently the AgustaWestland helicoptersir®ss is in its preparatory stage with the likadsival of the first helicopter
anticipated at the beginning of 2010.

TECHNORIENT OVERVIEW

Technorient is a corporation formed in Hong KongMarch 8, 1983. The Technorient Group was originfdunded in
1974 by Herbert Adamczyk as German Motors, Teclemonivas formed as the holding company for AutadtdML and German
Motors in 1985. IML was appointed sole Ferrari impoand distributor for Hong Kong and Macau in 2948nd exclusive importer
for China between 1994 and 2004), and Auto Itake appointed importer and distributor for Maserati996, having been a dealer
for the brand since 1994. In 2003, IML transferitscentire car trading business to Auto lItalia, evhin turn set up a new subdivision,
Italian Motors, to continue the business.

IML is a 1% equity holder in the Shanghai JV. Besmathe structure of the Shanghai JV precludeshéseholders from
direct ownership of licensed dealers in China angiéw of Technorient’s strategy to develop a lyxbrand platform amongst its
high net worth clients, Technorient’'s managemeriisequently approached Ferrari S.p.A. to disposéMifs interest in the
Shanghai JV so that Technorient could acquire degandent dealer network in China and, among dhkiregs, maintain its direct
customer relationships. As part of this arrangemeathnorient would apply for and receive dealegrises in key markets in China
such as Dalian and Nanjing (already awarded) anddy@ conjunction with Ferrari, continue to buitd dealer network to capitalize
on its client base in China and pursue its luxugnd platform.

Pursuant to the above, IML entered into an agreémith the Shanghai JV parties to dispose of i®&2gyuity interest in
the Shanghai JV in July 2006. The disposal was tetexghin December 2007, after the disposal, IMLtecwed to hold a 1% equity
interest in the Shanghai JV. Beginning in 2006, teehnorient Group was able to act as an authodeetkr of Ferrari and Maserati
cars in certain cities in China that were allocatedccordance with the Shanghai JV. In Januarg 2L formed Dalian Auto Italia
in China to engage in the distribution of FerrardldMaserati cars in Dalian, China, and IML owne@5& equity interest in Dalian
Auto Italia. On August 3, 2007, IML entered into agreement to acquire the remaining 5% equity éstein Dalian Auto Italia. IML
currently owns a 100% equity interest in Dalian d\litlia.

On August 7, 2008, IML formed a wholly owned sulesig named Nanjing Auto Italia Car Trading Co., Lid China to
engage in the distribution of Ferrari and Masesats in Nanjing.
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Auto Italia and Italian Motors operate from eigb¢dtions in Hong Kong, Macau and China, incorpotpales, spare
parts, service and body and paint shop facilittesHerrari and Maserati. Management believes tieatgtoup has a well-established
customer base comprised of high net worth indiMglua Hong Kong and China and enjoys through itesgerformance and
reputation for first class facilities and custorservice, an excellent relationship with senior nggmaent of both Ferrari S.p.A. and
Maserati S.p.A.

On July 10, 2007, the Company entered into a nodibg Letter of Intent with Keyforce (BVI) Limited‘Keyforce
(BVI)") (the “Letter of Intent”), a subsidiary of W0 Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited of Hong Kong, to begiegotiations to acquire
from Keyforce (BVI) its luxury yacht distributionusiness. Keyforce (BVI) is the sole shareholdeKefforce Holdings Limited
(“Keyforce Holdings”) and Noble Brand Investmentsnited (“Noble Brand”). Keyforce Holdings is engafym the distribution of
luxurious ltalian “Ferretti” motor yachts in Chinghile Noble Brand distributes Taiwanese produce@rftbn” motor yachts in
China, Hong Kong and Macau. The Letter of Interied on January 9, 2008. As of March 30, 2009bimaling agreements had
been entered into, but discussions remain ongoing.

In October 2007, King Express was appointed byAasstland as its exclusive distributor for the ctatep fleet of
AgustaWestland commercial helicopters in Hong Kang Macau. It also has the right to sell to thghlyi strategic Pearl River
Delta region of Southern China on a non-exclusiagis Currently the AgustaWestland helicoptersi®mss is in its preparatory stage
with the likely arrival of the first helicopter aaipated at the beginning of 2010.

CPMM (ASIA) OVERVIEW

On January 18, 2008, CPMM (Asia) Limited (“CPMM AYi, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Premiumdsiyle
Enterprise, Inc.,. (the “Company”), entered intbieéense and Supply Agreement (the “Agreement”) viikkurate Ltd. (“Akkurate”)
and Falber Confezioni S.R.L. (“Falber”) for a teoh10 seasons through approximately January 313.20he Agreement grants
CPMM Asia the exclusive right to sell men's and vesis Ready-to-Wear John Richmond, Richmond X, archiRond
Denim (“Products”) and to open points of sale iifead by the signs of Products identified by th@ta Richmond,” “Richmond,”
“Richmond X,” and “Richmond Denim” marks (colleatly, the “Signs”) in China, Hong Kong, Macau andwan (the “Exclusivity
Area”), which Products will be supplied by Falbleraddition, CPMM Asia has the right to use therSigand open and manage in the
Exclusivity Area mono-brand shops identified by igns for the sale of the Products and otherlastidlentified by the Signs.
CPMM Asia also has the right to sublicense thegletsito third parties. The first mono brand shopRi€hmond X” was opened in
Hong Kong at the end of 2007. In early May 2008MBPAsia opened a second mono brand shop in HonggKon

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In preparing our financial statements, we makerestes, assumptions and judgments that can hagmificint effect on
our revenues, income or loss from operations, atdncome or net loss, as well as on the valuedhin assets on our balance sheet.
We believe that there are several accounting mslithat are critical to an understanding of outohisal and future performance as
these policies affect the reported amounts of neeenexpenses, and significant estimates and justgnagplied by management.
While there are a number of accounting policiesthmds and estimates affecting our financial statemehe following policies are
considered critical. In addition, you should refierour accompanying audited consolidated balaneetsfis of December 31, 2008
and 2007 and the audited consolidated statemespierfitions for the years ended December 31, 2@8, 2nd 2006, and the related
notes thereto, for further discussion of our actiogrpolicies.
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Trade receivables and provision for bad debts

Trade receivables, net of provision for bad dehts,concentrated with the receivables from custem&fe periodically
record a provision for bad debts based on our judgmesulting from an evaluation of the collectthilof trade receivables by
assessing, among other factors, our customer’'sugiiless or ability to pay, repayment history, gaheconomic conditions, and the
ongoing relationship with our customers. The t@alount of this provision is determined by firstritfing the receivables of
customers that are considered to be a higher aisllibased on their current overdue accountsicdiffes in collecting from these
customers in the past and their overall financomdition. For each of these customers, we estith&textent to which the customer
will be able to meet its financial obligation, aretord a provision that reduces our trade receggafur that customer to the amount
that is reasonably believed will be collected. Addal provisions may be required in the futuretié financial condition of our
customers or general economic conditions detegotaereby reducing net earnings. Historically provisions for bad debts have
been sufficient to cover actual credit losses,\madelieve that the provisions recorded at therz@aheet dates are sulfficient.

Inventory, net

Inventory consists primarily of new and used vetgdheld for sale, and vehicle parts and accessaridsare stated at the
lower of cost or market. The new and used vehides valued using the specific identification methaat the costs include
acquisition and transportation expenses. The \@fltiee parts and accessories are valued at tharfjrirst-out method and are stated
at the lower of cost or market. Fashion appangmiory is valued at the first-in, first-out methadd is stated at the lower of cost or
market. Write-down of potentially obsolete or slavoving inventory is recorded based on our analg§ignventory levels and
assessment of estimated obsolescence based uponpéiseis about future demand and market conditiblistorically our actual
physical inventory count results have shown ouimeges of write-down of potentially obsolete orwgtmoving inventory to be
reliable. However, additional provisions may bgquieed in the future if general economic conditiateteriorate, thereby reducing
net earnings.

Share-based compensation

We have adopted SFAS No. 123(RPhare-Based Paymenas amended and interpreted, for our share-based
compensation. We utilized the modified prospectiethod approach, pursuant to which we record cosgigm for all share-based
awards granted based on their fair value. The astinof the fair value of the share-based compeamsatquires the input of
subjective assumptions. Changes in the subjecthgaimaptions could materially affect the estimatefadf value of share-based
compensation; however, based on an analysis ukigigges in certain assumptions that could be rebBopassible in the near term,
we believe the effect on the share-based compensattognized would not have been material.
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Stock-based compensation expense is based on atlatdsre ultimately expected to vest. We evaltlaeassumptions
used to value our awards and if factors changesmeloy different assumptions. If there are any ricalions or cancellations of the
underlying unvested securities, we may be requi@daccelerate, increase or cancel any remainingarned stock-based
compensation expense. Future stock-based compamsajpense and unearned stock-based compensationcnéase to the extent
that we grant additional equity awards to employees

Revenue recognition

Revenue consists of sales of new and used vehigés;le maintenance and repair services, and séleshicle parts
and sales of fashion apparel. Revenues from thaafislg components are recognized as follows:

0] Sales of new and used vehicles are recognigezh a sales contract has been executed andhides title has
passed.

(ii) Sales of fashion apparel and accessoriesea@gnized when the products have been deliverddite has passed.

(i)  Sales of vehicle parts are recognized wttenparts have been delivered and the title hasepas
(iv)  Vehicle maintenance and repair income ioggized when services are fully rendered.

Impairment of long-lived assets

We evaluate long-lived assets, including propertgt aquipment, for impairment when events and cistances exist
that indicate the carrying amount of these assetg not be recoverable. Recoverability of assetséasured by comparing the
carrying amount of an asset to the estimated uadiged future cash flows expected to be generayetthdo use of the asset. The
undiscounted cash flows are subject to estimatmsassumptions made by us. If the estimated undlised cash flows change in
the future, we may be required to reduce the aagrgimount of an asset.
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Income taxes

We are required to estimate income tax provisiond amounts ultimately payable or recoverable in enous
jurisdictions, including Hong Kong. We account fiscome taxes under the provision of Statement véRé¢ial Accounting Standards
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes(“SFAS 109”) and related interpretations anddgnice including FIN 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretatiorF#fSB Statement No. 109“Fin 48"), resulting in two components of incertax
expenses: current and deferred. Current incomeexgense approximates taxes to be paid or refundethé relevant periods.
Deferred income tax expense results from changeefierred tax assets and liabilities between peri@eferred income tax assets
and liabilities are computed for differences betwte financial statements carrying amounts andakéases of existing assets and
liabilities that will result in taxable or dedudi#bamount in the future, as well as from net opegaibss and tax credit carryforwards,
and are measured at the enacted tax laws andagésable in the years which the differences apeeted to be recovered or settled.
A deferred tax asset is recognized if it is mokellf than not that a benefit will be realized. Othise, we will record a valuation
allowance when the utilization of the deferred &eset is uncertain. Additional timing differenckgure earning trends and/or tax
strategies could warrant a need for establishingdalitional valuation allowance or a reserve.

Contingencies

From time to time, we are involved in disputesgdtion and other legal proceedings. We recordaagehequal to at least
the minimum estimated liability for a loss contingg when both of the following conditions are m@tinformation available prior
to issuance of the financial statements indicdiasit is probable that an asset had been impairediability had been incurred at the
date of the financial statements, and (ii) the eanfjloss can be reasonably estimated. Howeverathgal liability in any such
litigation may be materially different from our esates, which could result in the need to recomitazhal costs. Currently, we have
no outstanding legal proceedings or claims, whétfuire a loss contingency.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 158e Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and &gial Liabilities -
Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 1(ISFAS 159”), which will be effective for the @gpany beginning January 1,
2008. This standard permits entities to choose éasure many financial instruments and certain otieens at fair value and
consequently report unrealized gains and lossesiom items in earnings. The Company elected natlopt the fair value provisions
of SFAS 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141 (re\288),Business Combination(8SFAS 141(R)"). SFAS 141(R)
establishes principles and requirements for howaquirer recognizes and measures in its finantiéatments the identifiable assets
acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrglinterest in the acquiree and the goodwill aaglilSFAS 141(R) also establishes
disclosure requirements to enable the evaluatidhefature and financial effects of the businesshination. SFAS 141(R) will be
effective for financial statements issued for flsggars beginning after December 15, 2008, and bélladopted by the Company
beginning in the first quarter of 2009. The Compdogs not expect there to be any significant impéetdopting SFAS 141(R) on
its financial position, cash flows and results pémations.
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 1§0ncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financ@Biatements - an
amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No.§BFAS 160”). SFAS 160 establishes accounting eeporting standards for
ownership interests in subsidiaries held by panigr than the parent, the amount of consolidagtdincome attributable to the
parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changesparent’s ownership interest, and the valuatibretained noncontrolling equity
investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidatedASSE60 also establishes disclosure requirements dlearly identify and
distinguish between the interests of the parentthadnterests of the noncontrolling owners. SFA&S8 will be effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning derember 15, 2008, and will be adopted by the Comeeginning in the first
quarter of 2009. The Company does not expect tiode any significant impact of adopting SFAS 1@dtse financial position, cash
flows and results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1®isclosures about Derivative Instruments and HadgActivities

(“SFAS 161"). SFAS 161 is intended to improve finh reporting about derivative instruments anddileg activities by requiring
enhanced disclosures to enable investors to hettigrstand their effects on an entity’s financiaifion, financial performance, and
cash flows. SFAS 161 achieves these improvementsdujiring disclosure of the fair values of derivatinstruments and their gains
and losses in a tabular format. It also providegearinoformation about an entity’s liquidity by requig disclosure of derivative
features that are credit risk-related. Finally:eiquires cross-referencing within footnotes to éméibancial statement users to locate
important information about derivative instrumer$:AS 161 will be effective for financial statemeisued for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after November 15, 2088l be adopted by the Company beginning in thsetfijuarter of 2009. The
Company does not expect there to be any significapact of adopting SFAS 161 on its financial posit cash flows and results of
operations.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by &SB (including its Emerging Issues Task Ford&lTF")), the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountar{t&lCPA”), and the SEC did not or are not believlegd management to have a
material impact on the Company's present or futoresolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations comparison of year ended Dawber 31, 2008 to year ended December 31, 2007, awiparison of year
ended December 31, 2007 to year ended December 2106

SALES

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006

% of Total % of Total % of Total
Total Sales Sales Total Sales Sales Total Sales Sales

New Vehicles $ 98.9V 8(% $ 79.3V 7% $ 51.5V 72%
Used Vehicles $ 16.5V 1% $ 20.7V 2(% $ 14.1V 2(%
Parts and Servi $ 7.3V 6% $ 6.5V €% $ 5.9V €%
Fashion Appare $ 0.9M 1% - - - -
Total $ 123.6 10(% $ 106.5N 10(% $ 71.5V 10(%
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Sales mainly consist of sales of new and used leshiand sales of parts and services for vehiciater@ance and repair
and sale of fashion apparel.

Net sales increased $17.1 million or 16%, from 202008, while net sales increased $35.0 milliod%%, from 2006
to 2007. The increase from 2007 to 2008 was prignatiributable to our new vehicles trading segment

New vehicle sales increased $19.6 million or 2586mfr2007 to 2008 while the quantity of new vehidetd increased
30% for the same period. This was primarily duéghtwlaunch of the Ferrari 8-cylinder sports cae, ‘#30 Scuderia” and an increase
in deliveries of the Maserati 8-cylinder two-doat2coupe, the “GranTurismo”, which was launchethim last quarter of 2007. The
used vehicle sales decreased approximately $4l@dmdr 20% from 2007 to 2008 while the quantityusied vehicles sold decreased
28% for the same period.

The increase in parts and service sales from 20@D®8 was mainly attributed to the increase afvddkes of Ferrari and
Maserati cars to customers during the last fewsydar which our parts and services were used totaia.

The increase in net sales from 2006 to 2007 waslyndue to the increase of deliveries of the FeBarylinder sports
car, the F430 and F430 Spider, and the 12-cylirtdseater sports car, the F599 GTB Fiorano. For Kéise¢he launch of the
“GranTurismo” also fueled the growth of sales if©20 New vehicles sales increased $27.8 millioB4% from 2006 to 2007 while
the quantity of new vehicles sold increased 37%Hersame period. Used vehicles sales increaséddiion or 47% from 2006 to
2007 while the quantity of used vehicles sold iasesl 6% for the same period. The increase was fiyrdae to an increase in new
car sales resulting in increased used car businets® form of trade-ins, and because more effadse made by the Company to
increase its used car sales.

The increase in parts and service sales from 20@®07 was mainly attributed to the increase oivdgkes of Ferrari and
Maserati cars to customers during the last fewsydar which our parts and services were used totaia.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales for 2008 increased $12.9 million4%o1from $89.8 million in 2007 to $102.7 millionrfa008, which was
consistent with the increase in Company’s reveueimg this period. Cost of sales increased $30lBmor 52%, from $59 million
in 2006 to $89.8 million for 2007. The increaseoiur costs of sales from 2006 to 2007 was also stertti with the increase in
Company’s revenues during the same period.
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GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin for 2008 increased by 1.2% &0% from 15.7% in 2007 and the gross profit inseghby $4.2
million or 25%, from $16.7 million in 2007 to $20r@illion in 2008. This increase is mainly attribdt® the new and used vehicles
trading segment. The increase in gross profit mangis mainly due to deliveries of the “GranTurisnawid sales of certain highly
acclaimed used cars including F599 GTB Fiorano0F&@ider and Maserati GranTurismo.

Gross profit increased from $12.6 million in 20@6#16.7 million in 2007, an increase of $4.1 miilior 33%. Gross
margin was 15.7% for 2007, a decrease of 1.9% ft@r6% for the same period of 2006. The increaggass profit was consistent
with the growth of our Company’s sales.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative expenses, 96G&A” expenses, includes salaries and related istaféxpenses,
facilities rent, rate and building management féegal, accounting, professional services, genaygdorate expenses and marketing
expenses,.

“S,G&A” expenses increased by $5.2 million, or 3%.%n 2008, from $13.8 million in 2007 to $19.0 nah in 2008.
S,G&A expenses also increased by $2.9 million oL %6in 2007 compared to our 2006 S,G&A expenseghmivas $10.9 million.
The increase in S,G&A expenses from 2006 to 2008 pyvenarily due to the growth of revenues and rdqpidiness expansion which
was reflected in our increased staff cost, rentgleases, depreciation and marketing expenses. Lpg#kssional and audit fees
increased by approximately $377,000 or 41.7% in826@m $904,000 in 2007 to $1,281,000 in 2008. ifleeease was mainly due
to the professional fees incurred for US SEC répgrand compliance obligations as well as compkanith Section 404 of the
Sarbanes- Oxley Act. Our legal, professional anditai@ges also increased by approximately $113,0004€3% in 2007, from
$791,000 in 2006 to $904,000 in 2007.

Due to the rapid business expansion, our staffiogt dncreased from approximately $4.9 million fob0Z to
approximately $6.0 million for 2008. Our staffingsts also increased by $1.7 million or 53.1% in2@0mpared to our 2006
staffing cost of approximately $3.2 million.

Our rent, rate and building management fees inecefrem approximately $1.3 million for 2006 to $Illion in 2007,
and such fees further increased to approximately #8llion for 2008. The increase in such feesev@ainly due to development of
the fashion apparel business and motor businesgelisas the renewal of several existing tenancyeagrent. Our depreciation
expense increased from $722,000 in 2007 to $827/0@D08, an increase of approximately $105,00(rB&ation expense also
increased by $153,000 in 2007 compared to our 2)ifFeciation expense, which was approximately $889for 2006. The
increase in depreciation from 2006 to 2008 wasisterg with the expansion of our business.
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Further our marketing expenses increased by $702@072% in 2008, from $1,107,000 for 2007 to $9,800 in 2008.
Marketing expenses increased by $273,000, or 3th8007 compared to our 2006 marketing expens&8®#,000. The increase in
marketing expenses from 2007 to 2008 was mainlytdwexpenditures relating to the grand opening ekietd in Nanjing, China in
November 2008 for the Company’s second dealershifhina The increase in marketing expenses frobé 20 2007 was primarily
due to the increased exhibition expenses, whickeased from $434,000 for 2006 to $790,000 in 200%s was mainly due to
expenditures relating to an event held in Hong Kdadng February 2007 for the celebration of Fesa@0th anniversary, an event
held in Macau during July 2007 for the launch ofddiati GranTurismo and an event held in Hong Kamgnd December 2007 for
the launch of Ferrari 430 Scuderia.

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES), NET

Other income increased from approximately $5,0002f107 to $997,000 for 2008. The increase was pifyndue to the
combination of decreased interest expense, shaesol of an associate and increased interestriaa@nd commission income. The
interest income and commission income increase $&89,000 for 2007 to $486,000 for 2008. Intergienses decreased from
approximately $771,000 for 2007 to approximatelyp$B00 for 2008. The Company had completed theodapof 29% equity
interest in the Shanghai JV in December 2007, @moesbf loss of that associate was incurred in 2002007, the share of loss of an
associate was approximately $150,000.

Other income decreased from approximately $151{602006 to $5,000 for 2007. The decrease was pilyrdue to the
combination of increased interest expense, shassfof an associate and loss on disposal of sucise offset by increased interest
income and fees charged to affiliated companies. ilterest income and management fee chargediliatafftompanies increased
from $20,000 for 2006 to $759,000 for 2007. Intemgpenses increased from approximately $433,00R2306 to approximately
$771,000 for 2007. The funds from which our incezamterest expenses were incurred were used fddimgpcapital purposes, as
well as new investment in property and equipmensupport the expansion of our business. The shihiess of an associate
increased from a profit of $359,000 in 2006 to sslof $150,000 in 2007. The Company had complétedlisposal of 29% equity
interest in the Shanghai JV in December 2007 aadiogs of this disposal was $252,000.

MINORITY INTERESTS

Minority interests for the periods presented repnésutside ownership interests in subsidiariesdhaconsolidated with
the parent for financial reporting purposes.

INCOME TAX
Income tax expenses increase to approximately $9865in 2008 compared to approximately $539,0000072and
$271,000 in 2006. The increase of the tax expewses due to the improved result from the motor hess. The tax expenses for

2007 were as a result of the utilization of theedefd tax asset recognized in 2004. The incomeexmenses for 2006 were a
combined result of the utilization of the deferte® asset recognized in 2004 and the tax lossfoawsrds.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Our operations generated cash resources of appatedyrs761,000 for the year ended December 31,,208/@pared to
approximately $10,375,000 for the year ended Deeerab, 2007, primarily as a net result of the foilay:

« For the year ended Decemt&k, 2008, cash flow generated from sales was appataly $3,731,000 compared
approximately $4,301,000 for the year ended Decerdbe?2007, a decrease of $570,000.

« For the year ended December 31, 2008, accounts/abteincreased by apprioxately $1,295,000, primarily due
the remarkable sales recognized in DecemBates for December 2008 was increased by approsiyn$10,502,00
to approximately $25,220,000 from approximately $18,000 for December 2007.

« For the year endkDecember 31, 2008, our inventory increased byaqimately $3,512,000. The increase
consistent with our business growth especiallyhie ¢ar trading segment. The inventory conversiaigédor 200¢
increased from 1.2 months to 1.5 months, due tetdm-up of the fashion business.

« For the year ended December 31, 2008, the increasecrease of various current operating assetdiabitities,
included in the aforementioned items, resulted m aggregate decrease of cash generated by oparadi
approximately $2,969,000.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

For the year ended December 31, 2008 we expendedasé of approximately $4,800,000 in investingivit@s,
including a $3,273,000 increase in restricted dashhe trade finance facilities enhancement ineor support the growth of our
business and a $1,862,000 purchase of propertggugment, offset by $338,000 proceeds from didpafgaroperty and equipment.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, we utilizgataximately $333,000 in investing activities tivaas the combined effect
of increase in restricted cash, acquisition of prop and equipment and proceeds received from tbgosal of interest in an
associate.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
For the year ended December 31, 2008, we made mé¢vdrawdown amounting to approximately $3,224,068d6 a

received approximately $55,000 advances from aféB. For the year ended December 31, 2007, theo&wonrepaid net amount of
approximately $1,962,000 of outstanding debt amdiged approximately $4,972,000 in advances tdiaffis and an associate.
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WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Current assets exceeded current liabilities at Bxee 31, 2008 by approximately $9,415,000 an irsmred $1,274,000
from December 31, 2007. The ratio of our curresessto our current liabilities was 1.21 to 1 at&maber 31, 2008 and it was 1.24
to 1 at December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2008corrent assets of approximately $54.2 millionlued approximately $12.7
million in inventory that was funded by our opengticash flow and trade finance facilities. Our eatrliabilities of approximately
$45 million included customer deposits of approxeha$19.9 million. Given the exclusive nature andremely limited production
of Ferrari cars, our customers are willing to platerial deposits in advance to the Company ierota@ secure their new car orders.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION

We believe that inflation rates over the last feangs have not had a significant impact on reveougsofitability. We
do not expect inflation to have any near-term nialteffects on the sale of our products and sesyibewever, we cannot be sure
there will be no such effect in the future.

SEASONALITY

Our business is modestly seasonal overall. Ouratipas generally experience higher volumes of Jetsales in the
fourth quarter of each year due in part to manufacs’ production and delivery patterns.

EFFECT OF FLUCTUATION IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES

Information regarding the effects of the fluctuatim foreign exchange rates on our Company is deduin Item 7A
below.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemieatsiive or are reasonably likely to have a mdteui@ent or future
effect on our financial condition, changes in fioi@h condition, revenues or expenses, results @raions, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

We have certain fixed contractual obligations anthmitments that include future estimated paymedkanges in our
business needs, cancellation provisions, changitegest rates, and other factors may result inahgayments differing from the
estimates. We cannot provide certainty regardirgtithing and amounts of payments. We have presdrgbxv a summary of the
most significant assumptions used in our deterndnadf amounts presented in the tables, in ordeassist in the review of this
information within the context of our consolidatigtancial position, results of operations, and cthsivs.

The following table summarizes our contractual gétions as of December 31, 2008 (in thousands):
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PAYMENT DUE BY PERIOD

LESS MORE

THAN 1 3-5 THAN 5

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TOTAL YEAR 1-3 YEARS YEARS YEARS
Short-Term Borrowings Obligations 9,93t 9,93t — — —
Long-Term Borrowings Obligations — — — — —
Operating Lease Obligations 21,30t 3,97¢ 7,83¢ 3,51¢ 5,97
Total 31,24: 13,91 7,83¢ 3,51¢ 5,97:

Our borrowings, by pledge of vehicles and certankodeposits were mainly used to finance the pselud vehicles .
The interest rates are generally based on the bdmdst lending rate in Hong Kong plus a certaircgatiage. The range of effective
interest rate on the borrowings is from 4.25% 586 per annum.

Our operating lease obligations include minimumsée@ayments under our non-cancelable operatingdefis the
Company’s sales and after-sale facilities. The artwpresented are consistent with contractual temmasare not expected to differ
significantly, unless a substantial change, sucanaisicrease in our employee headcount, requirés esit an office facility early or
expand our occupied space.

For related party transactions, see Part Il ‘ItEBa CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.”

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAR KET RISK

We currently do not hold or use any derivative treo financial instruments that expose us to sulisiamarket risk and
we have no foreign exchange contracts. Our findnestruments consist of cash and cash equivalerade receivables and
payables, bills payable, other current assetsy attveent liabilities, and bank borrowings . We sigler investments in highly liquid
instruments purchased with a remaining maturit§@fdays or less at the date of purchase to beempskialents. However, in order
to manage the foreign exchange risks, we may engafpedging activities to manage our financial esqpe related to currency
exchange fluctuation. In these hedging activities might use fixed-price, forward and option coctsavhen feasible.

Interest Rates Our exposure to market risk for changes in agerates relates primarily to our short-term ddilions;
thus, fluctuations in interest rates would not haveaterial impact on the fair value of the Compsusgcurities. At December 31,
2008, we had approximately $5,827,000 in cash ast equivalents. A hypothetical 10% increase ore#se in interest rates would
not have a material impact on our earnings or lost)e fair market value or cash flows of thesgriments.

Foreign Exchange RatesWhile our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar,date virtually all of our revenues and costs
are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and a sigaifiqoortion of our assets and liabilities is denmated in Hong Kong Dollars. As
a result, we are exposed to foreign exchange ss&ua revenues and results of operations may badtag by fluctuations in the
exchange rate between U.S. Dollars and Hong Kor@giBolf the Hong Kong Dollar depreciates agathst U.S. Dollar, the value of
our Hong Kong Dollar revenues and assets as extéssour U.S. Dollar financial statements will tilee. Thus, our revenues and
operating results may be impacted by exchangdiltattiations of the Hong Kong Dollar. While we melyoose to do so in the future,
the availability and effectiveness of any hedgirgnsactions may be limited and we may not be ablsuccessfully hedge our
exchange rate risks. Accordingly, we may experiemoenomic losses and negative impacts on earningsequity as a result of
foreign exchange rate fluctuations. The effectakign exchange rate fluctuation for the year enbedember 31, 2008 was not
material to us.
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ltem 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

(THE COMPANY'’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMMENCE ON THEFOLLOWING PAGE)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Bnd subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, aedrétated consolidated statements of operationskisblders’ equity and

comprehensive income, and cash flows for eachefydars in the three-year period ended Decembe2(®18. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of @@mpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on outsaudi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaBlqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet éoidibtain reasonable assurance about whethdmtecial statements are free of
material misstatement. The Company is not requiodthve, nor were we engaged to perform, an adiditeir internal control over
financial reporting. Our audits included considieratof internal control over financial reporting asbasis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstarimgt not for the purpose of expressing an opimiorthe effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reportifgcordingly, we express no such opinion. An aimitudes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diséesin the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and
significant estimates made by the management, Asawevaluating the overall financial statemergsgntation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all mater@spects, the financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,hendesults of their operations and their cash fllaveach of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2008, in caitp with accounting principles generally acceptadthe United States of
America.

/s/ HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 31, 2009
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CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE ENTERPRISE, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31,

2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 582713 $ 6,583,56
Restricted cash 4,427,43 1,154,22
Trade receivables, net of provision 11,761,22 10,440,45
Inventory, net 12,670,56 9,162,93
Prepayments 1,952,88 1,602,79
Other current assets 6,419,10 2,931,87
Amounts due from affiliates 11,147,10 10,226,16
Total current assets 54,205,45 42,102,01
Property and equipment, net 2,905,92 2,050,85
Goodwill 39,73 39,43f
TOTAL ASSETS $ 57,151,11 $ 44,192,29
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings $ 993543 $ 5,274,83
Obligations under finance lease — current portion - 110,99
Bills payable 1,333,50 2,659,19
Trade payables 3,795,19 1,063,26
Deposits received 19,887,36 16,306,69
Other current liabilities 7,405,45 7,088,42
Amounts due to affiliates 2,433,34 1,457,13
TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,790,29 33,960,55
Minority interests 7,104,33 4,918,63

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock

Authorized: 100,000,000 preferred stock, par v&0€©01

Issued and outstanding: 247,798 shares at Dece3tth2008; (495,791 shares at December

2007) 24¢ 49¢
Common stock

Authorized: 400,000,000 common stock, par valué@m.

Issued and outstanding: 29,104,110 shares at Dexe3ttb2008; (24,534,491 shares at

December 31, 2007) 145,52 122,67.
Additional paid-in-capital 5,558,88 5,581,48
Accumulated other comprehensive income 247,27! 118,89:
Accumulated deficit (695,441) (510,43
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 5,256,49 5,313,11
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 57,151,11 $ 44,192,29

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesconsolidated financial statements.
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CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE ENTERPRISE, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Sales:
New and used vehicles
Parts and services and others
Fashion apparel and accessories
Net sales

Cost of sales:
New and used vehicles
Parts and services and others
Fashion apparel and accessories
Total cost of sales

Gross profit:
New and used vehicles
Parts and services and others
Fashion apparel and accessories
Total gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating earnings

Other income (expenses)

Interest expenses and other finance costs

Share of result of an associate
Other income

Loss on disposal of interest in an associate

Total other income (expenses)

Earnings before minority interests and income taxes

Provision for income taxes
Earnings before minority interests
Minority interests
Net (loss) earnings
(Loss) Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Basic

Diluted

2008 2007 2006
$ 11535140 $ 9996899 $ 65,62591
7,297,70 6,534,31 5,908,67'
930,41, 9,16¢ )
123,579,561 _ 106,512,47 71,534,59
(100,359,63)  (87,694,34)  (56,865,47)
(1,715,85) (2,071,02)  (2,095,72)
(581,16) (3,08Y) -
(102,656,66) _ (89,768,45)  (58,961,19)
14,991,76 12,274,64 8,760,43
5,581,84 4,463,28 3,812,95
349,24 6,08 :
20,922,85 16,744,01 12,573,39
(18,964,70)  (13,788,34)  (10,933,65)
1,958,15 2,955,66 1,639,73
(569,47) (770,52) (432,77,
(149,87) 358,79

1,566,56 1,178,16 224,48
(252,30 -

997,00. 5,47( 150,50
2,955,24 2,961,13 1,790,24
(954,561 (538,57') (270,51,
2,000,68 2,422,55 1,519,73
(2,185,69) (1,600,29) (960,661

$  (18500) $ 82226 $ 559,06
$ (0.006() $ 0.041¢ $ 0.329°
$ (0.006() $ 0.028! $ 0.018!
28,064,99 19,689,80 1,695,91
28,064,99 28,829,03 29,983,75

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesconsolidated financial statements.






CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE ENTERPRISE, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Accumulated
other Total
comprehensive stockholders’
income equity

Additional
paid-in
capital

Accumulated
deficit

Common stock
Shares Amount

Preferred stock
Shares Amount

Comprehensive
income (loss)

Balance at December 3
2005
Effect of corporate
reorganization:
Recapitalizatior

Issuance of
preferred
stocks in
shae relatior
exchange

Issuance of prefern
stocks pursuant
a consulting
agreement

Issuance of commc
stock pursuant t
a consulting
agreement

Net earnings

Other comprehensiy
income:

Translation
adjustments

Balance at December 3
2006

Conversion of preferre:
stock on March 29,
2007

Conversion of preferre
stock on June 8, 20!
Rounding adjustment
Net earnings

Other comprehensi\
income:

Other
comprehensive
income releasec
upon disposal of
interest in an
associat
Translation
adjustments

Balance at December 3
2007

Conversion of preferre
stock on March 24,
2008

Adjustment to number
shares of preferred
stock (Note 15)

Net loss
Other comprehensi\
income:
Translation
adjustments

Balance at December 3
2008

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesconsolidated financial statements.

972,72

561,24

97¢

56.

92,33 $

5,153,49

140,00

591906 $

(5,892,80)

70C

2,44063 $

(963,19)

2,556,05
1,468,36

174,30

(3,860,74) $

1,968,97

559,06

46,170 $ 4,545,13

(4,887,01)

2,557,02

1,468,93

175,00
559,06

5,33. 5,33:

559,06

5,33.

1,533,97
(960,00

(78,18)

1,53
(96()

(7€)

5,385,83

17,706,86

1,441,74
4¢

26,96
88,53¢

7,20¢
(32)

5,676,16

(87,57)

(7.13)
3

(1,332,70)

822,26:

(137,51

204,89

51,50° 4,423,46

822,26

204,89

(137,51)

564,39

822,26.

(137,51

204,89

495,79

(247,79)

(198

49¢

(24)

24,534,49

4,569,61

122,67

22,84¢

5,581,48

(22,60)

(510,43

(185,00-1)

118,89

128,38

(185,00) $

128,38

531311 $

889,64

(185,00))

128,38

247,79

$

24¢

29,104,11 $

14552 $

5,558,88 $

(695,44) $

24727 $

525649 $

(56,62:)
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CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE ENTERPRISE, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) earnings $ (185,00) $ 822,26. $ 559,06
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)/earnings tocash provided by
operating activities
Minority interests 2,185,69 1,600,29 960,661
Depreciation and amortization 826,72 722,36 568,65!
Gain on disposal of property and equipment (132,04) (1,929 -
Loss on disposal of investment in associate - 252,30! -
Provision (written back) for bad debts and bad slebttten off (25,69 63,49! 41,01t
Provision (written back) for inventory 4,13: (8,976 -
Equity earnings of an associate - 149,87. (358,79)
Provision for income taxes 954,56! 538,57 270,51
Common stock issued for services received - - 175,001
Other non-cash items 102,17 162,92 27,62
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables (1,295,07) 742,66 (5,892,47)
Other current assets (3,837,31) (361,071 1,997,22
Inventory (3,511,76) (2,347,07) (1,757,08)
Trade payables 2,731,93 582,40 335,22
Other current liabilities 2,943,13 7,457,05 5,253,96
Net cash provided by operating activities 761,441 10,375,17 2,180,61
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary (39,431) -
Cash acquired upon reverse merger - - 1,27:
Increase in restricted cash (3,273,21) (768,59) (385,62
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,861,61) (417,99) (890,76
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 337,76! 22,44: -
Proceeds from disposal of interest in an associate 870,00 -
Net cash used in investing activities (4,797,05) (333,58) (1,275,12)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Advances to affiliates 55,26 (4,265,66) (4,455,49)
Repayments from (advances to) an associate (706,44.) 85,871
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings aiglgayable 3,223,91 (1,961,55) 6,487,01
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 3,279,17 (6,933,66) 2,117,39
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (756,43) 3,107,93 3,022,88
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gberio 6,583,56 3,475,63 452,75
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 5827,13 $ 658,56t $ 3,475,63
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information:
Cash paid for:
Interest $ 569,47. $ 770,52 $ 432,77
Income taxes $ 701,98 $ - $ -
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash information:
Preferred stock issued for consulting servicesetoelneived $ $ $ 1,468,93
Common stock issued for consulting services reckive $ $ $ 175,00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesconsolidated financial statements.
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CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE ENTERPRISE, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Background

China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. was fornmethe State of Nevada on April 19, 2004.

Pursuant to the Share Exchange Agreement date@rSeet 5, 2006, the Company acquired 49% of Tecenbtiimited, a Hong
Kong Corporation, (“Technorient”) through a reverserger, resulting in the stockholders of Techmarigecoming the beneficial
owners of approximately 49% of our stock.

The share exchange resulted in a change of contreteby the Company issued (i) an aggregate of7f282shares of the Series A
preferred stock in exchange for 49% of the issuadl @utstanding shares of Technorient, (ii) 561,8A&res of Series A preferred
stock for consulting services to be provided tohrexient after the Exchange, and (iii) an aggregail,629,337 shares of common
stock in connection with certain debt conversions.

The transaction was accounted for as a reversdsioou, whereby Technorient is the accounting aeguand our operations now

represent those of Technorient, which is physidaibated in Hong Kong. The transaction resultethemanagement of Technorient
having control of the operating, investing and ficiag decisions of the combined enterprise aftertthnsaction. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements reflect the histbfinancial statements of Technorient, the aedimg acquirer, as adjusted for the
effects of the exchange of shares on its equitpaas, the inclusion of net liabilities of the aooting subsidiaries as of the date of
the share exchange and the inclusion of the acicmustibsidiary’s results of operations from thateda

To effect the reverse acquisition, the board oédaors of the Company, by unanimous written consamproved a change of the
Registrant’s fiscal year on December 15, 2006. & fiscal year begins on January 1 and ends orrbieer 31 of each year,
effective with the year ending December 31, 2006e December 31 fiscal year end is also the fiseak yend of Technorient.
Additionally, the Company's board of directors auihbed a name change to China Premium Lifestyleeifpnise, Inc. The

Company’s articles were amended with the Statees@ada on December 28, 2006.

Background of Technorient

Technorient is a corporation formed in Hong Korigs lan investment holding company. Through itssadibries, Technorient offers
a diversified range of automotive products andisesvincluding sales of new and used vehicles, igimv of vehicle maintenance
and repair services, and sales of vehicle partshfi@ient’s operations are located primarily in igdfong.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, land its subsidiaries. The
consolidated financial statements have been prdparaccordance with accounting principles gengradicepted in the United States.
All significant intercompany transactions and bakshave been eliminated.

Foreign currency translation

The reporting and functional currency of the Conmypanthe U.S. dollar. The functional currency o gubsidiaries with foreign
operations is the local currency. The Company’gitpr operations results for the period are traadlatto the reporting currency of
the Company using the average exchange rates rinailed during the period. The balance sheet itefrthe Company’s foreign
operations are translated into the reporting cugreof the Company using period end exchange ra@esnulative translation
adjustments relating to foreign operations are nd in accumulated other comprehensive incomeegparate component of
stockholders’ equity.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make astiand assumptions that affect the reported amafirassets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liisilat the date of the consolidated financialestents, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting pericghagement makes its best estimate of the outcomghdse items based on
historical trends and other information availableew the consolidated financial statements are pedp&hanges in estimates are
recognized in accordance with the accounting pplesi for the estimate, which is typically in theripd when new information
becomes available to management. Management belibgemost significant estimates affecting the obdated financial statements
include provision for bad debts, provision for int@ry write-off, and accounting for income taxextdal results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all non-restricted highlyitiginstruments purchased with an original matusitghree months or less to be
cash equivalents. For purpose of the consolidat@eraent of cash flows, cash and cash equivalemtgodse cash on hand, time
deposits, and cash equivalents with a maturityhdd months or less from the date of investment.

Restricted cash deposits
Restricted cash deposits represent pledged bardsidepo secure certain banking facilities utilizmdthe Company and certain of its

fellow subsidiaries.
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Trade receivables and provision for bad debts

Trade receivables, net of provision for bad deats, concentrated with the receivables from custeniBre Company periodically
records a provision for bad debts based on manag&medgment resulting from an evaluation of thalectibility of trade
receivables by assessing, among other factorscastomer’s willingness or ability to pay, repaymédtory, general economic
conditions, and the ongoing relationship with oustomers. The total amount of this provision issd®eined by first identifying the
receivables of customers that are considered tohigher credit risk based on their current overtmunts, difficulties in collecting
from these customers in the past and their ovérahcial condition. For each of these customdre,Gompany estimates the extent
to which the customer will be able to meet its ficial obligations and records a provision that ceduour trade receivables for that
customer to the amount that is reasonably belieitdbe collected. Additional provision may be réepd in the future if the financial
condition of our customers or general economic ittt deteriorate, thereby reducing net earnifigee allowance for doubtful
accounts at December 31, 2008 was $51,816 (20070%2).

Inventory, net

Inventory consists primarily of new and used vegsdheld for sale, fashion apparel and vehicle @entisaccessories, and are stated at
the lower of cost or market. The new and used lehiare valued using the specific identificationtmod and the costs include
acquisition and transportation expenses. The \@fltiee parts and accessories are valued at therfjrBrst-out method and are stated
at the lower of cost or market. Fashion apparetiory is valued at the first-in, first-out methadd is stated at the lower of cost or
market. Write-down of potentially obsolete or slaveving inventory is recorded based on managemangsysis of inventory levels
and our assessment of estimated obsolescence based assumptions about future demand and markeditmors. Further
write-down of the value may be required in the fatif there is rapid technological and structurbhmge in the industry. The
provision for inventory as at December 31, 2008 $4451 (2007: Nil).

Fair value of financial instruments

For certain of the Company’s financial instrumeitsjuding cash and cash equivalents, trade rebkigand payables, bills payable,
other current assets, other current liabilitieg] ahort-term bank borrowings, the carrying amowaigroximate their fair values due
to their short maturities.
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Property and equipment, net

Property and equipment are stated at cost lessradated depreciation and impairment losses. Experedi for major additions and
improvements are capitalized and any minor replags) maintenance and repairs are expensed asedcWhen property and
equipment is sold or otherwise disposed of, the and related accumulated depreciation are reménesd the balance sheet. The
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retiremeinan asset is determined as the difference betweersales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets at the time of dispasd is recognized in the consolidated stateroBwperations. Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful lives of theetsssising the straight-line method, except fordbafd improvements that are
amortized over the estimated useful life or thpeetive lease term, whichever is shorter. The edtichuseful lives of the assets are:

Leasehold improvements 5 years
Plant and machinery 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Depreciation charged to expense for the years epdedmber 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $826,722,%61 and $568,655,
respectively.

The Company continually evaluates property and pgant, including leasehold improvements, to deteemwhether events and
circumstances have occurred that may warrant mvisif the estimated useful life or whether the ri@mng balance should be
evaluated for possible impairment. The Company asesstimate of the related undiscounted cash flowes the remaining life of

the property and equipment in assessing whethasset has been impaired. The Company measuresiingpailosses based upon
the amount by which the carrying amount of the tasgeeeds the fair value. Fair values generallyemtéemated using prices for
similar assets and/or discounted cash flows.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the cost of an acquired busimesquity interest in excess of the fair valugehef net assets acquired. Goodwill
is not amortized but is reviewed for potential inmpeent on an annual basis, or when events or cistances indicate a potential
impairment, using a fair-value-based approach. Apairment loss is recorded to the extent that #reying amount of goodwill
exceeds its implied fair value. At December 31, 2@hd 2008, goodwill was tested for impairment arad impairment was
recognized.

Revenue recognition

Revenue consists of sales of new and used vehidbg;le maintenance and repair services, salestotle parts and sales of fashion
apparel. Revenues from the following componentsecegnized as follows:

(i) Sales of new and used vehicles are recognizezhva sales contract has been executed and treergtitle passed.

(ii) Sales of fashion apparel and accessorieseaegnized when the products have been deliveredharitle has passed.
(iiiy  Sales of vehicle parts are recognized whenphrts have been delivered and the title has gasse

(iv)  Vehicle maintenance and repair income is retogd when services are fully rendered.
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Shipping and handling costs

Shipping and handling costs mainly comprise thdraight and sea freight charges, the freight fodireg services charges and other
relevant surcharges, and are classified as geandabperating expenses. It is charged to the ciolagetl statement of operations in
the period in which the corresponding shipmentvadito the final destination. Total shipping anddiang costs for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $1,634,9727%,772 and $993,771, respectively.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Our Company reviews our long-lived assets at laastially for potential impairment. Long-lived assate included in impairment
evaluations when events and circumstances existitidecate the carrying amount of these assets nwybe recoverable. The
carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recabke if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounteth dasvs expected to result from
the use and eventual disposition of the asset.rAqyired impairment loss is measured as the ammunthich the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset exceeds its undiscounted @asls is recorded as a reduction in the carryiatug of the related asset and a
charge to operating results. As the projectionhef indiscounted cash flows are subject to estimatamd assumptions made by
management at the date of assessment, any futarge$ in our strategy and other changes in ouratipes subsequently could
impact the projected future operating results #matinherent in estimates of fair value, resultmgnpairments in the future.

Advertising and marketing

The Company expenses the cost of advertising amietirag, which included media advertising and prtioroevents, as incurred or
when such advertising and marketing events injti@ke place. Advertising and marketing expenseshi® years ended December 31,
2008, 2007 and 2006 were $1,899,491, $1,107,16%888,726, respectively.

Other income recognition
Other income comprised of management fee inconexgst income and others.
Management fee income is recognized when servieeseadered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, byeate to the principal outstanding and at the &éffednterest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimatédréucash receipts through the expected life oflth@ to the loan’s net carrying
amount.

Share-based compensation

The Company has adopted Statement of Financial ixdotwy Standards (“SFAS”) SFAS No. 123(Rhare-Based Paymentas
amended and interpreted, for its share-based caapien which required the Company to record comatams expense for all
awards based on their grant date fair value. Thegamy utilized the modified prospective method apph, pursuant to which the
Company has recorded compensation for all awa@stgd based on their fair value.
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Pension obligation

The Company operates numerous defined contribytlans and the assets of which are generally held separate trustee
administered fund. The pension plans are genédialiged by payments from employees and/or by thevagit group companies. The
Company’s contributions to the defined contributjglans are expensed as incurred. The Company'silcotibns to the defined

contribution plans for the years ended December2808, 2007 and 2006 were approximately $207,5695%05 and $119,000,
respectively.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under theigiom of SFAS No. 109Accounting for Income Taxd€sSFAS 109”) and
related interpretations and guidance including BBy Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — atelipretation of FASB
Statement No. 109(“Fin 48”) , resulting in two components of income tax expemrserent and deferred. Current income tax
expense approximates taxes to be paid or refunolethé relevant periods. Deferred income tax expeesults from changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities between periDé$erred income tax assets and liabilities arapated for differences between the
financial statements carrying amounts and the t@se$ of existing assets and liabilities that wakult in taxable or deductible
amounts in the future, as well as from net opegaliiss and tax credit carryforwards, and are meaisat the enacted tax laws and
rates applicable in the years which the differeraresexpected to be recovered or settled. A defdee asset is recognized if it is
more likely than not that a benefit will be reatizaVe establish valuation allowance for our defén@x assets if the amount of
expected future taxable income is not more likant not to allow for the use of the deduction ceditr The Company’s operations
are primarily located in Hong Kong and subject ting Kong profits tax.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividirigoperating results for the reporting period atitéble to common stockholders by
the weighted average number of common shares adtstaduring the period. Diluted earnings per shslculated by dividing net

operating results for the reporting period attrédtlé to commons stockholders by the weighted aeeragnber of common shares
outstanding and the dilutive effect of common steqgkivalents. All per share and per share inforomatire adjusted retroactively to
the earliest periods presented to reflect the efi€the Company’s recent recapitalization betwten Company and Technorient
(Note 1) and the effect of the reverse merger.Nggte 5 for the computation of earnings per share.
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Segment reporting

The Company determines and classifies its operatggnents in accordance with SFAS No. I84closures About Segments Of An
Enterprise And Related InformationThe Company identifies and classifies its opagatsegments based on the nature of the
products and services with similar economic charéstics. The Company's reportable segments arermehicles retailing, which
includes sales of new and used vehicles, provisforehicle maintenance and repair services, aressafl vehicle parts and fashion
apparel retailing, which includes sales of fastapparel and accessories.

Related party transactions

For purposes of the Company’s consolidated findrstéiements, a related party is generally defae@) any person that holds 10%
or more of the Company’s securities and their imistedfamilies, (i) the Company’s management, @dmeone that directly or
indirectly controls, is controlled by or is undememon control with the Company, or (iv) anyone vdam significantly influence the
management or operating decisions of the Compantyadsaction is considered to be a related paaystction when there is a
transfer of resources or obligations between relptaties.

Warranty claims, purchase discounts, rebates cesdiscounts and returns

The motor vehicles and parts the Company sells hiaieed warranty policy provided by the manufaes. The warranty is limited
in terms of number of parts and services coveretheywarranty policy and the duration of the watygreriod. The Company does
not offer any purchase discount or rebate duedaittique brand of the motor vehicle the Companig.s8hles discounts are charged
to earnings in the period which the sales discoargsncurred. The Company bears the cost of anyn® of the spare parts that are
not covered by the manufacturer. These costs angetl to earnings in the period which the returesrecurred. Sales discounts for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 20@6368,289, $36,997 and $20,496, respectively.

Reclassifications

Certain financial statements line items have beetassified to conform to the current year presemtaand have no impact on the
previously reported consolidated net sales, opegaarnings or net earnings.
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NOTE 3. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stasl@oard (“FASB”) issued SFAS 15Fair Value Measurements(“SFAS
157”), which provides guidance about how to measssets and liabilities that use fair value. SFA® Will apply whenever another
US GAAP standard requires (or permits) assetsatbiliiies to be measured at fair value but doesexptaaind the use of fair value to
any new circumstances. This standard also williregadditional disclosures in both annual and arbrtreports. SFAS 157 will be
effective for financial statements issued for fisgaars beginning after November 15, 2007. In Fahri2008, the FASB issued
FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) 157-1, Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASBReS8tant No. 13 and Other Accounting
Pronouncements That Address Fair Value MeasurenfentBurposes of Lease Classification or Measuremeder Statement 13
("FSP 157-1"), which states that SFAS 157 does amidress fair value measurements for purposes st lessification or
measurement. In February 2008, the FASB issued1=3R2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 1§7SP 157-2"), which
delays the effective date for non-financial asaet$ non-financial liabilities to fiscal years begjimg after November 15, 2008, except
for items that are measured at fair value in tharftial statements on a recurring basis (at leastaly). The Company adopted the
provisions of SFAS 157 for its financial assets Aablilities and those items for which it has measuon a recurring basis effective
January 1, 2008, and the adoption did not have tarirahimpact on its financial position and resufsoperations. As provided by
FSP 157-2, the Company has elected to defer thptiadoof SFAS 157 for certain of its non-financadsets and liabilities and is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS dh its non-financial assets and liabilities.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 1B% Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and &ficial Liabilities — Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 1{5FAS 159"), which became effective for the Camp beginning January 1, 2008. This
standard permits entities to choose to measure fivgmycial instruments and certain other itemsaatalue and consequently report
unrealized gains and losses on such items in egnirhe Company elected not to adopt the fair vatogisions of SFAS 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141 (re\288Y),Business Combination(8SFAS 141(R)"). SFAS 141(R) establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquireogeizes and measures in its financial statememtsdégntifiable assets acquired,
the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling intéirghe acquiree and the goodwill acquired. SHA%(R) also establishes disclosure
requirements to enable the evaluation of the nanckfinancial effects of the business combinatiSRAS 141(R) will be effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal yeargitneing after December 15, 2008, and will be addtitg the Company beginning in
the first quarter of 2009. The Company does npeekthere to be any significant impact of adop®HAS 141(R) on its financial
position, cash flows and results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS Id6ncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financitatements — an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No.51“SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes accounting aeporting standards for ownership
interests in subsidiaries held by parties othen ti@ parent, the amount of consolidated net incattriutable to the parent and to
the noncontrolling interest, changes in a paremtisership interest, and the valuation of retainedcontrolling equity investments
when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS 160 edsablishes disclosure requirements that cleddmtify and distinguish between
the interests of the parent and the interests ehtincontrolling owners. SFAS 160 will be effeetifior financial statements issued
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2G0&| will be adopted by the Company beginning mftrst quarter of 2009. The
Company does not expect there to be any significapact of adopting SFAS 160 on its financial posit cash flows and results of
operations.
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In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and HedgActivities(“SFAS 161").
SFAS 161 is intended to improve financial reportaigout derivative instruments and hedging actisitiyy requiring enhanced
disclosures to enable investors to better undedstaeir effects on an entity’s financial positidinancial performance, and cash
flows. SFAS 161 achieves these improvements byiriegudisclosure of the fair values of derivativesiruments and their gains and
losses in a tabular format. It also provides maferimation about an entity’s liquidity by requirirtisclosure of derivative features
that are credit risk-related. Finally, it requiess-referencing within footnotes to enable finalngtatement users to locate important
information about derivative instruments. SFAS Ml be effective for financial statements issuad fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2008 and, lvéladopted by the Company beginning in the fiostrgpr of 2009. The Company
does not expect there to be any significant impaetlopting SFAS 161 on its financial position,fcélsws and results of operations.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued dyFABB (including its Emerging Issues Task FordelTF")), the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”and the SEC did not or are not believed by mamagé to have a material
impact on the Company's present or future congelitifinancial statements.

NOTE 4. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Concentration of supplier credit risk

Our Company relies on supplies from numerous vendesr the years ended December 31, 2008, 2002@0®] the Company had
two vendors that each accounted for more than 108ta supply purchases. If any of the vendorsmieate their relationships with
our Company or if our Company’s supply from the d@rs is interrupted or terminated for any reasom,may not have sufficient
time to replace the supply of products from theamimg vendors. Any such interruption would negalfvimpact our ability to sell
and distribute our products. However, the suppli@acentration of credit risk does not pose arfgafto the concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade payables as the Compaaje the purchases through facilities provideddnkb and financial institutions.

Concentration of credit risk due to geographic lbca

Our Company’s business, assets and operationsriiently focused on the sales of new and used veighrovision of vehicle
maintenance and repair services, and sales ofleghécts in Hong Kong and is currently expandisgoiperations to People Republic
of China (“PRC"), and accordingly, is affected teignificant degree by any economic, political dagal developments in Hong
Kong and PRC.

NOTE 5. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The computation of basic and diluted (loss) eamsipey share is as follows for the years ended Dbeefi1:
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200¢ 2007 200¢

Numerator:
Net (loss) earnings $ (185,00) $ 822,26. $ 559,06
Denominator:
Weighted average common stock outstanding 28,064,99 19,689,80 1,695,91
Effect of dilutive preferred stock - 9,139,23 28,287,84
Weighted average common stock and dilutive poteatimmon stock 28,064,99 28,829,03 29,983,75
Basic net (loss) earnings per share $ (0.006¢) $ 0.041f $ 0.329°
Diluted net (loss) earnings per share $ (0.006¢) $ 0.028! $ 0.018t

The weighted average common stock outstandinghforyears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 haverdteeactively adjusted
for the Reverse Stock Split (See Note 15).

The weighted average common stock outstandinghioiyear ended December 31, 2006, was also adjisstedlect the Company’s
recent recapitalization between the Company andia@ent (See Note 1). For the purpose of comgudarnings per share, the
number of shares outstanding for the period froenltéginning of the fiscal year to the date of #nerse merger is deemed to be the
number of shares issued by the legal parent. leop¢hiod from the date of the reverse merger tetttbof the fiscal year, the number
of shares to be used in the calculation of earnegshare is the actual number of shares of ta [garent outstanding in that period.
The earnings per share to be disclosed for the adatipe periods should be computed by dividinggamings of Technorient by the
number of shares issued in the reverse mergerairios.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company Ha728 and 495,791, respectively, shares of Sé&igseferred stock
outstanding and each Series A preferred stockngertible into 18.4409 shares of the Company’s comistock. As ho mandatory
dividend is attached to the Series A preferredkstno adjustment was made to the basic earningshazee to take into consideration
the Series A preferred stock. The potential diitgffect of such preferred stock is 4,569,618 ai@®232, respectively, shares of
Company’s common stock. However, these shares wetrdancluded in the computation of diluted loss phiare because the
Company reported a net loss and the effect of thelusion would be anti-dilutive.

NOTE 6. INVENTORY

Inventory by major categories at December 31 isrsarized as follows:
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200¢ 2007

New vehicles $ 4,00320 $ 3,364,85
Used vehicles 4,837,56 4,179,73
Fashion apparel 1,716,16 37,21
Parts, accessories and other 2,113,64 1,581,13

$ 12,67056 $ 9,162,93

Vehicles included in inventory of approximately $41,204 and $2,091,150 were pledged to securetdlkisg loan outstanding as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (See Mb).

NOTE 7. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets by major categories at Dece®ibare summarized as follows:

200¢ 2007
Deposits $ 156546 $ 1,471,20
Amount due from a former associate 2,183,36 1,163,71
Other receivables 2,670,27 296,95!

$ 641910 $ 2,931,87

NOTE 8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment, net, at December 31 arensuized as follows:

2008 2007
Leasehold improvements $ 351657 $ 2,037,30
Plant and machinery 628,83 487,741
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 965,49! 827,15
Motor vehicles 336,301 598,65
Total 5,447,20 3,950,86
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,541,28) (1,900,01)

$ 290592 $ 2,050,85

At December 31, 2007, the net book value of the amg’s motor vehicles included an amount of $239 /0dld under capital leases
(See Note 11).

NOTE 9. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Prior to December 7, 2007, Italian Motors (SaleSé&vice) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company (“INlLowned a 30% equity
interest in Ferrari Maserati Cars Internationaldimg (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (“FMC”). On December 2005, IML and Ferrari S.p.A
entered into an equity interest transfer agreerfehich was later amended in July 2006) relatinght® transfer of a 29% equity
interest (“Equity Transfer”) in FMC for a considéom of $870,000, subject to approval of the Equitgnsfer by the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). At December 31, 8pthe Equity Transfer had not been approved byete/ant authorities in the
PRC and, as a result, FMC continued to be accodoteas an associate of the Company under theyeméthod. During the fourth
quarter of 2007, the Equity Transfer was approvedhie relevant authorities and, as a result, then@my currently owns a 1%
equity interest in FMC.
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The following tables present audited condensechfira information of FMC as of and for the year eddbecember 31, 2006 and as
of and for the eleven months ended November, 307.20Bie amounts included in the tables set forlbvbeepresent 100% of the
financial condition and results of operations of Eccounted for under the equity method.

The condensed balance sheets of FMC as of Nove3®h@&007 and December 31, 2006 are as follows:

November 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets $ 2,262, 74 % 1,608,65
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17,627,10 3,131,31
Trade receivables, net of provision 2,203,39 10,183,79
Inventories 16,080,36 5,202,67
Prepayments 2,938,56 2,322,24
Other current assets 6,111,98 8,666,56
44,961,40 29,506,59
Total assets $ 47,224,15 $ 31,115,24
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade payables $ 11,63688: $ 10,732,11
Deposits received 12,009,01 3,926,41
Other current liabilities 19,175,51 11,862,84
42,821,40 26,521,37
Stockholders’ equity 4,402,74 4,593,86
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 47,224,15 $ 31,115,24

The condensed statements of income of FMC for lgveea months ended November 30, 2007 and the yeideDecember, 31 2006
are as follows:
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For the Eleven For the Year

Months Ended Ended
November 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Sales $ 86,314,28 $ 56,151,33
Cost of sales (64,331,30) (44,177,48)
Gross profit 21,982,97 11,973,84
Selling, general and administrative expenses (24,817,28) (11,098,16)
Operating earnings (loss) (2,834,30) 875,68!
Other income (expense) 2,334,73 531,34
Earnings (loss) before income taxes (499,571) 1,407,02
Provision for income taxes - (211,05)
Net earnings (loss) $ (499,57) $ 1,195,97

NOTE 10. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND INCOME TAXES
Deferred tax assets

Deferred taxation recognized represents foreigrseduax loss carryforwards from prior years. Grbsterred taxation comprised
federal net operating loss and foreign unuseddss tarryforwards from prior years. The federalsaultax loss carryforwards in the
amount of $2,603,640 expire through 2028 and theida unused tax loss of $2,445,378 have unlimiteeful lives under the local
regulation at where the unused tax losses wergatkriThe foreign unused tax loss carryforwardsarag be utilized by the entities
generating such losses.

The Company has provided valuation allowances @74 and $390,532 in respect of federal net dipgréoss and foreign unused
tax loss carryforwards, respectively, which it does expect to utilize.

Net deferred tax assets at December 31 consikedbtlowing:

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss carryforwards and gross deferred tax sisset $ 1,30180 $ 774,02!
Valuation allowance (1,301,80) (774,02)
Net deferred tax assets $ - $ -

Gross deferred tax assets at December 31, 20086@d were reduced by valuation allowance of $1@0d,and $774,025,
respectively. The total valuation allowance betwpenods presented increased by $527,781 and supkase was attributable to the
tax effect on foreign tax losses incurred for tearyended December 31, 2008 of $232,736 at enfmtEidn profit tax rates, effect of
change in tax rate on foreign tax losses carryfodwaf $53,407, exchange rate effect on foreigrsaduax losses carryforwards of
$42,040 and the tax effect on federal net operdtiag incurred for the year ended December 31, 20806,411 at the federal tax
rate of 35%.

Income taxes

The components of the provision for income taxegte years ended December 31 are as follows:
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2008 2007 200¢

Current:

United States of America $ - % - %

PRC $ 61,64: $ - $

Hong Kong $ 892,91 $ - $
Deferred:

United States of America $ - $ - $

PRC $ - % - 3 -

Hong Kong $ - $ 538,57! $ 270,51

No provision of current income tax was provided floe years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 a&s #ith assessable profits
were set off by the unused tax loss carryforwardsom-assessable profits were derived.

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxl@alated using the statutory federal income tar &atd state and local income tax
rate to the Company'’s provision for income taxedlie years ended December 31 is as follows:

200¢ 2007 200¢

Provision for income taxes at statutory rate of 35% $ 103433 $ 1,03639 $ 626,58
State and local income taxes - - 161,12
Foreign (466,25, (622,961) (576,96
Non-deductible expenses and non-assessable profits (193,791 (82,56¢) 15,35
Tax losses not yet recognized 699,89: 207,71 254,311
Utilization of unrecognized tax losses (119,621) - (209,89)
Income taxes $ 954,561 $ 538,57 $ 270,51
NOTE 11. BORROWINGS AND BILLS PAYABLE
The Company's borrowings at December 31 consitteofollowing:

200¢ 2007
Bank borrowings $ 8,790,80 $ 3,307,59
Stocking loans 1,144,62 1,967,24
Obligations under finance lease - 110,99

9,935,43 5,385,83

Borrowings due after one year — obligations underice lease - -
Short-term borrowings $ 993543 $ 5,385,83

The bank borrowings, which are mainly used to foeathe purchase of vehicles, and stocking loansecared by pledged bank
deposits and/or guarantees provided by fellow slida$es and are interest-bearing. The interess rate generally based on the bank's
best lending rate plus a certain percentage andrduit lines are normally subject to periodic eavi The range of effective interest
rates (which are also equal to contracted inteaets) on the Company’s borrowings for the yeareednbDecember 31, 2008 were
from 4.25% to 6.25% per annum (2007: 6% to 8.50%apmum). Vehicles included in inventory of approately $1,541,204 and
$2,091,150 were pledged to secure the stockingsloatstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007ectsgely (See Note 6). The
weighted average effective interest rate on thetdham borrowings as at December 31, 2008 was4.@D07: 7%).
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At December 31, 2007, the current portion togethigh the non-current portion of finance lease wasused by motor vehicle
included in property and equipment with a carryiadue of approximately $239,041 (See Note 8).

Bills payable for both periods presented represstters of credit obtained for the purchase of methicles and are interest free.
Once the bills payable are due, the bills payatdecanverted to bank borrowings.

NOTE 12. DEPOSITS RECEIVED

The deposits received mainly represent the amoreusived from customers in relation to the purchas@ew vehicles. The
customer is required to make a deposit when a salgsact is executed between the customer an@aonepany and the amount of
deposit being made is in accordance to the termsanditions of the sales contract.

NOTE 13. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other current liabilities by major categories acBmber 31 are summarized as follows:

2008 2007
Accruals $ 1,687,114 $ 1,067,88
Other payables 5,718,31 6,020,54

$ 740545 $ 7,088,42

The other payables mainly comprised the first tegfi®n tax on motor vehicles sold. First registnattax is applicable to new motor
vehicles sold in Hong Kong and is computed on @@ssive rate based on the gross selling prickeofiéw motor vehicles.

NOTE 14. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO AFFILIATES

The amounts due from/to affiliates comprised the@ams due from/to entities that are under the comoumtrol, where Mr. Richard
Man Fai LEE is the common director of the Compamg the affiliates.

Of the amounts due from affiliates as of Decemhkr 208, approximately $11,031,165 (2007: $10,18%,0n aggregate were

unsecured, interests bearing at a rate of 5.5%apeum (2007: 8.25%-8.5% per annum) and payableeomadd. The remaining

amounts due from related parties of approximatel§5$938 (2007: $38,000) were unsecured, interest find payable on

demand. The transactions resulting in amountsfidue affiliates were interest bearing loans to #fifliate companies mainly for

the purpose of providing working capital to sucimpanies. The amounts due to affiliates were unsécinterest free and repayable
on demand.
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Our policy for evaluating the collectability of aomis due from affiliates is similar to the othecewables. The Company
periodically considers a provision for uncolleatiportions of the amounts due from affiliates basednanagement’s judgment
resulting from an evaluation of the collectabilitffamounts due from affiliates by assessing, anaihgr factors, the related party’'s
willingness and ability to pay, repayment histonglayeneral economic conditions.

NOTE 15. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
General

The Company’s total authorized capital at Decen®ier2008, is 500,000,000 shares of which 400,0@0gb@res are common stock
of par value $0.005 and 100,000,000 shares arerpeef stock of par value $0.001. At December 3082@9,104,110 shares of
common stock and 247,798 shares of preferred stesgectively, were issued and outstanding.

Preferred stock

On April 7, 2006, in order to satisfy certain praigins of the potential share exchange with Tecknbis of that date, the Company
amended its Articles of Incorporation for the auikation of 100,000,000 shares of “blank check’feneed stock. As of December
31, 2006, the Company had 1,533,973 shares ofsS&referred stock issued and outstanding. Thiee$ér preferred stock has no
mandatory dividend with a liquidation preference$@0.00 per share and each share of Series A pdfetock is convertible in
18.4409 shares of Company’s common.

The following is the movement of Series A preferstack during the year 2006:

- On September 5, 2006, the Company issued an aggrefya72,728 shares of the Series A preferreckstoexchange for 49%
the issued and outstding shares of Technorient. The issuance of Sérigeferred stock was pursuant to the terms amdlitions
of the share exchange agreement between the Corapdriyechnorient (See Note 1).

- During September 2006, the Company issued 561,B4fes 6 Series A preferred stock to Happy Emerald Limi{@dappy
Emerald”), a related party, for consulting servited®e provided to Technorient after the share axgh. Mr Charles Miseroy, t
former chief financial officer and treasurer of tiempany, was the controlling equity holder of Hafmerald.

The following is the movement of Series A prefersgack during the year 2007:

- The Company’s Series A preferred stockholders, Mapmerald Limited, Mr. Herbert Adamczyk, Corich Ergrises Inc. ar
Orient Financial Services Limited converted 65,454reh, 167,273 shares, 727,273 shares and 78,185 sifeSeries A preferr
stock, respectively, into the Company’s restrictechmon stock.
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- As a result of the Reverse Stock Split, toaversion price of the Company’s Series A pretes®ck has been adjusted up by
one-tofive ratio from $0.04338 to $0.2169 per share, #mel conversion ratio of the shares of common stesked upo
conversion of the Series A preferred stock hesnbproportionately decreased from 92.2045 shdresnomon stock per one sh
of Series A preferred stock to 18.4409 shares wof cammon stock per one share of Series A prefesteck. The conversion rat
and per-share amounts have been adjusted,retraactive basis, to reflect the effect of RegeBock Split. Each stockholde
percentage ownership interest in the Company apnggptional voting power remains unchanged after Ragerse Stock Sp
except for minor changes and adjustments resuitorg rounding of fractional interests.

The following is the movement of Series A prefersgack during the year 2008:

- The Company's Series A preferred stockholder, Glélsamium Brands, Co. Inc. converted 247,798 shafe3eries A preferre
stock into the Company'’s restricted common stock.

- The Company had previously reported that 495,79teshof Series A Preferred Stock were issued atefamding as of Decemt
31, 2007. However, only 495,596 shares of Seridaréferred Stock were issueaid outstanding as of December 31, 2007.
Company deems this overstatement of 195 sharesrisSA Preferred Stock as immaterial and havingnagerial impact on pe
reports, thus no adjustment was made retrospegtivgiast reports. Instead, cection to the stockholders records was made d
the current period.

Common stock

The following is the movement of common stock fog period from July 1, 2006 to September 4, 2006:

- During August 2006, 1,800,000 shares of commonkstéthe Compay owned by Fred De Luca and Federico G. Cabogtdirs
of the Company, were cancelled pursuant to theestveshange agreement in connection to the revezsgem

- During September 2006, 3,320,000 shares of the @oyp restricted common stock weissued to Edward W. Withrow,
(“Withrow”), a stockholder of the Company, to fulgettle the Company’s promissory note payable @ ghincipal amount
$950,000.

- During September 2006, 1,005,867 shares of the @oyip restricted common stock messued as the holders of the Compe
10% callable convertible notes agreed to convertlb?s callable convertible notes in the principabant of $1,000,000 into su
number of shares.

The following is the movement of common stock fog period from September 5, 2006 to December 316:20

- On November 15, 2006, the Company issued 140,0afestof its common stock to Withrow as compensatimnconsultanc
services received in the amount of $175,000. Thancon stock issued was pursuant to asciting agreement between
Company and Withrow.
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The following is the movement of common stock dgrihe year 2007:

- The Company’s Series A preferred stockholders, Mdpmerald Limited, Mr. Herbert Adamczyk, Corich Ergrises Inc. iad
Orient Financial Services Limited converted 65,454res, 167,273 shares, 727,273 shares and 78483 ©f Series A preferr
stock, respectively, into 1,210,631 shares, 3,@8dhares, 13,411,568 shares and 1,441,743 stespsctively, of th€ompany’
restricted common stock at a conversion ratio 8elies A preferred stock to 18.4409 shares of comstack. On March 29, 20
and June 8, 2007, 17,706,864 shares and 1,441ha4&ssof restricted common stock in connectionuthsSeries A mferred stoc
conversion were issued.

- On December 7, 2007, the Company effected a rewtosk split pursuant to which each five outstagdihares of common sto
par value $0.001, were automatically converted ame share of common stock, palwa$0.005, and the total number of shart
our common stock outstanding was reduced from 722284 shares to 24,534,491 (the “Reverse Stodk’SpNo change we
made in the number of the Company’s authorizedeshado script or fractional share tificates were issued in connection with
Reverse Stock Split. Stockholders received a nurabshares of hew common stock rounded up to tleeese whole number
lieu of fractional interests resulting from the Rese Stock Split. All of the share number, shareeprand peshare amounts ha
been adjusted, on a retroactive basis, to refleeteffect of the Reverse Stock Split. Each stoakdrtd percentage owners
interest in the Company and proportional voting povwemains unchanged afteetReverse Stock Split except for minor cha
and adjustments resulting from rounding of fractiomterests. The rights and privileges of the baddof common stock ¢
substantially unaffected by the Reverse Stock Split

The following is the movement of common stock dgrihe year 2008:

- The Company's Series A preferred stockholder, Glélvsamium Brands, Co. Inc. converted 247,798 shafeeries A preferre
stock into 4,569,619 shares of the Company’s stticommon stock at a conversioniaatf 1 Series A preferred stock to 18.4
shares of common stock. On March 24, 2008, 4,589%64res of restricted common stock in connecticsuth Series A preferr
stock conversion were issued.

NOTE 16. EQUITY STOCK PLAN

On May 2005, the Company adopted an incentive ygtiick plan (the “2005 Plan”) that authorized igsuance of options, right to
purchase common stock and stock bonuses up to @D@Jtares. The purpose of the 2005 Plan is to geeovicentives to attract,
retain and motivate eligible persons whose presedtpotential contributions are important to thecgss of the Company by offering
them an opportunity to participate in the Comparfytire performance through awards of stock optighe right to purchase
common stock.
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The 2005 Plan was filed with the Securities andhaxge Commission on June 2, 2005 as an ExhibitRoren S-8 Registration
Statement. There have been no options granted wthde2005 Plan during the periods presented anchtimeber of securities
remaining available for future issuance under B@52Plan was 19,500 as of December 31, 2008.

NOTE 17. INTEREST EXPENSES AND OTHER FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses represent interest charged g l@end other financial institution on bank borroggrand stocking loans granted to
the Company and are computed based on the apgigatierest rates on the unpaid amounts of thosk barrowings or stocking
loans. The range of effective interest rates onQbmpany’s borrowings for the year ended DecemthePB08 were from 4.25% to
6.25% per annum (2007: 6% to 8.50% per annum).

Other finance costs comprised bank and adminig&ratharges charged by banks on the opening andrdydetter of credit. The
bank and administrative charges are computed basadccertain percentage of the amount as per edolidual letter of credit.

NOTE 18. BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
Business Segments

The Company operates in two business segmentscéetand Fashion Apparel. The Company’s reportegents are strategic
business units that offer different products andises. They are managed separately based on tigarmental differences in their
operations.

The Vehicles segment consists primarily of the groficompanies doing business as Auto Italia Lichis@d Dalian Auto Italia Car
Trading Co., Limited. The Vehicle segment includedes of new and used vehicles, provision of vehichintenance and repair
services, and sales of vehicle parts.

The Fashion Apparel segment consists primarily BM8 (Asia) Limited. The Fashion Apparel segmentyvides wholesale and
retailing of fashion apparel.

Information by industry segment is set forth befowthe years ended December 31:
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Fashior

2008 Vehicles Apparel Corporate Elimination Consolidatec
Sales

External sales $ 122,649,10 $ 930,41 $ $ - $ 123,579,51

Inter-segment sales 2,44: - (2,447) -

Net sales 122,651,54 $ 930,41 (2,447) 123,579,51

Results

Operating earnings 4,479,77 (1,209,14) (1,312,48) 1,958,15

Interest revenue 101,77 12,65( 114,42

Interest expense (554,74) (14,720 (569,47))
Other income 1,452,13

Earnings before minority interes

and income taxes 2,955,24

Provision for income tax (954,561) (954,561)
Earnings before minority interes 2,000,68

Minority interests (2,185,69)
Net loss (185,001)
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Fashior

2007 Vehicles Apparel Corporate Elimination Consolidatec
Sales

External sales $ 106,503,30 $ 9,16¢ $ - $ 106,512,47

Inter-segment sales - - - -

Net sales 106,503,30 $ 9,16¢ 106,512,47

Results

Operating earnings 3,883,55 (174,509 (753,38) 2,955,66

Interest revenue 28,24t 28,24t

Interest expense (770,24 (27¢) (770,52)
Other income 1,149,91

Loss on disposal of interest in

associate (252,309
Share of result of an associate (149,87)
Earnings before minority interests

and income taxes 2,961,13

Provision for income tax (538,57 (538,57
Earnings before minority interests 2,422,55

Minority interests (1,600,29)
Net earnings 822,26:
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Fashion

2006 Vehicles Apparel Corporate Elimination Consolidatec
Sales
External sales 71,534,59 $ $ - - $ 71,534,59
Inter-segment sales 94¢ - (94¢€) -
Net sales 71535,53( $ - (94¢€) 71,534,59
Results
Operating earnings 2,026,61 (386,87.) 1,639,73
Interest revenue 3,91: - 3,91:
Interest expense (432,65)) (127) (432,77))
Other income 220,57
Loss on disposal of interest in
associate
Share of result of an associate 358,79
Earnings before minority interests a
income taxes 1,790,24
Provision for income tax (270,51 - (270,51,
Earnings before minority interests 1,519,73
Minority interests (960,66/)
Net earnings 559,06:
Fashior

Vehicles Apparel Corporate Consolidatec
2008
Total assets $ 5336325 $ 2,318,44 1,469,41 $ 57,151,11
Depreciation and amortization 761,27 65,44 - 826,72
Net capital expenditures 1,611,02 250,58! - 1,861,61
2007
Total assets $ 41584,77 $ 1,138,07 1,469,45 $ 44,192,29
Depreciation and amortization 706,81 15,54 - 722,36
Net capital expenditures 340,36: 77,63: - 417,99
2006
Total assets $ 3269789 $ 1,469,44 $ 34,167,33
Depreciation and amortization 568,65! - 568,65!
Net capital expenditures 890,76! - 890,76!
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Geographic Information:

No segment information is provided as the Groupy dxals one geographical segment. The Group’s rdgertausiness segments are
Vehicle and Fashion Apparel, which the operations lacated in PRC (including Hong Kong and Macaun}l sales were
predominately made to customers located in the @Ruding Hong Kong and Macau).

NOTE 19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Litigation, Claims and Assessments

From time to time the Company may be involved irioigs disputes and litigation matters arising ie ttormal course of business. It
is the Company's belief that the resolution of ¢hemtters will not have a material adverse effedt®financial position or results of
operations, however, management cannot providerassel that damages that result in a material adveffect on its financial
position or results of operations will not be impdsn these matters. The Company accounts foringmntt liabilities when it is
probable that future expenditures will be made suth expenditures can be reasonably estimated.

On December 19, 2008, the Company filed an acttyted China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. v. Hagpyerald Limited, et
al., in the United States District Court, Centraltfict of California, Case No. SACV08-1439 (the “eedl Court Action”), asserting
claims for Securities Fraud, Breach of Contracaule; Conversion, Unjust Enrichment, Constructivest,rBreach of Fiduciary Duty
and Declaratory Relief. The Company has named H&pperald Ltd., a purported British Virgin Islandsrporate entity (“HEL"),
Global Premium Brands Co., Inc., a defunct Calif@x@orporation (“California Global”), Global PremmuBrands Co., Inc., a Nevada
corporation (“Nevada Global”), Fred De Luca, CharMiseroy, Delia Rodriguez, Robert G. Pautsch, &idhCabo and Federico
Cabo as defendants (collectively, the “Defendants”)

The Company asserts in the Federal Court Action tihe Defendants have acted in concert to fraudylebtain shares of the
Company’s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock {Breferred Shares”) and, in some instances, hea&ched their fiduciary duties
to the Company relating to their conducts involvihg Preferred Shares. The Company authorizedsguance of the Preferred
Shares as consideration for certain future serviwese performed by HEL under a July 15, 2006 Chimgu Services
Agreement. HEL, however, as alleged in the Fedeaairt Action, has not performed the required smviand the Preferred Shares
have accordingly never been paid for. The Comgmeiieves the Preferred Shares are subject to datioel In the Federal Court
Action, the Company alleges that the Defendant lemproperly obtained certificates for the Prefdr8hares, attempted to transfer
the Preferred Shares between themselves, and stmighdve the restrictive legend removed from aiporof the Preferred
Shares. The Company is seeking a declarationeopénties’ respective rights regarding the PrefeBbares as well as injunctive
relief and damages against the Defendants.
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In a related matter, the Company was named aseadi@fit in a state court action, styfeederico G. Cabo, et al. v. China Premium
Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc., et al.,California Superior Court, Ventura County, Case BH6-2008-00333382-CU-BC-VTA (the “State
Court Action”). The plaintiffs in the State Coukttion (defendants in the Federal Court Action) &wcb Cabo, Fred De Luca, and
Nevada Global, asserted various claims againstipfeillefendants relating to the Preferred Sharesets to HEL in which these
plaintiffs claim an interest. The plaintiffs ageer claims for estoppels, slander of title, conigrand constructive trust against the
Company in the State Court Action. By agreemetth Wie plaintiffs in the State Court Action, thetst Court Action was dismissed,
without prejudice, and it is anticipated that tlaeng or similar claims will be asserted in the Fad@ourt Action. The Company
denies any such alleged wrongdoing and will vigslpulefend these claims if they are asserted inFgaeral Court Action. The
Company, however, is unable to evaluate the likelthof an outcome, favorable or unfavorable, to@oenpany at this time or to
estimate the amount or range of a possible loss.

The Company, however, is unable to evaluate thedifikod of an outcome, favorable or unfavorableh® Company at this time or
to estimate the amount or range of a possible loss.

Operating Lease Commitments

The Company leases its dealership facilities, sereenter facilities and office space under norcelable operating leases in Hong
Kong and PRC. Minimum future rental payments rezpliunder non-cancellable operating leases in effectf December 31, 2008
are as follows:

2009 $ 3,975,75
2010 3,577,84
2011 2,184,33
2012 2,076,54
2013 1,889,37

$ 13,703,84

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2008,and 2006 was $3,507,032, $1,291,705 and $404, respectively.
Employment Agreements

The Company maintains employment agreements vegitexiecutive officers which extend through 2009. ageements provide for a
base salary, annual bonus to be determined by tiedBof Directors, termination payments, stock amdi non-competition

provisions, and other terms and conditions of emplent. In addition, the Company maintains employtregreements with other
key employees with similar terms and conditions oADecember 31, 2008, termination payments tajc#617,258 remain in effect.
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NOTE 20. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of significant transaos among certain related parties and the Companyngl the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006:
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Note 200¢ 2007 200¢

Sales to:
- A related company @ $ - $ 395,27 $ -
- Affiliates @ 30,06¢ 203,85: 601,64!
- An associate (a) - - 70,73
Purchases from:
- Director of the Company €) 600,001 173,11! -
- Affiliates @ 97,33: 261,17! 17,94!
- An associate (a) - 6,831,03 1,677,79
Interest received from:
- Affiliates (b) 579,641 605,491 19,75:
Management fee paid to:
- Affiliates (c) 386,85. - 309,15!
Management fee received from:
- Affiliates (c) 184,93 153,88
Service fee from:
- An associate (c) - 630,80: 643,81
Rental paid to:
- Affiliates (c) 13,90: 2,18(
Rental income received from:
- Affiliates (c) 154,11! -
Building management fee paid to:
- Affiliates (c) 2,70° 614
Warehouse expenses paid to:
- Affiliates (c) 11,10 -
Issuance of common stock:
- A stockholder (c) - - 175,00!
Notes:
(a) The transactions were carried out at market pricemMpere no market price was available, at coss glupercentage prc
mark-up.

(b) The loan advance to a fellow subsidiary is sosed, bears interest at5% per annum (2007: 8.25% to 8.5% per annum; :
9.25% per annum) and repayable on demand.

(c) The transactions were carried out at termseamhbetween both parties.

NOTE 21. SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Effective February 25, 2009, Mr. Nils A. Ollquist® appointed as a director of the Company.

End of consolidated financial statements.
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON A CCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

Item 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Fir@al Officer (“CFQ”), have performed an evaluatiofh the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, asténm is defined in Rule 15d-15(e) of the Se@msiExchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), as of December 3082ind each has concluded that such disclosureot®m@ind procedures are
effective to ensure that information required to disclosed in our periodic reports filed under techange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pienmds specified by the Securities and Exchangarf@ission’s rules and forms.
Disclosure controls and procedures include withiouitation, controls and procedures designed taienthat information required to
be disclosed in company reports filed or submittedler the Exchange Act is accumulated and commiguicep management,
including our chief executive officer and treasyeer appropriate to allow timely decisions regagdiisclosure.

As required by Rule 15d-15 under the Exchange éut,Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial iOfr carried out
an evaluation of the effectiveness of the desigh @peration of our disclosure controls and proceslas of December 31, 2008.
Based on their evaluation, they concluded thatdiseiosure controls and procedures were effective.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANKREPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing raathtaining adequate internal control over finahcéporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 15d-15{fle Company’s internal control over financialogpg is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl financial reporting and the preparation ofancial statements for external
purposes in accordance with accounting principlesecally accepted in the United States of AmerlBecause of its inherent
limitations, internal control over financial repioig may not prevent or detect misstatements. Afsojections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject tailethat controls may become inadequate becauskasfges in conditions or because
the degree of compliance with policies or procedunay deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participationoaf management, including our CEO and CFO, we goted an
assessment of the effectiveness of our internataloover financial reporting as of December 31020The assessment was based on
criteria established in the frameworldnternal Control — Integrated Framework,ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basethisnassessment, management concluded that otmaht®ntrol over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008 &hnual report does not include an attestatiparteof the Company’s registered
public accounting firm regarding internal contreleo financial reporting. Management’s report was subject to attestation by the
Company’s independent registered public accourfiimg pursuant to temporary rules of the Securiiesl Exchange Commission
that permit the Company to provide only managensemeport in this annual report.
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CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN

There were no changes in our internal control dwvencial reporting (as defined in Rule 15d-15(fider the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) during the quartded December 31, 2008 that have materiallycegte or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controVer financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERN ANCE
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following tables set forth information regamglithe Company’s current executive officers and alines of the
Company. The Board of Directors is comprised ofyanie class. Except as otherwise described belbwf the directors will serve
until the next annual meeting of stockholders dil @heir successors are elected and qualifiedyndit their earlier death, retirement,
resignation or removal. Also provided herein arefbdescriptions of the business experience of efgttor and executive officer
during the past five years and an indication okdiorships held by each director in other compasiggect to the reporting
requirements under the federal securities laws.

Name Age Position Director Since
Richard Man Fai Lee 52 Chief Executive Offideresident and November 2006
Chairman of the Board of  Directors
Herbert Adamczyk 68 Chief Operating Officer d@idector November 2006
Joseph Tik Tung Wong 52 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer Nober 2006
Fred De Luca 78 Director September 2005
Yun Fai Leung 52 Independent Non-Executive &oe November 2008
Nils A. Ollquist 52 Director February 2009

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE DESCRIPTIONS

The business background descriptions of the exexofficers and directors are as follows:

Richard Man Fai Leds 52 years old and has served as the Companysf Elxecutive Officer and President since
2006. Mr. Lee is the Executive Chairman and Chieécutive Officer of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Stock
Exchange listed company, and through Corich Ensaprnc., the controlling shareholder of Techndriamited. He is responsible
for formulating the overall strategic planning angsiness development of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) teéchiand its group companies
(the “Wo Kee Hong Group”), which include the Compahir. Lee has 29 years experience in marketinguoorer products. He has a
bachelor's degree and a master's degree in busidesisistration from the University of Minnesota.$eptember 2006, Mr. Lee was
bestowed the title of “Commander of the Order &f 8tar of Italian Solidarity” by Hon. Romano Pratlie Prime Minister of Italy, in
recognition of his contribution in advancing Italibusiness and culture in Hong Kong and China. He also elected and had served
for two consecutive terms as the Chairman of théidRAssociation of Hong Kong, the trade associatbmaudio visual business in
Hong Kong. He has been with the Wo Kee Hong Grau@5 years.

Herbert Adamczyk is 68 years old and has served as the Company&s Operating Officer since 2006. Mr. Adamczyk
is also the Managing Director of Technorient. He baer 44 years of experience in the automotiveetia Hong Kong. Originally a
semi-professional racing driver and a senior erggimgth Volkswagen and Porsche in Germany, MidddstEand Hong Kong, Mr.
Adamczyk has been with Technorient, a member offbeKee Hong Group, for 26 years.
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Joseph Tik Tung Wong, FCCA, CiBA52 years old and has served as the Company&f Eimancial Officer and Treasurer
since 2006. Mr. Wong is also an Executive Direend the Chief Financial Officer of Wo Kee Hong (Hiolgs) Limited. He is a
qualified accountant, a fellow member of the Asatich of Chartered Certified Accountants and ameiase member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. ksean Independent Non-executive Director of Chi @igelInvestment Company,
Limited.

Fred De Lucais 78 years old and has been a Director of the 2oy since September 2005. Mr. De Luca practiced
corporate law over a twenty-nine year period asrenér member of the State Bar of California (“Stage”). Some years thereafter,
from July 1999 until January 2003, Mr. De Luca senas Secretary and as a consultant to Quicktestc5,In January 2003,
Quicktest 5, Inc. was the surviving entity of a gerwith a public company and became QT5, Inc.,pileglecessor entity to the
Company. Mr. De Luca continued to serve as Seagretad consultant to Addison-Davis Diagnostics, [fiarmerly QT 5, Inc.) from
January 2003 to the present. In addition, in Sep&r2004 he became a director of Addison-Davis maatics, Inc. From July 1995
to the present, Mr. De Luca has also served as@eygr director and consultant to Sound City Eaiarhent Group. From September
1989 to the present, Mr. De Luca has been a camulb Automotive Racing Products. Mr. De Luca edras Secretary of the
Company from September 2005 until November 2006. D& Luca earned his undergraduate degree at WitiveCalifornia Los
Angeles (UCLA) and his law degree at Southwestenivéisity School of Law. In connection with th@m@pany’'s investigation
regarding its claims in the Federal Court Actidre Company has learned the following accordingtédeBar records: On February
16, 1989, Mr. De Luca became voluntarily inactitendering his resignation to the State Bar (witlrgkes pending). State Bar
records list a disciplinary file number of 89-Q-1G4for Mr. De Luca. On February 2, 1990, his statwas officially changed to
“resigned from the California State Bar.” Furthas,set forth in court filings and local media acus, following a 1988 indictment,
Mr. De Luca plead guilty to failure to report adan bank account and submitting false tax retuivis. De Luca served six months
in prison and received five years’ probation.

Yun Fai Leung i$2 years old and is an independent non-executirecr of the Company. Mr. Leung has been a senio
manager at HLM & Co a certified public accountimgnf since June 2004. From March 2000 to June 2BB4l.eung was a director
at High Progress Consultants LTD where he workefinance and investment projects. Mr. Leung i® aarrently a director of
G-Prop (Holdings) Ltd., a Hong Kong listed publangpany, and High Progress Consultants Ltd. Mr.nigeeceived his BBA from
Newport University.

Nils A. Ollquistis 52 years old and is a Director of the Compdty.Ollquist holds degrees in economics and lavmfro
the Australian National University at CanberraManaging Director and a Principal of OFS Capitab@r Ltd., an international
merchant banking firm providing listing and capitalsing services for clients through offices i t4.S., Hong Kong, Switzerland
and India. Prior to founding OFS Capital Group Lidr. Ollquist served as head of Bank of Ameriaasrgers & acquisitions group
for Asia based in San Francisco and subsequentlygH¢ong. Prior to his career in banking, Mr. Olkjuserved as a senior
executive in the Australia Federal Treasury, intigda term as Senior Executive Assistant to then theeasury Secretary. Mr.
Ollquist was appointed to the Board of Directorieeive February 25, 2009 to hold office for a pdriof six (6) months from the
date of his election. Mr. Ollquist's appointmenayrbe extended by mutual consent or earlier tet®ihd he resigns or is removed
by the Company.
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OTHER KEY MANAGEMENT

In addition to Messrs. Lee, Adamczyk and Wong whbgxgraphical information is set forth above, ttwddwing
individuals constitute the senior management ofTtaehnorient Group.

John Newman MIMI, is 42 years old and is the Executive Vieeesident of the Company. He is also Wo Kee Hong
Group General Manager of Auto Italia and IML, betibsidiaries of the Technorient Group. He hasezts/of experience with blue
chip sports and luxury car manufacturers and ingpsytand was a director of a successful motor gaigam in Europe. He holds a
Diploma in Business and Finance, is a qualifiedt@ind is a member of the Institute of the Motatustry in the UK. Experienced in
sales, marketing, distribution, dealer developmemédia communications and customer relationshipagament, he joined the
company in 2005.

Patrick Man Kit Liis 52 years old and is the Corporate SecretatheofCompany and the Company Secretary of the Wo
Kee Hong Group. He holds a bachelor’'s degreevinflam Nottingham Trent University and a masterkgcee in Chinese law from
Peking University. Mr. Li has worked in varioushtic companies in the fields of construction, tragliand transportation listed in
Hong Kong, London and Shanghai and has many ydaexperience in corporate compliance and corpofiat&nce. He is an
associate member of both the Institute of Charté3edretaries and Administrators and the AssociatibiChartered Certified
accountants.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS
There are no family relationships among any ofditectors or officers.
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Richard Lee, our Chief Executive Officer, was adsdirector of Forward International Singapore (Bi&) Limited, Wo

Kee Hong (Singapore) Pte Limited and Forward Etetts (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Forward Internationiaig&pore (Private) Limited
and Wo Kee Hong (Singapore) Pte Limited had bessolired pursuant to creditors’ winding-up procegdioommenced in the High
Court of the Republic of Singapore based on antadéng judgment debt on January 4, 2002 for theuwsrhof Singapore Dollars
4,074,944.10 and Singapore Dollars 2,024,942.583pemdively. These winding-up proceedings concluded September 8,
2005. Creditors’ winding up proceedings of Forwatdctronics (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. was commenced erirary 13, 2008 at the
High Court of Malaysia at Kuala Lumpur and was ldasa an outstanding judgment debt for the amourMalaysian Ringgits
670,060.77. A winding up petition will be held April 29, 2009 in relation thereto.

Other than the above-described bankruptcy procgedione of our directors or executive officers hging the past
five years:
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. had any bankruptcy petition filed by or against &aginess of which such person was a general pastrexecutiv
officer, either at the time of the bankruptcy othin two years prior to that time;

. been convicted in a criminal proceeding and noneuofdirectors or executive officers is subjecatpending crimini
proceeding;

. been subject to any order, judgment,dacree not subsequently reversed, suspended otedaof any court ¢
competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporargypjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise lingtirhis
involvement in any type of business, securitiegjries, commaodities or banking activities; or

. been found by a court of competent jurisdiction dircivil action), the Securities and Exchange Cossion or th
Commodity Futures Trading Commission to have vaiaa federal or state securities or commodities kwvd th
judgment has not been resed, suspended, or vacated.

The Company has named Federico G. Cabo, the Consptoryner Chief Executive Officer and Director, Cles Miseroy, the
Company’s former Chief Financial Officer, Robert Bautsch, the Company’s former President and @ireand Fred De Luca, the
Company’s former Secretary and currently a Direasrdefendants in the Company’s Federal CourtbActigainst Happy Emerald
Limited et al. A more detailed description of tBempany’s claims with respect to the foregoing ferrand current officers and
directors is set forth in Part I, Item 3 (Legal &edings) of this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 16(A) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT
The Company is not subject to the requirementsecfién 16.

CODE OF ETHICS

On April 24, 2008, the Company adopted a Code ofifsess Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) applicaloleits
employees, officers and directors. A copy of tlee€is filed herewith as Exhibit 14.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors is currently composed okfinembers, two of whom are employees. All membemipBoard
of Directors serve in this capacity until theirrter expire or until their successors are duly eteeted qualified. Our bylaws provide
that the authorized number of directors shall berdg&ined from time to time by a majority of our bo@f directors or stockholders.
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Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee has been appointed as tfe@r@an of the Board of Directors and is also ohire€Executive
Officer. In this capacity, he is responsible foretieg with the other executive officers and the ot review financial and
operating results, agendas and minutes of board¢@mdhittee meetings, and presiding at the meetifijsee committees of the Board
of Directors. On November 8, 2007, Mr. Federica3abo and Mr. Fred De Luca were re-elected as diretty a unanimous vote of
all of the holders of preferred stock, purportetdpresenting the holders of a majority of the vdtede cast by holders of our
common stock.. Mr. Federico G. Cabo resigned deeatdr of the Company on March 27, 2008. BecahseCompany believes that
the shares of Series A Preferred Stock that werpoptedly issued to Happy Emerald Limited, andsillres of common stock
converted therefrom, are subject to cancellatioa,Gompany disputes whether Messrs. Cabo and D& Wwace properly elected to
the Board of Directors. A more detailed descriptid the Company’s claims with respect to the shaueportedly issued to Happy
Emerald Limited is set forth in Part |, Item 3 (laédProceedings) of this Report.

Board Committees and Audit Committee Financial Expe

As of the date of this annual report, our BoardDifectors had not appointed an audit, nominating@npensation
committee, however, we are not currently requirechave such committees. Accordingly, we do not hawe‘audit committee
financial expert” as such term is defined in thiesyromulgated under the Securities Act of 1938 the Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. The functions ordinarily handled by tresamittees are currently handled by our entire BadrDirectors. Our Board of
Directors intends, however, to review our govermastructure and institute board committees, incgdaudit, nomination and
compensation committees as necessary and advisahke future, to facilitate the management of bbusiness.

On November 13, 2008, prior to the Company’s filofgghe Federal Court Action against Happy Emetaidited, et
al ., the Board of Directors formed a Litigation Coittee and appointed Mr. Richard Lee, Mr. HerberaAatzyk and Mr. Yun Fai
Leung to serve as the committee’s members on afimitd basis. The Litigation Committee was fornfedthe purpose of assisting
and evaluating the Company’s legal rights and @t with respect to the shares of Series A Pesfe8tock that were purportedly
issued to Happy Emerald Limited, all shares of camnstock converted therefrom, and related matteid far making a
determination as to whether the Company shouldfiawsuit to protect those rights and interegtsnore detailed description of the
Company’s claims with respect to the shares puegbrtissued to Happy Emerald Limited is set fomhPart I, Iltem 3, (Legal
Proceedings) of this Report.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Director Compensation

We did not have any compensation agreements arganaents with the members of our Board of Directorsheir
service on the Board for our fiscal year ended bDdur 31, 2006.

On August 20, 2007, our Board approved the paym&faes to two of our directors, namely Messrs.Cabd De Luca,
in the amount of $5,000 per year. Accordingly, Mes€abo and De Luca, each received a pro-ratedtdirfee of $2,500 for service
on our Board from July 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, because the Comptigves that the shares of Series A PreferreckShat were
purportedly issued to Happy Emerald Limited, andlahres of common stock converted therefrom, albgest to cancellation, the
Company disputes whether Messrs. Cabo and De Laoa pvoperly elected to the Board of Directors hasl accordingly suspended
payments of director fees to Messrs. Cabo and @a.Lu

SUMMARY OF COMPENSATION

Set out in the following table is information weeaequired to disclose with respect to the compamsaf our executive
officers for each of the last three fiscal yearse Table only includes compensation informatiorarding our executive officers for
which disclosure is required:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Non-Equity Nonqualified
Name and Stock Option Incentive Plan Deferred All Other
Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Compensation
Position Year $ $ $ $ $ Earnings $ $ Total $
Richard 2008 144,66( - - - - - - 144,66(
Man Fai 2007 144,00( - - - - - - 144,00(
Lee, Chief
Executive
Officer and
President
Q) 2006 22,00( - - - - - - 22,00(
Herbert 2008 96,44( - - - - - - 96,44(
Adamezyk, 2007 96,00( - - - - - - 96,00(
Chief
Operating
Officer (2) 2006 14,667 - - - - - - 14,667
Joseph Tik 2008 60,27¢ = = - - - - 60,27¢
Tung 2007 60,00( - - - - - - 60,00(
Wong,
Chief
Financial
Officer and
Treasurer
3) 2006 9,167 - - - - - - 9,167

(1) Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee was appointed as Clarécutive Officer and President of the Company @véinbe 6,
2006. Pursuant to an Employment Agreement effective Ndxam6, 2008, incorporated by reference from the oy’
Report on Form 10-Q filed November 6, 2008, Mrelwas reappointed Chief Executive Officer and Presidentha
Company.

(2) Mr. Herbert Adamczyk was appointed as Chief @peg Officer of the Company on November 6, 2086irsuant to ¢
Employment Agreement effective November 6, 2008piporated by reference from the Company’'s Reporforn
10-Q filed November 6, 2008, Mr. Adamczyk was ppa@inted Chief Operating Officer of the Company.
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(3) Mr. Joseph Tik Tung Wong was appointed as Chietufrdial Officer and Treasurer of the Company on Mdver 6
2006. Pursuant to an Employment Agreement effedtiveembe 6, 2008, incorporated by reference from the Camgjs
Report on Form 10-Q filed November 6, 2008, Mr.n§yavas reappointed Chief Financial Officer and Treasureths
Company.

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Table

The following are summaries of the Company’'s emplegit agreements (collectively referred to hereamafts the
“Executive Employment Agreements”) with the exeeatofficers described above. Copies of these Enmpdoy Agreements are
attached hereto as Exhibits 10.6 through 10.9ddCthrrent Report on Form 8-K filed by the Comparihwhe SEC on November 6,
2008 and are incorporated herein by reference.dEseriptions in these summaries are qualifiedhéir tentirety, by the text of such
exhibits.

The Company entered into an Employment Agreemetit dir. Richard Man Fai Lee on November 6, 2008 e&iff/e
November 6, 2008, Mr. Lee was re-appointed Chiefdative Officer and President of the Company asdshlary is US$148,320 per
year for a term of two years. Such salary is sulifean annual review and upward adjustment ordjasément in the sole discretion
of the Company. Mr. Lee is also eligible for a bsfior each calendar year in an amount to be detedrtly the Company’'s Board of
Directors. Pursuant to the terms of the agreeniMntLee is also entitled to receive reimbursemdoitsall reasonable and necessary
business and entertainment expenses, including nbtit limited to expenses for business developmerayet, meals and
accommodations that Mr. Lee incurs in connectiothwlie performance of his duties. Mr. Lee is alatitled to all insurance and
other benefit plans and policies maintained for @@mmpany’s senior executives, as well as beingledtto coverage under the
Company’s indemnification policies and director afficer liability policies in amounts reasonablgtdrmined by the Company.

The Company entered into an Employment Agreemetit iir. Herbert Adamczyk on November 6, 2008. Effexrt
November 6, 2008, Mr. Adamczyk was re-appointedeCoiperating Officer of the Company and his salaryyS$98,880 per year
for a term of two years. Such salary is subjeartaannual review and upward adjustment or no adgst in the sole discretion of
the Company. Mr. Adamczyk is also eligible for anbe for each calendar year in an amount to be dated by the Company’s
Board of Directors. Pursuant to the terms of theeagent, Mr. Adamczyk is also entitled to receiegmbursements for all
reasonable and necessary business and entertaiarpamses, including but not limited to expensedisiness development, travel,
meals and accommodations that Mr. Adamczyk inqunnection with the performance of his duties. AMtamczyk is also entitled
to all insurance and other benefit plans and pediaghaintained for the Company’s senior executiasswell as being entitled to
coverage under the Company’s indemnification pesicand director and officer liability policies imaunts reasonably determined
by the Company.

55




The Company entered into an Employment Agreemettt Mi. Joseph Tik Tung Wong on November 6, 2008fedfive

November 6, 2008, Mr. Wong was re-appointed Chiefikcial Officer and Treasurer of the Company aisdshlary is US$61,800
per year for a term of two years. Such salary igesit to an annual review and upward adjustmentomadjustment in the sole
discretion of the Company. Mr. Wong is also eligilfbor a bonus for each calendar year in an amauitet determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors. Pursuant to the teofnthe agreement, Mr. Wong is also entitled taeree reimbursements for all
reasonable and necessary business and entertaiarpamses, including but not limited to expensedisiness development, travel,
meals and accommodations that Mr. Wong incurs imeotion with the performance of his duties. Mr.yas also entitled to all
insurance and other benefit plans and policies tai@ed for the Company’s senior executives, as aglbeing entitled to coverage
under the Company’s indemnification policies ancectior and officer liability policies in amountsasonably determined by the
Company.

All of the above-described Employment Agreemerasesthat the executive officer’s (the “Executivethployment may
be terminated prior to the expiration the agreefaamto year term upon the occurrence of the follayvi(a) voluntarily termination
of the agreement by the Executive giving threeni@nths’ notice in writing; (b) the Executive’s deafc) upon termination of the
Executive by the Company for “cause”, which is defl as any of the following: (i) the Executive @neicted of, or pleads nolo
contendere to, a felony, (ii) the Executive has wutted an act of fraud, bad faith or willful misaluct against the Company that is
materially detrimental to the Company, or (iii) tBeecutive has materially breached any of the tesfithis Agreement after written
notice has been provided by the Company to the lEkexregarding the specific nature of such breawih the Executive fails to cure
such breach within thirty (30) days; (d) upon tloed faith determination of the Board that the Exieeuhas become so physically or
mentally incapacitated or disabled as to be untbkatisfactorily perform his duties hereunder doperiod of one hundred twenty
(120) consecutive calendar days or for one hundigiaty (180) days in any three hundred sixty (36&y period, such determination
based upon a certificate as to such physical otahdisability issued by a licensed physician ang&ychiatrist (as the case may be)
mutually agreed upon by the Executive and the Caoryip@@) upon termination of the Executive by ther@any for any reason other
than for “cause” as defined in (c) above; and @ termination by the Executive of his/her emplewytfor “good reason” which is
defined as the occurrence of any of the followingrgs without the express written consent of theckkve: (i) reduction in the
Executive's Salary or the benefits set forth abawne, (i) the Company breaching any of the termthefEmployment Agreement.

TERMINATION OR CHANGE-IN-CONTROL

SEC regulations state that we must disclose infaomaegarding agreements, plans or arrangemeatsptiovide for
payments or benefits to our executive officersdanreection with any termination of employment orrfp@in control of the Company.
Under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan any unvestatibas will, under certain circumstances, becomméaiately exercisable in the
event of certain mergers or similar transactiomlving the Company or in the event of the dissohlutor liquidation of Company.
However, no options, stock bonuses or stock awhad® been granted to our named executive officersf ecember 31, 2008
under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan.
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Pursuant to our Executive Employment Agreements wit of our Company’'s named executive officerst thee
described more fully above under the section “NameaDisclosure To Summary Compensation Table,thi@a event an executive
officer's voluntarily terminates his employmentiwthe Company or such officer is terminated by @oenpany “for cause,” (these
triggering events are collectively referred to asigger Events A”) the Company is obligated to paythe executive officer or his
representatives on the date of termination of egmpént (“Termination Date”): (a) all salary competisa as is due under the
Executive Employment Agreement, prorated through Termination Date; (b) all expense reimbursements and owed to the
executive officer through the Termination Date,ludiing reimbursements for reasonable and nece$seminess expenses incurred
prior to the Termination Date, as long as the Etgeusubmits a an itemized written accounting oftsexpenditures within
forty-five (45) days of the Termination Date; arj &ll benefits due the Executive, including betsefinder insurance, group health
and retirement benefit plans in accordance withGbmpany's standard policy, if any, through thenTieation Date.

Further, pursuant to these Executive Employmentefgrents, in the event that an executive officengpleyment is
terminated without cause, terminated because dhdwa“‘physical or mental disability”, or terminatdy the executive officer for
“good reason” (as such terms are defined and discusnore fully above under the section “Narrativiecldsure To Summary
Compensation Table And Grants Of Plan-Based Awattiese triggering events are collectively refereds “Trigger Events B”)
the Company is obligated to: (a) pay to the exeeutifficer or his representatives all salary congation that is due or will be due
through the entire term of this Executive Employimagreement; (b) pay to the executive officer cs hépresentatives all expense
reimbursements due and owing the such officer giinabhe Termination Date, including reimbursemeatséasonable and necessary
business expenses incurred prior to the Termindbate, as long as the Executive submits an itemizegitien accounting of such
expenditures within forty-five (45) days of the r@nation Date; and (c) pay to the executive offigehis representatives all benefits
due to such officer, including benefits, if any,den insurance, group health and retirement bepé&dits in accordance with the
Company's standard policy, through the Terminabate.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

On May 20, 2005, we adopted an incentive equitgksfdan (the "2005 Plan") that authorized the isseaof options,
right to purchase common stock and stock bonuses 800,000 shares (as adjusted for the reversk sglit in December 2007).
The purpose of the Plan is to provide incentivesativact, retain and motivate eligible persons whpsesent and potential
contributions are important to the success of tben@any by offering them an opportunity to partitg@an the Company's future
performance through awards of stock options, thletio purchase common stock (“stock awards”) aacksbonuses.

The Plan allows for the issuance of incentive stogtions (which can only be granted to employeeduding officers
and directors of the Company's), non-qualified Istoptions, stock awards, or stock bonuses pursimaSection 422 of the Internal
Revenue Code. All other Awards may be granted tpleyees, officers, directors, consultants, indeganhdontractors, and advisors
of the Company, provided such consultants, indepetcontractors and advisors render bona-fide aaswiot in connection with the
offer and sale of securities in a capital-raisirams$action or promotion of the Company's securities
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The Plan is administered and interpreted by a cdteenconsisting of two or more members of the CamjgsaBoard of
Directors. The 2005 Plan was filed with the Se@sitand Exchange Commission on June 2, 2005 asxlaibiEto a Form S-8
Registration Statement. As of December 31, 2088 etwere [2,402,500] shares (before adjustmenh@ostock split taken place on
December 7, 2007) issued and no options grantesatstanding under the 2005 Plan, and 19,500 shees available for options,
stock awards and stock bonus grants.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AN D RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS AND MNRAGEMENT

The following table presents certain informatiorthaiespect to the beneficial ownership of our commstock as of
March 23, 2009 by the following persons:

» each of our directors;

« each of our executive officers named in the Sumramnypensation Table under “Item 6. Executive
Compensation — Summary Compensation Table”;

« each person known by us to beneficially own moests% of any class of our outstanding voting séiessi
and

« all of our directors and executive officers as augr.

As of March 23, 2009, there were 29,104,110 shafreesmmon stock and 247,798 shares of Series AeRezf Stock
outstanding. None of the shares of Series A PreeBtock is beneficially owned by any of our dicgs or executive officers.

As used in the table below, the term “beneficiahevehip” is defined by the SEC’s rules to mean:

« the sole or shared power to vote, or to directtiteng of, a security, or
« the sole or shared power to dispose of, or to titexdisposition of, a security.

Information contained in this table does not nearlysindicate beneficial ownership for any otheirpose, such as under
any tax law. This table is based upon informatienived from our stock records. Unless otherwiskcated in the footnotes to this
table and subject to community property laws wlaglicable, we believe that each of the stockhsldamed in this table has sole
or shared voting and investment power with resped¢he shares indicated as beneficially owned. §nletherwise indicated, the
address of each beneficial owner listed below i 1®%/0 Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Rd@dai Chung, N.T. Hong
Kong. Applicable percentages are based upon 29,104/0ting shares of common stock outstanding &dav€h 23, 2009:
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Amount and

Nature of Percentage of

Beneficial Outstanding
Name of Executive Officers and Directors Ownership Shares(%)
Richard Man Fai Lee, CEO, President and Chairman 0(1) C
Herbert Adamczyk, Chief Operating Officer and Dimec 3,084,66 10.¢
Joseph Tik Tung Wong, Chief Financial Officer ar@dsurer 0 C
Fred De Luca, Director 4,76¢(2) *
Yun Fai Leung, Director 0 C
Nils A. Ollquist, Director C C
Name of Principal Stockholders (5% Beneficial Ownes)
Corich Enterprises Inc. 13,411,56(3) 46.]
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited 13,411,56(3) 46.]
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.l.) Limited 13,411,56(3) 46.]
Happy Emerald Ltd. 4,569,61(4) 13.¢
Global Premium Brands Co., Inc. 4,569,61(5) 13.¢
Main Pacific Ltd. 1,460,00(6) 5.C
All directors and executive officers as a group (fpersons) 3,089,42 12.¢

* denotes holdings of less than 1%

1)

@)

®)

(4)

®)

Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee is ¢hExecutive Chairman and Chief Executive OfficeMéd Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited. Vv
Lee is one of the beneficiaries of a discretiortaugt the trustee of which holds a 39.64% inteire$vo Kee Hong (Holding:
Limited. Mr. Lee personally hold appromately 1% interest in Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) LinditeMr. Lee disclaimr
beneficial ownership of the shares of the Compamgekicially owned by Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited

The address of Mr. Fred De Luca is 2306 Sugafmive, Agoura, California 91301.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited wholly owns Wo Keeohty (B.V.l.) Limited, an intermediate holding compathat, ir
turn, wholly owns Corich Enterprises Inc., whichthe direct stockholder of record of thekarges. All three of these entit
share voting power over these shares.

Based on 33,673,729 voting shares outstanding asgutime full conversion of the Series A Preferradc® purportedl
owned by Happy Emerald. Calculated based on 287gttaes of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, eachre
convertible into 18.4409 shares of common stock. Girarles Miseroy, former CFO of Xact Aid, Inc.d€tpredecessor nal
of the Company) is the controlling equity holderttdppy Emerald Ltd. Happy Eerald Ltd.’s address is 12318 Foxc
Place, Granada Hills, California 91344-1621.

Based on 33,673,729 voting shares outstanding asguthe purported full conversion of the Series fefBrred Stoc
purportedly owned by Global Premium Brands Qnoc,., a suspended California corporation. Calcdldiased on 247,7
shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stockh ehare convertible into 18.4409 shares of comntacks In connectio
with the Company’s investigation with respect t® dlaims inthe Federal Court Action, the Company has learhed its
former director, Federico G. Cabo, and Mr. Cabois, fRichard Cabo, were the principals of Globahfuen Brands Co. In
at its inception in 2002, and Federico Cabo seta®dts director and Psilent and Richard Cabo served as its dire
Secretary and Chief Financial OfficeMr. Cabo’s wife, Delia Cabo (a/k/a/ Delia Rodrighdzas from time to tin
represented herself as President, Secretary, Teraamud director of Global Premium Brands Co., Ifbe address of Glok
Premium Brands, Co., Inc. is 171 South Bellaza L &maheim, California 92807.
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(6) The Company has not been able to obtain infaeomaonfirming the identity of the control personpersons of Main Pacdij
Ltd. Main Pacific Ltd.’s address is c/o Troy & GduP.C., 1801 Century Park East, #1600, Los Ange&Bsgifornic
90067-2367.

Notwithstanding the foregoing notes (4) and (5 tbompany believes that the Shares of Series AeiPeef Stock that were
purportedly issued to Happy Emerald Ltd., and hHres of common stock converted therefrom, inclyudime shares of common
stock purportedly held by Global Premium Brands,Gnoc., are subject to cancellation. A more dethidescription of the
Company’s claims with respect to the shares puepbrtissued to Happy Emerald Ltd. is set forth amtP, Item 3 (Legal Proceedings)
of this Report.

CHANGE IN CONTROL

We are not aware of any arrangements that maytriesal change in control of our company. There rayepending or
anticipated arrangements that we are aware ofntlagtcause a change in control of our Company. Wenat currently engaged in
any activities or arrangements that we anticipalier@sult in a change in our control.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN

Equity Compensation Plan | nformation

Number of
securities to Number of
be securities
issued upon Weighted-average remaining
exercise of exercise available for
outstanding price of future
options, outstanding issuance
warrants options, under equity
and warrants compensation
Plan Category rights and rights plans
Equity compensation plans approved by securityérsid — — —
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechatgers = — 19,500
Total = — 19,500
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Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Set forth below is a summary of significant transecs among certain related parties and the Companyng the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. Wo Keeqy idoldings) Limited wholly owns Wo Kee Hong (B.\).ILimited, an
intermediate holding company that, in turn, whallyns Corich Enterprises Inc.. All of these ensit@avn beneficially 46.1 % of our
common stock. Corich Enterprises Inc. is the distockholder of record of these shares. All thoé¢hese entities share voting
power over these shares.

Note 2008 2007 2006
$ $ $

Sales to:
- Wo Kee Hong Limited, Affiliate (a) - 187,27. 436,78!
- Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, Affiliate €) 27,85( 16,58: 164,85
- Ferrari Maserati Cars International Trading (Sjtaai) Co. Ltd,
Associate (a) - 70,73
-Vogue World Limited, related company (@ - 395,27 -
- Auto Sportiva Limited. Affiliate (a) 2,21° -
Purchases from:
- Wo Kee Hong Limited, Affiliate (@ 18,54t 111,30! 1,07t
- Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, Affiliate (@) - 2,69: -
- Wo Kee Services Limited, Affiliates (@ 18,73: 18,06 11,19¢
- Rogers Entertainment International Limited, A#fies (a) - - 2,57¢
- Wo Kee Hong (Shenzhen) Limited, Affiliates (@) - - 3,09¢
- Shinwa Engineering Company Limited, Affiliates €)) - - -
- Auto Sportiva Limited, Affiliates (@ 60,05¢ 129,05.
- Mega Warehouse (HK) Limited, Affiliates @) - 5¢
- Ferrari Maserati Cars International Trading (Sjtaai) Co. Ltd,
Associate (@) - 6,831,03 1,677,79
- Jeff Man Bun Lee, Director of Technorient Limited €)) - 173,11! -
- Mr Richard Lee. Director (@) 600,001 -
Interest received from:
- Wo Kee Hong Limited, Affiliate (b) - 77,28. 19,75:
- Auto Sportiva Limited, Affiliates (b) 143,49! 226,56! -
- Keyforce Holdings Limited, Affiliates (b) 281,31 286,68!
- Keyforce (BVI) Limited, Affiliates (b) 145,73 14,96:
- Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited. Affiliate (b) 9,10« -
Management fee received from:
- Auto Sportiva Limited, Affiliates (©) 107,88( 76,94(
- Keyforce Holdings Limited, Affiliates (©) 38,52 38,47(
- Noble Brand Investment Limited, Affiliates (©) 38,52 38,47(
Management fee paid to:
- Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, Affiliate (c) 308,22 - 309,15!
- Wo Kee Administration Limited. Affiliate (©) 78,62 - -
Building management fee from:
- Wo Kee Services Limited, Affiliates (c) 2,707 614
Rental from:
- Auto Sportiva Limited. Affiliates (c) 154,11!
Rental paid to:
- Wo Kee Services Limited, Affiliates (©) 13,908 2,18(

Warehouse expenses paid to:



- Wo Kee Services Limited. Affiliates
Service fee from:
- Ferrari Maserati Cars International Trading (Sjtea) Co. Ltd, Associate

Issuance of common stock pursuant to a consultingesnent:
- Edward W. Withrow, IllI, a stockholder

Issuance of preferred stock pursuant to a congudtgreement
- Happy Emerald Limited, a stockholder
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11,10«

630,80:

643,811

175,00

1,468,93




Notes:
(a) The transactions were carried out at markieepor, where no market price was available, at pas a percentage prc

mark-up.

(b) The loan advance to an affiliate is unsecubedys interest rate &t5% per annum (2007: 8.25% to 8.5% per annum; :
9.25% per annum) and repayable on demand.

(c) The transactions were carried out at termeejbetween both parties.

(d) The transactions were carried out at terms agrebsleen both parties. Happy Emerald Limited is diiate assuming tF
full conversion of the Series A Preferred StocldHey it.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company belietrest the shares of Series A Preferred Stock theat vpurportedly
issued to Happy Emerald Limited, and all sharesomimon stock converted therefrom, are subject hoaltation. A more detailed
description of the Company’s claims with respecthte shares purportedly issued to Happy Emeraldtédris set forth in Part I,

Item 3 (Legal Proceedings) of this Report.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

We intend to review and select additional candilabeserve on our Board of Directors. Currentlye arfi the directors
serving on our board is “independent,” within theaming of the applicable federal securities laws.
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Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth fees billed to us dayr auditors during the fiscal years ended Decermlie 2008 and
December 31, 2007 for: (i) services rendered ferahdit of our annual financial statements ande¢lieew of our quarterly financial
statements, (ii) services by our auditor that aesonably related to the performance of the audiéaew of our financial statements
and that are not reported as Audit Fees, (iii)ises/rendered in connection with tax compliance aidvice and tax planning, and (iv)
all other fees for services rendered.

December 31, December 31,

2008 2007
(i) Audit Fees $ 221,95! $ 233,82
(i) Audit Related Fees - -
(iii) Tax Fees -
(iv) All Other Fees - -
Total fees $ 221,95! $ 233,82!

Audit Fees. These fees consist of fees billed for professiosevices rendered for the audit of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements and review ofitiberim condensed consolidated financial statememtiuded in the Company’s
periodic reports, statutory and regulatory filimmysengagements.

Audit-Related Fees. These fees consist of fees billed for assuranderelated services that are reasonably relateleto t
performance of the audit or review of the Comparmgasolidated financial statements and are notrtepainder “Audit Fees.” There
were no Audit-Related services provided in fis@@0& or 2007.

Tax Fees. These fees consist of fees billed for professi@malices for tax compliance, tax advice and taamping.
There were no tax fees in fiscal 2008 or 2007.

All Other Fees. These fees consist of fees for products and ssdther than the services reported above. Thene wee
management consulting services provided in fiseaty 2008 or 2007.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures. The Company currently does not have a designatedit ACommittee, and
accordingly, the Company’s Board of Directors’ pglis to pre-approve all audit and permissible aadit services provided by the
independent auditors. These services may includét aervices, audit-related services, and tax sesviand other services.
Pre-approval is generally provided for up to onaryand any pre-approval is detailed as to the quaati service or category of
services and is generally subject to a specifigetidThe independent auditors and management queed to periodically report to
the Company’s Board of Directors regarding the mixt& services provided by the independent auditeraccordance with this
pre-approval, and the fees for the services peddrto date. The Board of Directors may also pre@mpparticular services on a
case-by-case basis.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SCHEDULES
(@) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHDULES AND EXHIBITS
(1) Financial Statements:

Page Number in
this Annual Report

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheet F-4
Consolidated Statement of Operations F-5
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity @odthprehensive Income (Loss) F-6
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows F-8
Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements F-9

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
None.
(3) Exhibits

The following list of exhibits includes exhibitsksmitted with this Form 10-K as filed with the SE@dathose incorporated by
reference to other filings.

Exhibit
No.  Description
3.1 Articles of Incorporation, dated as of April 19,0 (1)
3.2 By-Laws of Xact Aid Inc. (1)
3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorportj effective date December 27, 2006. (2)

3.4 Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorportj effective date December 7, 2007. (3)
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10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Share Exchange Agreement dated July 15, 2006 anf@ngompany, Inc., Fred De Luca, Corich Enterprises.
Herbert Adamczyk and Technorient Limited, incorpedaby reference from the FormkBA filed with the SEC on Ju
28, 2006. (4)

Consultancy Services Agreement dated July 15, §Gfhd between Xact Aid, Inc. and Happy Emeralditach (4)

Stock Purchase dated as of May 24, 2006 betweenhAfdcInc. and Nexgen Biogroup, Inc. incorporatedreferenc
from the Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 150@0(4)

Conversion Agreement dated as of July 26, 2006 gnxact Aid, Inc. on the one hand, and AJW Parthd&iS, AJW
Offshore, Ltd, AJW Qualified Partners, LLC and NBlennium Capital Partners II, LLC. (4)

Conversion Agreement between Xact Aid, Inc. and &dwV. Withrow, 1l1.(4)

Employment Agreement by and among Richard Man Eaidand the Company dated November 6, 2008. (5)
Employment Agreement by and among Herbert Adamerygkthe Company dated November 6, 2008. (5)
Employment Agreement by and among Joseph Tik Tungdand the Company dated November 6, 2008. (5)

Shareholders’ Agreement dated March 31, 1993, blysamong Herb# Adamczyk, Klaus Jurgen Dorr, Andrew Ror
Turner, Happyland Company Limited and Corich Entiegs Inc. (4)

Import and distribution agreement for Hong Kong,ddla, dated January 1, 1992, by and between F&nauh. an
Italian Motors (Sales & Service) Limited. (4)

Letter of variation to “Import and Distribution Agement” dated November 27, 2003, by and among fr&rp.A.
Italian Motors (Sales & Service) limited and Autalia Limited. (4)

Deed of Imemnity, dated November 27, 2003, by and amongake®rp.A., Italian Motors (Sales & Service) Lind
and Auto Italia Limited. (4)

Letter to vary the “Import and Distribution Agreentedated July 23, 2004, by and between Italian dfotSales &
Service Limited) and Ferrari S.p.A. (4)
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10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.25

10.26

10.27

Import and distribution agreement for Hong Kong &mel Guangdong province of the People’s RepubliCliha, date
January 1, 1996, by and between Maserati S.p.AAamal Italia Limited. (4)

Letter to vary the agreement, dated May 25, 2093 nd between Maserati S.p.A. and Auto Italia Ledit(4)

Services Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, by and dmtwtalian Motors (Sales & Service) Limited, Audtalia Limited
and Herbert Adamczyk. (4)

Equity Joint Venture Agreement relating to the lelisament of Ferrari Maserati Cars Internationading (Shanghe
Co., Ltd., by and among Poly Technologies, Inalidh Motors (Sales & Service) rnited and Ferrari S.p.A., dal
March 23, 2004. (4)

Articles of Association of Ferrari Maserati Cargelmational Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., by andoag Pol
Technologies, Inc., Italian Motors (Sales & Seryicinited and Ferrari S.p.A, dated March 23, 20@4.

Services Agreement by and between Auto Italia lechiand Ferrari Maserati Cars International TradBlganghai) Cc
Ltd., dated November 4, 2004. (4)

Declaration of Trust in respect of Equitytérest of Dalian F.T.Z. Italian Motors Trading Cbtd., by and between t
Mei Wah and Italian Motors (Sales & Service) Lindifelated December 19, 2005. (4)

Equity Interest Transfer Agreement in respect ofdreMaserati Cars Internatial Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., by i
between Italian Motors (Sales & Service) Limitedl &®errari S.p.A., dated December 30, 2005. (4)

Side Agreement in respect of Transfer of Equitelast of Ferrari Maserati Cars International TmgdShanghai) Cc
Ltd., by and between Italian Motors (Sales & Sesyicimited and Ferrari S.p.A., dated December 8052 (4)

Side Agreement relating to Amended and RestatedtyEdaint Venture Contract in respect of Ferrari ddeti Cars
International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., by amdong Poly Technologies, Inc., Ferrari S.p.A. idtalMotors (Sale
& Service) Limited and CTF Luxury Goods (China) lifed, dated July 18, 2006. (4)

License and Supply Agreement (tsehedules have been omitted. The Company heretigriakes to furnish su
schedules to the Commission supplementally uponest) by and between Akkurate Ltd., Falber Confaz&@R.L.
CPMM (Asia) Ltd. and the Company, dated January2088. (7)

Distributor Agreement by and between King Expressup Limited and Agusta S.p.A. dated October 30,72(2)
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31.2
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1)
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(4)

®)

(6)

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

List of Significant Subsidiaries. (2)

Consent of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng.

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant$arbanes Oxley Section 302.
Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant$arbanes Oxley Section 302.
Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuantt8 U.S.C. Section 1350.
Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
Letter to Shareholders, dated June 18, 2007. (6)

Letter of Resignation from Federico G. Cabo dateddid 27, 2008. (2)

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’'s Form SHRegistration Statement filed with the Securiteesl Exchanc
Commission on November 26, 2004 (File No. 333-1Z0&Md incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Annual &epn Form 1K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed wht
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 318 20@ incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Currenpéteon Form & filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on December 10, 2007 and incorporated herein eyente.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Current Reparform 8-K filed with tk Securities and Exchange Commis
on September 8, 2006 and incorporated herein leyeete.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Currenpé&teon Form & filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on November 6, 2008 and incorporated herein byeafs.

Filed as an exhibit to the Company’s Currenpéteon Form & filed with the Securities and Exchange Commis
on June 21, 2007 and incorporated herein by referen

67




(7 Filed as an exhibit to the Company's Currenpdte on Form & filed with the Securities and Exchat
Commission on January 23, 2008 and incorporategirhby reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usigeed, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 31, 2009 CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE
ENTERPRISE, INC.

(Registrant)

By: /sl Richard Man Fai Lee
Richard Man Fai Lee
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bdpwhe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the @tipa and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/Richard Man Fai LEE
Richard Man Fai Lee Chief Executive Officer, Rdesat and March 31, 2009
Chairman of the Board

/slJoseph Tik Tung WONG

Joseph Tik Tung WONG Chief Financial Officer and March 31, 2009
Treasurer

/s/Herbert Adamczyk

Herbert Adamczyk Chief Operating Officer and March 31, 2009
Director

Fred De Luca Director March __, 2009

/s/Yun Fai LEUNG
Yun Fai LEUNG Director March 31, 2009

/s/Nils Ollquist
Nils Ollquist Director March 31, 2009
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EXHIBIT 14

CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE ENTERPRISE, INC.
CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS
For Employees, Officers and Directors
Introduction
To further the fundamental principles of honestyalty, fairness and forthrightness of China Premliifestyle Enterprise, Inc.
(“CPLY"), we have established the China Premiurresif/le Enterprise, Inc. Code of Business Condudtithics. Our Code strives
to deter wrongdoing and promote the following dieatives:
« Honest and ethical conduct;

« Avoidance of conflicts of interest between persaral professional relationships;

« Full, fair, accurate, timely and transparent disale in periodic reports required to be filed byL&Rvith the Securities and
Exchange Commission and in other public commuraoatinade by CPLY;

« Compliance with the applicable government regufetjo
« Prompt internal reporting of Code violations; and

« Accountability for compliance with the Code.
Accounting Controls, Procedures & Records

Applicable laws and company policy require CPLYkézp books and records that accurately and faflget its
transactions and the dispositions of its assethisrregard, our financial executives shall:

- Provide information that is accurate, completeeotiye, relevant, timely and understandable.

« Comply with rules and regulations of federal, statevincial and local governments, and other appate private and public
regulatory agencies.

« Actin good faith, responsibly, with due care, catgmce and diligence, without misrepresenting ri@ticts or allowing
independent judgment to be subordinated.

All directors, officers, employees and other pessare prohibited from directly or indirectly falgifig or causing to be false
or misleading any financial or accounting bookorelcor account. Furthermore, no director, officeemployee of CPLY may
directly or indirectly:




« Make or cause to be made a materially false oreaiihg statement, or

- Omit to state, or cause another person to omitate sany material fact necessary to make statenmeade not misleading in
connection with the audit of financial statementsrzlependent accountants, the preparation of @emyired reports whether by
independent or internal accountants, or any otleek which involves or relates to the filing of aadonent with the Securities a
Exchange Commission.

Bribery

The offering, promising, or giving of money, gifteans, rewards, favors or anything of value to sungplier, customer or
governmental official is strictly prohibited.

Communications

It is very important that the information dissemethabout CPLY be both accurate and consistentthi®reason, certain
of our executive officers who have been designateduthorized spokespersons per our policy regatimpliance with Regulation
FD are responsible for our internal and externatrmainications, including public communications wstbckholders, analysts and
other interested members of the financial commuidtyployees should refer all outside requestsrffarimation to the authorized
spokespersons.

Computer and Information Systems

For business purposes, officers and emplogreeprovided telephones and computer workstatindssaftware, including network
access to computing systems such as the Interdet-amail, to improve personal productivity and tiiceently manage proprietary
information in a secure and reliable manner. Yowstobtain the permission from our Information Tedlogy Services department to
install any software on any company computer oneghany personal laptop to the CPLY network. Athwiher equipment and
assets of CPLY, we are each responsible for theopppte use of these assets. Except for limitedgreal use of CPLY’s telephones
and computer/e-mail, such equipment may be usedfonbusiness purposes. Officers and employeesldhmt expect a right to
privacy of their e-mail. All e-mails on company @guent are subject to monitoring by CPLY.

Confidential or Proprietary Information

Company policy prohibits employees from disclostogfidential or proprietary information outside CPLleither during or
after employment, without company authorizationldoso. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, ateritial and proprietary
information includes any and all methods, invendidmprovements or discoveries, whether or notrgatée or copyrightable, and
any other information of a similar nature disclosedhe directors, officers or employees of CPLYotiterwise made known to us as
a consequence of or through employment or assogiatith CPLY (including information originated blya director, officer or
employee). This can include, but is not limiteditdprmation regarding our business, research, ldpweent, inventions, trade secrets,
intellectual property of any type or descriptioatal business plans, marketing strategies andammtegotiations.




Conflicts of Interest

Company policy prohibits conflicts between the iasts of its employees, officers, directors and CPA conflict of
interest exists when an employee, officer, or doés personal interest interferes or may interfgith the interests of the company.
Conflicts of interest may not always be clear,fsamiemployee has a concern that a conflict of@siemay exist, they should consult
with higher levels of management, and in the céséficers and directors, they should consult vdatimember of the Audit
Committee. When it is deemed to be in the bestésts of CPLY and its shareholders, the Audit Cottamimay grant waivers to
employees, officers and directors who have disd@seactual or potential conflict of interest. Swudivers are subject to approval
by the Board of Directors.

Fraud
Company policy prohibits fraud of any type or dgstoon.
Inside Information

Company policy and applicable laws prohibit disalesof material inside information to anyone outs@PLY without a
specific business reason for them to know. It iswful and against company policy for anyone posisgsinside information to use
such information for personal gain. CPLY’s policiesh respect to the use and disclosure of mataoaltpublic information are
more particularly set forth in CPLY’s Insider TradiPolicy.

Political Contributions

Company policy prohibits the use of company, pessonother funds or resources on behalf of CPLYpigitical or other
purposes which are improper or prohibited by thgliepble federal, state, local or foreign lawsgrubr regulations. Company
contributions or expenditures in connection withctibn campaigns will be permitted where alloweddwleral, state, local or foreign
election laws, rules and regulations.

Reporting and Non-Retaliation

Employees who have evidence of any violations isf tbde are encouraged and expected to reporttinémeir supervisor,
and in the case of officers and directors, theyikhmeport evidence of any such violations to a finenof the Audit
Committee. Such reports will be investigated iierence to applicable laws and company policy. &tiohs of this Code or any
other unlawful acts by our officers, directors ormoyees may subject the individual to dismissairfremployment and/or fines,
imprisonment and civil litigation according to ajgplble laws.

We will not allow retaliation against an employee feporting a possible violation of this Code ood faith. Retaliation
for reporting a federal offense is illegal undeddeal law and prohibited under this Code. Retaliafor reporting any violation of a
law, rule or regulation or a provision of this Caderohibited. Retaliation will result in discip& up to and including termination of
employment and may also result in criminal prosiecut




Waivers

There shall be no waiver of any part of this Caaleainy director or officer except by a vote of Bward of Directors or a
designated board committee that will ascertain twred waiver is appropriate under all the circumsts. In case a waiver of this
Code is granted to a director or officer, the rt€ such waiver shall be posted on our websiteiwiive days of the Board of
Directors’s vote or shall be otherwise disclosedeagiired by applicable law or the rules of anygktexchange on which our
securities may be listed or quoted for trading.tidés posted on our website shall remain therafoeriod of 12 months and shall be
retained in our files as required by law.

Approved By The Board of Directors
April 24, 2008
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SUBSIDIARIES
OF

CHINA PREMIUM LIFESTYLE ENTERPRISE, INC.

Technorient Limited, a Hong Kong corporation.

Auto ltalia Limited, a Hong Kong corporation.

Dalian Auto Italia Car Trading Co., Ltd, a®Rorporation.

Italian Motor (Sales & Service) Limited, amtpKong corporation.
King Express Group Limited, a Hong Kong caogtimn.

Nanjing Auto Italia Car Trading Co., Ltd, R@ corporation.

CPMM (Asia) Limited, a Hong Kong corporation.

Success Master Holdings Limited, a Hong Koagporation

German Motors Limited, a Hong Kong corponatio
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (no. 333-125541) on For@o8China Premium Lifestyle
Enterprise, Inc. of our report dated March 31, 20@®ating to the consolidated financial statemesft€hina Premium Lifestyle
Enterprise, Inc. and subsidiaries as of DecembegP@18 and 2007, and for each of the years inhtheetyear period ended December
31, 2008, which report is included in the annugloré on Form 10-K for the year ended December 8082 of China Premium
Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc.

/s/ HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Hong Kong, S.A.R.

March 31, 2009




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Richard Man Fai Lee, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual reporf-orm 10-K of China Premium Lifestyle Enterpribe.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this redogs not contain any untrue statement of a mafagaor omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteo€ircumstances under which such statements made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finahsfatements, and other financial informationudeld in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, fssof operations and cash flows of the registebf, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifyinfficer and | are responsible for establishing anaintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)}Xnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahoeporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrgistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure control$ grocedures, or caused such disclosure contndlgpeocedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

(b) Designed such internal control ofieancial reporting, or caused such internal aantiver financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeredsurance regarding the reliability of financegborting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgistrant’s disclosure controls and procedures presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any chamgehe registrant’s internal control over finariciaporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogj and




5. The registrant’s other certifyiafficer and | have disclosed, based on our mostnteevaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiofctors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and tadal weaknesses in the design or operation efial control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect bgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasdnd report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materitdat involves management or other employees whe laasignificant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 31, 2009

/s/ Richard Man Fai Lee

Richard Man Fai Lee
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joseph Tik Tung Wong, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual reporfForm 10-K of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprisec.

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mateatldr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligtiteo€ircumstances under which such statements made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information inctlidrethis report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resafteperations and cash flows of the registrantfasmd for, the periods presented in
this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying ioffr and | are responsible for establishing andntaaiing disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18e)}knd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahoeporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrgistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure cdmtemd procedures, or caused such disclosure d¢erdml procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinfdgion relating to the registrant, including itsnsolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report istg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal conteér financial reporting, or caused such interraitol over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeredsurance regarding the reliability of financggorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(c) Evaluated the effectivenesstltd registrant’s disclosure controls and procedwaed presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report anyaohe in the registrant’s internal control over fioial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, thegistrant’s internal control over financial repogdj and




5. The registrant’s other certifyingioffr and | have disclosed, based on our most remglitiation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorslahe audit committee of the registrant’s boardiofctors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies@amaterial weaknesses in the design or operatiamerfal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect bgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasdnd report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not makrthat involves management or other employees téwve a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 31, 2009

/sl Joseph Tik Tung Wong

Joseph Tik Tung Wong
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR RULE 15d-14(b)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AND 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

In connection with the amended Annual Report ofn@hPremium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. (the “Comparon Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 as Vil the Securities and Exchange Commission ord#te hereof (the “Report”), I,
Richard Man Fai Lee, Chief Executive Officer of iempany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350dapted pursuant to § 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully compliegth the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(djhaf Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
and

(2) The information containedthe Report fairly presents, in all material redpethe financial condition and result of
operations of the Company.

/s/ Richard Man Fai Lee

Richard Man Fai Lee
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 31, 2009




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-14(b) OR RULE 15d-14(b)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 AND 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

In connection with the Annual Report of China PremiLifestyle Enterprise, Inc. (the “Company”) onrfFol0-K for the
year ended December 31, 2008 as filed with the iBemuand Exchange Commission on the date hetkef‘Report”), I, Joseph Tik
Tung Wong, Chief Financial Officer and Treasureth® Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1280adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fullgraplies with the requirements of Section 13(a) Bfd) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information taimed in the Report fairly presents, in all materespects, the financial condition and result
of operations of the Company.

/sl Joseph Tik Tung Wong

Joseph Tik Tung Wong
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Dated: March 31, 2009
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